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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEEH

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Chan, Hoi-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Chan, Lok-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors:
Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)

Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chan, Kwok-wai

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Chan, Hoi-wan (Chairman)
Lam, Kwong-wai (Chief Investment Officer)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping (Chairman)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam, Kwong-wai

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Chan, Hoi-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai

2 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2020

=
BITEE :
WL (7B )
EET

WA

HHTEE -
SR (£/E)
xR

BUHBTES :
PRENE
BB
B

BEREE"
PR ()
AT

BEFE

REZES
BRYLE ()
WA B (R B
MEE

BEFE

REZES
BEY(EE)
FREAE

B

FMEES
W (/)
A

BEFE

DNEWE
B

REAXR
EEE
B



SOLICITORS

(Listed in alphabetical order)
King & Wood Mallesons
Reynolds Porter Chamberlain
S.Y. Wong & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BANKERS

(Listed in alphabetical order)

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited, London Branch

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE
Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG
2 1st Floor, Chubb Tower

Windsor House

311 Gloucester Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A ®E#

BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2862 8555

Fax:  (852) 2865 0990/(852) 2529 6087

OFFICE IN THE PEOPLE’'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Room 1003, 10th Floor, Oriental Place
No. 9 East Dongfang Road

North Dongsanhuan Road

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

Post Code: 100027

Tel:  (8610) 6466 0638

Fax.  (8610) 6466 0238

WEBSITE

http://www.chineseestates.com

STOCK CODE

127

BOARD LOT

500 shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:
Tel:  (852) 2866 6999

Fax:  (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833

E-mail: investor.relations@chineseestates.com
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHAN, Hoi-wan, aged 41, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since 2017 and acts as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since 17 February 2021. She also acts as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan is also the chairman
of the investment committee of the Company. She had joined the then
associate of the Group (the Company together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group") from 2002 to 2005 and participated in its cosmetics business,
including Two Girls products. She also possessed of more than 3.5 years'
work experience in media field in Hong Kong and gained experience in
properties and securities investments through her investments. Ms. Chan
is the elder sister of Ms. Chan, Lok-wan, the step-mother of Mr. Lau, Ming-
wai and the sister-in-law of Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai. As at the date of this
annual report, Ms. Chan is a director of certain substantial shareholders of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong).

Ms. CHAN, Lok-wan, aged 36, joined the Group in 2008 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2015. She is the
Manager of Sales and Leasing Department and also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Business and Management (Marketing) from Brunel University
London and a Master Degree of Science in Communication, Information
and Society from The London School of Economics and Political Science.
She is responsible for the Group’s marketing affairs, overseeing the Group's
cosmetics business, including Two Girls products, and participated in the
Group's properties’ sales and leasing businesses. Ms. Chan has over 12
years of experience in sales and marketing. She is the younger sister of

Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai.

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 65, joined the Group in 1989 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2012. Mr. Lam
is the Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company
and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is also
a member of the investment committee of the Company and acts as the
chief investment officer. Mr. Lam is an independent non-executive director
of Lifestyle China Group Limited, the shares of this company are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and holds
a Master Degree of Business Administration from the University of Warwick,
United Kingdom. He has over 43 years of experience in auditing, finance

and accounting industries.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS EEN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU, Ming-wai, aged 40, has been appointed as a Director of the
Company since 2006 and appointed as the Chairman of the board of
Directors since 2014. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws from
King's College London, a Master Degree of Laws from The London School
of Economics and Political Science, and a Doctor Degree of Philosophy
in Laws from King's College London. He worked at The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc. and Longview Partners LP, both in London prior to joining the
Group. Mr. Lau is a registered attorney in the State of New York and a CFA
(Chartered Financial Analyst) charterholder. He is the step-son of Ms. Chan,

Hoi-wan, and the nephew of Ms. Chan, Lok-wan and Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai.

Ms. Amy LAU, Yuk-wai, aged 68, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2004. Ms. Lau is also a non-
executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, the shares of
this company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She is a
retired dentist. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Science and a Doctor
Degree of Dental Surgery from the University of Toronto, Canada. She is

the sister-in-law of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN, Kwok-wai, aged 62, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is the chairman of
the audit committee and remuneration committee, and a member of the
nomination committee and investment committee of the Company. Mr.
Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from the Monash
University, Australia. He is also a member of CPA Australia and a member
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He has over 41 years
of experience in finance and accounting industries. Mr. Chan is currently a
director of High Progress Consultants Limited. He is also an independent
non-executive director of China Investments Holdings Limited, Far East
Consortium International Limited, National Electronics Holdings Limited
and Tern Properties Company Limited respectively, the shares of all these

companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont'd)

Ms. Phillis LOH, Lai-ping, aged 56, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2006. She
is the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Loh is an
independent non-executive director of In Technical Productions Holdings
Limited, the shares of this company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Loh holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both from The University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Loh was a practising solicitor from 1990 to 1997, and has since
become a practising barrister-at-law after she was called to the Hong Kong
Bar in 1998. She was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong (1990) and
the United Kingdom (1991), and is also a barrister and solicitor in the
Supreme Court of the Australian Capital Territory (since 1991). Ms. Loh
is a CEDR (Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution) Accredited Mediator
(2009). Ms. Loh was an appointed member of the Board of Review (Inland
Revenue Ordinance) from 2018 to 2020 and has been appointed as a
Deputy Chairman of such penal since 2021. She was appointed Deputy
District Judge in 2014 and 2016, and Temporary Deputy Registrar of the
High Court in 2018.

Mr. MA, Tsz-chun, aged 55, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2008. He is a member of
the audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and investment committee of the Company. Mr. Ma is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 33 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting industries. He is currently a director and the general
manager of Sino-Bridge China Consulting Limited. Mr. Ma is also an
independent non-executive director of Lotus Horizon Holdings Limited and
In Technical Productions Holdings Limited, the shares of these companies
are listed on the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange respectively. Mr. Ma holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Master of Science Degree in E-Commerce (Business
Programme), both from The Chinese University of Hong Kong as well as a
Master of Science Degree in China Business Studies from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Ma is a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and an associate

member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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PROFILES OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES
SRTHRAEEN

Ms. Connie CHEUNG, Mun-yi, aged 53, joined the Group (the Company
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2007 and is the Head
of Legal Department. Ms. Cheung is a practising solicitor. She holds a
Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both
from The University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Ms. Cheung
worked in both law firm as a solicitor and public sector as an in-house legal
counsel. Ms. Cheung is responsible for overseeing the legal aspects of the
Group's various businesses, including project development, commercial
investments, conveyancing and tenancy. She has over 29 years of legal

experience.

Mr. Simon CHEUNG, Sung-fung, aged 39, joined the Group in 2007 and
is the Head of Leasing Department. Mr. Cheung is a chartered surveyor. He
holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration (Honours) in Marketing
from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master Degree of Science
in Real Estate from The University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of
The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the real estate asset management. He has over 17 years of relevant
experience. Mr. Cheung also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the

Company.

Ms. Hazel LAI, Ming-yan, aged 52, joined the Group in 2000 and is the
Senior Manager— Contracts of Project Development Department. Ms. Lai is
a registered professional surveyor. She holds a Bachelor Degree of Science
in Building from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master Degree of
Science in Construction and Real Estate from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
and The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Lai is responsible for

the quantity surveying affairs. She has over 30 years of relevant experience.

Various businesses and functions of the Company are significantly under
the direct responsibilities of the Executive Directors who are also regarded

as senior executives of the Company.
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I am pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the "Year") to the

shareholders of the Company.

RESULTS

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$622.2
million as compared to HK$790.2 million for the last year. The decrease
in profit for the Year was mainly due to a mix of the following reasons:
(a) decrease in profit from investments and treasury products at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$1,666.5 million; (b) increase in unrealised
loss on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$806.5 million;
(c) share of results of investments accounted for using the equity method
turned from profit of HK$209.7 million to loss of HK$38.4 million;
(d) decrease in net rental income; (e) net dividend income of HK$1,967.6
million (2019: nil) was recognised from the shares of China Evergrande
Group (stock code: 3333) during the Year; (f) surrender premium and
dilapidations settlement received from tenants in respect of properties in
the United Kingdom of HK$249.8 million (2019: HK$2.0 million) was
recorded during the Year; and (g) no impairment loss of goodwill (2019:
HK$322.9 million) was recognised during the Year. Earnings per share for
the Year was HK$0.33 (2019: HK$0.41).

If the net loss on the major non-cash items of HK$1,605.1 million (2019:
HK$907.2 million) is excluded, the Group will have a core profit for the
Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$2,227.3 million (2019:
HK$1,697.4 million) and a core profit per share of HK$1.17 (2019:
HK$0.89).

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised fair
value loss on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates and joint venture of HK$1,605.1
million (2019: attributable net unrealised fair value loss on investment
properties together with their respective deferred tax from the Group and
its associates and joint venture of HK$584.3 million and impairment loss of
goodwill of HK$322.9 million).

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company (the "Directors” or the “Board”)
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent per share
(2019: HK1 cent per share) for the Year (the “Final Dividend").

The Company had paid an interim dividend of HK1 cent per share on
7 September 2020 (2019: HK1 cent per share). Having considered the
Company's dividend policy, to preserve more cash for the Group's future
financial, property investment or securities investment opportunities, the
Board has recommended the payment of the Final Dividend of HK1 cent

per share (2019: HK1 cent per share).
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DIVIDENDS (contd)

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 26 May 2021 (the 2021 AGM"),
dividend warrants for the Final Dividend will be posted on or about 11 June
2021 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 2 June 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote
at the 2021 AGM, and entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend,
the register of members will be closed during the following periods

respectively:

R E

BERERAARBEN _E-_—FR A=+ NBE17
ZEERFBEFTFAE((ZE—FRFAFTKE)) L
B REREZBREERNR T =_—F~A+—
HERIEFETR_E—FAZBRIEART
R A2 AR -

EEMERRETFE

RBEERREF T _—FRRAFAGINE L
BENER  REREZFRFBEGOERN - A7
BOBR T ARG EHERRECTTE -

(1) For ascertaining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM:

() AEEHF -Z-—FRRBFAFANG LRENER :

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration

X EIRR 5 38 5 XA LAVE S 50 B S 12 IR R

20.5.2021
16:30

Closure of register of members
iR RELFE

21.5.2021 —26.5.2021
(both days inclusive) (B & & B W KX)

(2) For ascertaining entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend:

(2 ARERRESRIRSAVESR :

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration 31.5.2021

X IR AD 38 P XA LA B iR R AR B R 16:30
Closure of register of members 1.6.2021 - 2.6.2021
iR Rm B FE (both days indlusive) (B 45 & E M X)
Record date 2.6.2021

ek A

To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, and to qualify for
the recommended Final Dividend, all properly completed share transfers
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s Branch Registrar and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than the respective latest time as stated

above.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIES

The Group's core businesses comprise property investments for rental and

property development as well as securities investments.

The Group aims at enhancing value and recurrent revenue of investment
properties through conceptualising and implementing redevelopment,
renovation works and repackaging programmes for properties as well as
actively managing a balanced tenant mix for retail properties to achieve

long-term sustainable growth.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in developing modern industrial

properties.

The Group invested in office properties and hotel business in Mainland
China and commercial and residential properties in the United Kingdom.
All of them are located in the prestigious areas and generate stable and

recurrent rental income for the Group.

The Group is actively grasping the opportunity for acquiring properties in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.

The Group continues its strategy in quality partnerships with property
developers or other parties to the extent commercially feasible and

beneficial to the Group's development.

Apart from the aforesaid, the Group has conducted variety of securities
investment business, such as equity investments, debt investments and
other treasury products, with the aim to yield enhancement for treasury

management.

The Group believes that the stable rental income from its investment
properties, together with the property development and trading as well as
securities investment, forms a diversified cash flow stream which allows the

Group to weather the cyclicality of the real estate business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Property Investment

Rentals from investment properties continued to be one of the major

sources of our income.

As at 31 December 2020, the occupancy rate of the shops of Causeway

Place was approximately 98.01%.

Olympian City 3 (25% interest), the retail mall in The Hermitage residences
in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was approximately 95.85%

during the Year.

Coronation Circle (15% interest), the retail mall in The Coronation
residences in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was approximately
70.57% during the Year.

During the Year, the average occupancy rate of the Group's office property,

Harcourt House was approximately 81.37%.

Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street (100% interest), an industrial building in
Tsuen Wan was vacant as at 31 December 2020. The redevelopment
comprises of a 25-storey industrial building (including 2 basement levels
for parking and loading/unloading facilities) with a total gross floor area
of approximately 228,000 square feet. It is currently in planning and
design stage. Demolition of the existing building has been completed, and
foundation construction will commence in early 2021. The new building
is expected to be completed by early 2025. The Group's equity interest in
the company holding Nos. 14—18 Ma Kok Street has been increased from
51% to 100% in February 2020.

No. 1 Hung To Road (33.33% interest), a 33-storey industrial building in
Kwun Tong, the average occupancy rate was approximately 97.88% during
the Year.

Hong Kong Property Development

The Hermitage (25% interest) is one of the Group's joint venture
development projects in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 964 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 1,095,980 square feet. As at
31 December 2020, 99.79% of total residential units were sold.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Development (Cont'd)

The Coronation (15% interest) is another joint venture development
project of the Group in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 740 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 650,600 square feet. As at

31 December 2020, all residential units were sold.

Grand Central (10% interest) is a joint venture development project of
the Group awarded by the Urban Renewal Authority. Its total site area is
approximately 234,160 square feet, with a total gross floor area of around
1,853,561 square feet. 4 residential tower blocks with 1,999 residential
units in aggregate are built in two phases. Up to 31 December 2020,
860 units of first phase and 770 units of second phase were presold.
Superstructure works of both phases were completed, occupation permit
was issued in November 2020, and certificate of compliance is anticipated

to be granted in the second quarter of 2021.

Mainland China Property Investment

Hilton Beijing (50% interest), a five-star international hotel having 506
rooms, its occupancy rate has been dropped to approximately 40.14%
as at 31 December 2020 due to renovation works and the outbreak of
COVID-19. Due to the pandemic, the renovation works of 5th to 14th

Floors of the main tower were temporarily suspended.

Oriental Place (50% interest), a 10-storey office building next to Hilton
Beijing. Its average occupancy rate was approximately 73.29% during the

Year.

Overseas Property Investment

River Court is a freehold office building situated at 116—-129 Fleet
Street, London, United Kingdom. It provides a total net internal area of
approximately 431,324 square feet, together with certain car parking
spaces. During the Year, the retails portion of River Court was fully let while
the office accommodation was vacant as the anchor tenant has moved out
in the first quarter of 2020. It is expected that asset enhancement works
of office accommodation will be carried out in due course when relevant

government approval is granted.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Overseas Property Investment (Cont'd)

“14 St George Street” is a freehold office building located in London,
United Kingdom. The building comprises approximately 51,861 square
feet of office accommodation arranged over lower ground, ground and four
upper floors, approximately 91.61% had been let out during the Year on

average.

“61-67 Oxford Street and 11-14 Soho Street” is a mixed use freehold
building located in London, United Kingdom, comprising approximately
55,162 square feet in aggregate. The building provides retails, office and
residential accommodation, occupying approximately 33,850 square feet,
13,735 square feet and 7,577 square feet respectively, over lower ground,
ground and six upper floors. During the Year, the average occupancy rate

was approximately 83.34%.

“11 and 12 St James's Square and 14 to 17 Ormond Yard" is a mixed use
freehold building located in London, United Kingdom. The building provides
around 80,000 square feet office accommodation arranged over lower
ground, ground and six upper floors, approximately 93.26% had been let

out during the Year on average.

Securities Investment

Securities investment is one of the principal activities of the Group.

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's securities
investment portfolio mainly comprised bonds, listed equity investments and
treasury products. The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of
the Company. The Group's strategy for future investments is to invest in a
diversified portfolio to minimise risks with attractive yield, good liquidity and
issuers from reputable entities, so as to maintain a healthy financial status

and grasp every good investment chance.

The gain recognised from securities investments and treasury products for
the Year was approximately HK$2,068.7 million. Details of the performance
of securities investments are disclosed in the “Financial Operation Review”

of this annual report.

The Group will continue to closely monitor its portfolio of securities

investment to achieve satisfactory returns.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Acquisition of Remaining Interest in Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street,

Tsuen Wan - Discloseable Transaction

As announced on 10 January 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party in relation to, inter
alia, the acquisition of the remaining 49% interest in Landrich (H.K.)
Limited (“Landrich”) (the owner of Tsuen Wan Town Lot No. 128 situated
at Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
and the building erected thereon) (the "Acquisition”). The Group initially
acquired 50% interest in Landrich in March 2018 and further acquired
1% interest in Landrich in December 2019 (the “Previous Acquisitions”).
Subsequent to the completion of the Acquisition on 28 February 2020,
Landrich has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
Acquisition (aggregated with the Previous Acquisitions) constituted a
discloseable transaction for the Company under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

Disposal of Debt Securities - Major and Connected Transaction

As announced on 29 January 2020, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement with Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (an Executive Director (as at the date
of such announcement) and a trustee of the substantial shareholders of
the Company (who are her minor children)) in relation to, inter alia, the
disposal of certain debt securities (the “Disposal”). The Disposal constituted
a major and connected transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules and was approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 23 March 2020.
The disposal of the last tranche of the debt securities was completed on
18 December 2020. Details of the Disposal were set out in the Company's
announcement dated 29 January 2020, circular dated 28 February 2020

and announcement dated 18 December 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Disposal of Perpetual Bond - Discloseable Transaction

On 19 March 2020, the Group disposed of the 7.5% fixed rate resetting
perpetual subordinated contingent convertible securities issued by
Standard Chartered PLC (the shares of which are listed on the London
Stock Exchange, the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2888), the Bombay
Stock Exchange in India and the National Stock Exchange in India) (the
“Perpetual Bond") in the principal amount of US$2,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$19,490,000) through over-the-counter market for a
consideration of approximately US$2,265,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,655,000) (inclusive of accrued interest) (the “Bond Disposal”).
The Bond Disposal (when aggregated with the disposal of the Perpetual
Bond under the Disposal mentioned in the above paragraph) constituted a
discloseable transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules as more

described in the Company's announcement dated 20 March 2020.
Change of Address of Principal Office in Hong Kong

With effect from 20 April 2020, the address of the Company's head office
and principal place of business in Hong Kong has been changed to 21st
Floor, Chubb Tower, Windsor House, 311 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,

Hong Kong. Relevant announcement had been made on 17 April 2020.

Leasing of Windsor House — Connected Transaction and Continuing

Connected Transaction

As announced on 12 June 2020, the Group (as tenant) entered into a
tenancy agreement in relation to the leasing of the whole of 39th Floor
of Chubb Tower, Windsor House with a company at that time indirectly
owned by (i) Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (an Executive Director (as at the date of
such announcement) and a trustee of the substantial shareholders of the
Company (who are her minor children)), both in her capacity as a trustee
of her minor children and in her own capacity; and (ii) a family trust of Mr.
Lau, Ming-wai (a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Board)
(as landlord) (the “Transaction”), for the purpose of other part of the
new headquarter of the Group. The Transaction constituted a connected
transaction and a continuing connected transaction for the Company under
the Listing Rules as more described in the Company's announcement
dated 12 June 2020.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Contract for Services - Discloseable and Continuing Connected

Transactions

As announced on 14 August 2020, the Group entered into a contract for
services with Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (an Executive Director (as at the date
of such announcement) and a trustee of the substantial shareholders of
the Company (who are her minor children)), whereby the Group agreed
to provide to Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and/or her associate(s) or relative(s)
leasing administration services, sale administration services, property
management services, property administration services, asset management
and maintenance services, rental services, advisory and consultancy
services, and other ordinary services for a term of 3 years commenced on
1 November 2020 (the “Contract for Services Transaction”). The Contract
for Services Transaction constituted discloseable and continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules as more described in
the Company's announcement dated 14 August 2020 and circular dated
7 October 2020. The Contract for Services Transaction was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the special general

meeting of the Company held on 28 October 2020.
Subscription of New Notes - Discloseable Transaction

On 26 November 2020, the Group entered into a placement and
subscription agreement in relation to the subscription for 8.875% senior
notes due 2021 (the “New Notes”) on a private placement basis in the
principal amount of US$100,000,000 (equivalent to HK$775,230,000)
issued by Zhongliang Holdings Group Company Limited (the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2772)), an
independent third party, at the issue price of 98.966% of the principal
amount of the New Notes plus accrued interest (the “Subscription”). The
Subscription constituted a discloseable transaction for the Company under
the Listing Rules as more described in the Company's announcement
dated 26 November 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Resignation of Director and Change of Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chan, Sze-wan resigned from her offices of Executive Director, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, an authorised representative of
the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules, and the chairman and
member of the investment committee of the Company with effect from
17 February 2021. In light of the resignation of Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, the
Board has appointed Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, an Executive Director, as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, an authorised representative of
the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules, and the chairman and
member of the investment committee of the Company with effect from
17 February 2021. The Company has made relevant announcement on
17 February 2021.

Update on Impact on the Outbreak of COVID-19 to the Group

The outbreak of COVID-19 in Hong Kong and many countries started in
early 2020 and continues up to the date of this annual report, its social-
economic impact is unprecedented. The global pandemic is having a major

impact on the economies and financial markets.

The drop in rental income of the Group during the Year was mainly due
to the surrender of lease by an anchor tenant of one of the Group's
investment properties in the United Kingdom. Meanwhile, in view of
COVID-19 pandemic, rent concessions have been given by the Group
to certain tenants to ease their hardship that resulted in a drop in rental

income.

The spreading of COVID-19 pandemic has adversely affected the fair
value of investment properties of the Group. During the Year, the Group
recorded an unrealised loss on fair value changes of investment properties
of HK$1,549.2 million.

The Group shared loss from Hilton Beijing (50% interest) during the Year,
mainly due to the significant decline in room sales and food and beverage

business, as a result of COVID-19 pandemic.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Update on Impact on the Outbreak of COVID-19 to the Group
(Cont'd)

For the financial market, due to recent market volatility and changes in
the market sentiments of the pandemic, the market price of securities
investment during the Year was in general lower than the beginning of the
Year. During the Year, the Group recognised realised loss on investments
and treasury products at fair value through profit or loss of HK$411.4

million in profit or loss.

As COVID-19's duration is unpredictable and the extent of its impact is
not easy to determine under this volatile situation of the pandemic, it is
believed that COVID-19 will continue to affect the Group's businesses for a

period of time.
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is continuously committed to maintaining good
communication with shareholders, investors and analysts in order to ensure
their thorough understanding of the Group’s strategies and business

development, thereby enhancing transparency and investor relations.

The Company maintains a Company's website (www.chineseestates.com)
to make the Company's information available on the internet, including the
dissemination of statutory announcements and circulars etc.,, to facilitate
its communication with shareholders and to provide important information
to the investing public on corporate governance structure, policies and
systems, profiles of the Directors and senior executives as well as terms of

reference of Board committees.

The up-to-date information of the Group is available for public
access on the Company's website. The Company encourages its
shareholders to take advantage of the Company’s website and
welcomes suggestions from investors and shareholders, and invites
them to share their views and suggestions by contacting the Company at

investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company in writing by sending such written enquiries to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address disclosed
in "Corporate Information” of this annual report or by email at investor.
relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to raise

questions at general meetings.
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PROSPECTS

The COVID-19 pandemic still dominates the global economic outlook,
while the new variants of the virus also posed concerns. Although the
global economy is emerging from the collapse triggered by COVID-19,
the recovery is likely to be subdued. Despite the 2020 United States
presidential election came to an end, the direction of foreign and economic
policies of the new United States administration, particularly its implications
on China-US relations, remains to be seen.

Though Hong Kong economy saw some improvement in the third quarter
of 2020, with local consumption and business sentiments have shown
relative improvement, its epidemic situation saw an abrupt deterioration
amid the fourth wave of local infections. Unemployment rate hit a 16-
year high of 6.6 per cent in the final quarter of 2020 and worsened in
January 2021 to 7 per cent, close to a 17-year high. Resulting from the re-
tightening of social distancing measures since the surge of fourth wave of
the pandemic, food and beverage sector remains as the main victim. This
inevitably slow the pace or even reverse the course of the recovery of Hong
Kong's economy. As a result, the near-term economic outlook will hinge
critically on the development of the local COVID-19 situation.

As for tourism sector in Hong Kong, travel restrictions around the globe
will continue to hard hit inbound tourism. The spreading of COVID-19
pandemic has also adversely affected the fair value of investment
properties of the Group. It is therefore expected that the Group's
investment properties will continue to face numerous challenges over
2021. Despite the high unemployment rate, fourth wave of pandemic
and social distancing measures, residential sales market has outperformed
other segments of properties, which indicated that shortage still prevails.
In particular, the low interest rate environment and abundant liquidity also
helped stabilize Hong Kong residential market.

In the United Kingdom, Brexit deal is finally confirmed. European Union
and the United Kingdom finally reached a deal governing their future
relationship days before the end of the Brexit transition period on
31 December 2020. The breakthroughs remove uncertainty in the short-
term. While the news is welcome for the markets, the economic impact
is being overshadowed by the financial fallout of the pandemic. There
are major risks to the downside associated with the emergence of new
COVID-19 strains and their effect on the path of the virus. Notwithstanding
the uncertainties associated with the constantly changing landscape in the
United Kingdom, the Group remains to preserve long-term view for the
United Kingdom economy. Our immediate focus remains on the asset
enhancement works of our properties in the United Kingdom through team
of experts, despite the decrease in fair value of these investment properties.
Meanwhile, we will continue to address to the surrounding challenges
and be well prepared to capture investment opportunity at an opportune
moment.
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PROSPECTS (contd)

For equity market, good news like the United States presidential election
in November 2020 and the launch of COVID-19 vaccines gave another
boost to equity markets. The improving risk sentiment has attracted funds
flowing to risky assets, and investment demand for gold drops. Gold
prices therefore softened significantly in November 2020. However, the
development of the pandemic is still the biggest uncertainty facing by
investors. In Hong Kong stock market, amidst the uncertainties due to
global pandemic and China-US dispute, market funds are still ample which
boost the liquidity. Investors generally expect Hang Seng Index would
experience significant rebound in 2021. In the United States, its equity
market went through a roller-coaster ride in 2020 but ended on positive
note. With the improving economic momentum over the coming months,

investors eye on 2021 are positive.

Though considerable uncertainties cloud the global economy, the market
is generally expected that the global economy will recover gradually. We
believe changes come with opportunity. Looking ahead, the Group will
address to the challenging environment and acts watchfully and cautiously

and concern shareholders’ value as a whole.
APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
shareholders for their continuing support. | would also like to express
my sincere thanks to my fellow directors and all staff members for their

dedication and hard work.

Lau, Ming-wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2021
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW
B E 3 JE)

RESULTS

The Company has in the past disclosed in its annual and interim reports
the interest income from bonds and structured products and dividend
income from listed and unlisted equity investments as “Investment Income,
Net” and building management fee income and property management
services income as “Other Income” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Having reviewed the factors mentioned below, the
directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider that it is more appropriate
to classify these items as components of the revenue of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together, “Group”), these items should now be presented
in and classified as “Revenue” of the Group under the new accounting
policy (“Reclassification”). The Reclassification will not have any effect on
the consolidated statement of financial position or the consolidated net

profit of the Group.
Securities Investments

Securities investment is one of the principal activities of the Group. The
Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for treasury
management and invest in securities investments and treasury products
with attractive yield and good prospect in order to bring stable and
satisfactory realised return in long run. Following the reduction of the scale
of operations of the Group for sales of development properties and holding
of investment properties for generation of rental income in recent years,
the revenue contribution of (i) interest income from bonds and structured
products; and (ii) dividend income from listed and unlisted equity
investments have become more and more significant to the Group. In the
recent years, the Group has committed significant financial and managerial
resources in pursuance of its securities investment strategies. Hence, the
Directors consider that it is more appropriate to classify the (i) interest
income from bonds and structured products; and (i) dividend income from
listed and unlisted equity investments as components of the revenue of

the Group, rather than as items recorded under “Investment Income, Net".
Building and property management services income

The provision of building and property management services is a significant
activity of the Group, entailing the employment of the highest number of
employees amongst all revenue-generating activities of the Group. In terms
of manpower employed, the Directors consider that it is more appropriate
to classify the building and property management services income as a
component of the revenue of the Group, rather than as an item recorded

under “Other Income”.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Further, in the opinion of the Directors, the Reclassification results in the
consolidated financial statements providing reliable and more relevant
information, taking into account the practice adopted by other listed
companies in Hong Kong for the presentation and classification of similar

items as the subject matter of the Reclassification.
Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“Year") amounted to
HK$3,041.5 million (2019: HK$1,310.0 million (restated)), an increase of
132.2% over last year and comprised gross rental income of HK$373.5
million (2019: HK$523.0 million), gain on sales of investments held-for-
trading on a net basis of HK$25.3 million (2019: nil), dividend income
from listed and unlisted equity investments of HK$1,973.2 million (2019:
nil), interest income from bonds and structured products of HK$596.1
million (2019: HK$715.9 million), building and property management
services income of HK$53.2 million (2019: HK$55.1 million) and others
of HK$20.2 million (2019: HK$16.0 million). The increase in revenue
was mainly due to the dividend income from shares of China Evergrande
Group (stock code: 3333) (“China Evergrande”) (“Evergrande Shares”) of
HK$1,967.7 million, which will be elaborated below.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$2,961.5 million (2019:
HK$1,266.5 million (restated)), an increase of 133.8% as compared
with last year which also mainly due to the dividend income from the
Evergrande Shares despite of the decrease in net rental income and

interest income from bonds and structured products for the Year.
Property Leasing

For property leasing, the rental revenue in non-retail and retail section
decreased by 32.3% to HK$302.1 million and 7.3% to HK$71.4 million
respectively during the Year. The total rental income in revenue for the
Year recorded a decrease of 28.6% to HK$373.5 million as compared with
last year of HK$523.0 million. The decrease in rental income was mainly
due to an anchor tenant of an investment property in the United Kingdom

surrendered the lease during the Year.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW B # £ % 51 B8

RESULTS (contd)

Property Leasing (Cont'd)

Together with the attributable rental revenue generated from associates
and an investee company of HK$94.3 million (2019: from associates, a
joint venture and an investee company of HK$129.7 million), the total
attributable rental revenue to the Group amounted to HK$467.8 million
(2019: HK$652.7 million), which represents a decrease of 28.3% over last

year.

Attributable net rental income for the Year showed HK$389.5 million, a

decrease of 34.8% over HK$597.5 million in last year.
Property Development and Trading

During the Year, the Group did not dispose of any trading property (2019:

no disposal).

In respect of properties held by associates, sales of two units and two store
rooms of Hing Wai Centre in Aberdeen (50% interest) generated profit of
HK$0.3 million as reflected in the share of results of investments accounted
for using the equity method. In respect of properties held by an investee
company, sales of a unit and two parking spaces of The Coronation in
West Kowloon (15% interest) were recorded by the investee company
during the Year and will contribute profit to the Group upon recognition of

dividend income.

The Group's associate and investee company executed properties sale
agreements to third parties recorded an attributable contracted sales of
HK$11.9 million for the Year.

Securities Investments

The Group has in the ordinary and usual course of business conducted its
securities investment activities, as at 31 December 2020, mainly comprised
bonds, listed equity investments and treasury products. During the Year,
the gain (excluding gain/loss recognised in financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") reserve) recognised
from securities investments and treasury products was HK$2,068.7 million
(2019: HK$1,685.7 million), comprised gain on listed equity investments
at FVTOCI of HK$1,936.3 million (2019: loss of HK$113.2 million) and
gain on investments and treasury products at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL") of HK$132.4 million (2019: HK$1,798.9 million).
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

During the Year, the Group disposed of listed investments held-for-trading
and recognised a realised gain of HK$25.3 million (the gains/losses of
which was included in revenue) with gross proceeds of HK$365.2 million
(2019: no disposal). The realised loss from sales of bonds of HK$436.7
million (2019: realised gain of HK$184.2 million) was recognised in
profit or loss during the Year, comprising the realised loss on bonds in the
industry of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")-based real estate of
HK$137.7 million (2019: realised gain of HK$82.0 million), the realised
loss on bonds in the industry of overseas financial institutions of HK$255.3
million (2019: realised gain of HK$97.4 million) and the realised loss
on bonds in other industries of HK$43.7 million (2019: realised gain of
HK$4.8 million). During the Year, the Group had acquired 22 bonds (2019:
19 bonds) in the sum of HK$2,039.6 million (2019: HK$3,436.7 million),
and disposed of/redeemed 33 bonds (2019: 19 bonds) (including those
with partial disposal) with carrying amounts in the sum of HK$7,305.7
million (2019: HK$2,309.4 million). Bonds acquired were mainly in the
industry of PRC-based real estate of 98.7% (2019: 96.9%) and overseas
financial institutions and insurance of 1.3% (2019: 3.1%). In addition, the
Group recorded a minimal realised gain (2019: realised loss of HK$0.7

million) on the structured products during the Year.

During the Year, the Group disposed of certain bonds under the disposal
agreement entered into with Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, an executive Director and
the trustee of substantial shareholders of the Company, on 29 January
2020. Pursuant to the terms under the disposal agreement, consideration
shall be determined based on the higher of (i) 100% of principal amount
and (ii) prevailing market bid price for the bonds to be disposed of. The
excess amount paid by Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, at the consideration of 100%
of principal amount over the prevailing market bid price of the bonds
disposed of was directly recognised in the reserve as it is deemed as the
contribution from the Company’s equity participant. During the Year, the

Group recognised gain of HK$206.6 million in the contribution reserve.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW B # £ % 51 B8

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

Furthermore, the Group recorded an unrealised gain of HK$0.3 million
(2019: HK$978.5 million) mainly representing the changes in fair value of
bonds and listed equity investments, which had no effect on the cash flow
of the Group. The unrealised gain of HK$14.9 million (2019: HK$978.5
million) from changes in fair value of bonds represented 27 bonds (2019:
34 bonds), mainly comprising the unrealised gain from the industry of
overseas financial institutions of HK$11.2 million (2019: HK$399.8 million)
or increase in fair value of 3.8% (2019: 12.4%) over the Year; and the
unrealised gain from the industry of PRC-based real estate of HK$3.7
million (2019: HK$518.9 million) or increase in fair value of 0.1% (2019:
11.5%) over the Year. The Group believes that the fluctuation in price of
bonds during the Year, among others, was owing to concerns about the
economic impact of COVID-19 pandemic and the ongoing tensions in the
United States-China relationship exacerbated, the global economy has been
greatly affected. During the Year, the Group also recorded unrealised loss
on listed investments held-for-trading of HK$12.7 million (2019: nil) and

unrealised loss on structured products of HK$1.9 million (2019: nil).

During the Year, interest income from bonds (which was included in
revenue) amounted to HK$585.7 million (2019: HK$714.0 million),
represented 10.30% (2019: 8.46%) (before effect on leverage) return on
average market value of bondholding during the Year. The interest income
from structured products (which was included in revenue) amounted to
HK$10.4 million (2019: HK$1.9 million).

Summing up the realised and unrealised gain/loss and adding the
net income from net dividend income from listed equity investments,
interest income, other net investment expenses and net finance costs of
HK$2,479.8 million (2019: interest income, other net investment income
and net finance costs of HK$523.7 million), the gain recognised from
securities investments and treasury products was HK$2,068.7 million
(2019: HK$1,685.7 million), of which net dividend income from the
Evergrande Shares was HK$1,967.6 million (2019: nil) for the Year.

The dividend income from listed equity investments of HK$1,969.8 million
(2019: nil) and interest income from bonds and structured products of
HK$596.1 million (2019: HK$715.9 million) were recorded in revenue.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under different

categories are further elaborated below:

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or

Loss

The investments and treasury products at FVTPL recorded a profit before
and after net finance costs of HK$184.9 million (2019: HK$1,899.2
million) and HK$132.4 million (2019: HK$1,798.9 million) respectively for
the Year.

Gain from the investments and treasury products at FVTPL reflected in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the Year comprised:
(a) a realised gain on listed investments held-for-trading of HK$25.3 million
(2019: nil), a realised loss on fair value changes of bonds of HK$436.7
million (2019: realised gain of HK$184.2 million) and minimal realised
gain (2019: realised loss of HK$0.7 million) on structured products; (b) an
unrealised gain on fair value changes of bonds of HK$14.9 million (2019:
HK$978.5 million), unrealised loss on listed investments held-for-trading
of HK$12.7 million (2019: nil) and unrealised loss on structured products
of HK$1.9 million (2019: nil); and (c) interest income from bonds and
structured products of HK$596.1 million (2019: HK$715.9 million),
dividend income of HK$2.1 million (2019: nil) and other net investment
expenses of HK$2.2 million (2019: other investment income of HK$21.3
million). Net relevant finance costs for the Year was HK$52.5 million (2019:
HK$100.3 million) including interest expense of HK$35.9 million (2019
HK$103.8 million) and exchange loss of HK$16.6 million (2019: exchange
gain of HK$3.5 million).
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

Bt %5 38 75 [0 R

The respective income/expense from securities investments under different

categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or

Loss (Cont'd)

The table below summarises the performance of bonds, structured

products and listed investments held-for-trading during the Year:

Bond issuers by industry
Overseas financial institutions
PRC-based real estate
Others

Structured products
Listed investments

held-for-trading

Other net investment (expenses)

income

Profit before net finance costs

Net finance costs

Profit after net finance costs

REFBTAZTE
B EREE
EEDE

Eft

GRMER
BFEEZLTRE

R A FEDRA

R

BB ERFRA N
BBBRER

PHERFRE 2N

E 4 {05

BEREE)

IATERETEER 2 EBFRERAFXEE—
St - (8

BEBEURRAFPEZRERYEER(E)

TERBARAFEES  BBUEERRFKIEEEREZ
EREZRR
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Realised (loss) gain Unrealised gain (loss) Interest/dividend income Total (loss) profit
BER(BE) Wi RERWE (FR) HE/REKA (BR)EANEH
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$ million ~ HK$milion ~ HK$ million ~ HK$milion ~ HK$ million ~ HKEmilion ~ HK$ million  HKS millon
BEAT BBAT BEETR BEAT BEER BEAT BEAT BBAT
(255.3) 974 12 3998 114.7 2787 (129.4) 7759
(137.7) 82.0 3.1 5189 465.0 4139 331.0 10148
(43.7) 48 - 59.8 6.0 214 (31.7) 860
(436.7) 184.2 14.9 9785 585.7 7140 163.9 1,876.7
= ©7) (19) S 10.4 19 85 12
253 S (12.7) S 21 = 141 S
(411.9) 1835 0.3 9785 598.2 7159 187.1 18779
22 213
184.9 1,899.2
(52.5) (1003)
132.4 1,7989
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RESULTS (contd) ES {6
Securities Investments (Cont'd) HERE(E)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under different LA T B 2R B RNRIZER| 2 BHILE WA F S 1E#E —
categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd) Harat : (8)

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other BEBAMPEKGEUARBAFEZ FTREARE

Comprehensive Income

(@)  Implication on Profit or Loss for the Year @ AFEEBmITE
Dividend income, other investment expenses and relevant finance RAFE  HABBEMEZEREARBEA
costs of holding listed equity investments at FVTOCI were recognised FEzZ ETREAKREMEE ZREWKA - &
in profit or loss for the Year. During the Year, net dividend income of hREMXREERBERNERZAER -
HK$1,967.6 million (2019: nil) (after transaction cost) from holding RAFE - 15K B#HF 860,000,000/ F
of 860,000,000 Evergrande Shares and net relevant finance costs A D Z BB U AFE1,967,600,0007%8 7T
of HK$31.3 million (2019: HK$113.2 million) were recorded, hence (ZZ-NF : B (HBRXGHAE) REH
the results from listed equity investments at FVTOC! recorded a net B %% & F)F$%E31,300,0008 L (ZE — NF -
gain of HK$1,936.3 million (2019: net loss of HK$113.2 million). 113,200,000 7T) + B L@ imHE fth 2 m iz A

R AFEZ ETRAKRE 2 EEHFKREF
%81,936,300,0008 0 (Z T — NF : B8 FE
113,200,000 7T) ©

(b)  Implication on Other Comprehensive Expenses for the Year b) AFEEMEESMHZZE

During the Year, the unit share price of China Evergrande had RAFE  FBREAERREA_-ZT—A
dropped from HK$21.6 as at 31 December 2019 to HK$14.9 as at FT-A=+—HZ216BT THE=_ZT=
31 December 2020, or 31.0% over the Year, hence an unrealised ZFE+ A=+ —B2Z149B LR AFE
loss on fair value change of listed equity investment at FVTOCI of TRE31.0% B8 b i 5 H i 3 T YR A I i
HK$5,762.0 million (2019: HK$1,591.0 million) was recognised AEEzZLETRAEEZAFEESH 2K
in other comprehensive expenses. Further, another listed equity #35 F5185,762,000,0008 L (ZF— L F -

investment at FVTOCI was disposed of and recorded a net realised 1,591,000,0007% 70) 7 Eth 2 E 2 AR o

gain of HK$0.1 million (2019: nil) in other comprehensive expenses o - HES—EBBREMEEEENRRR
for the Year. Realised gain/loss on fair value change is a cash item FE2z ETRAKREMESE SR W FE
while unrealised fair value change is a non-cash item and will not 100,000 T (ZE—H4F - M)RAKNFFHAM
affect the cash flow of the Group. The Group believes that the EEZERER - A TFEEHIEERME
decrease in share price of China Evergrande for the Year, among BRDREIER  MABRAFEEE IR
others, was owing to the unstable business environment it faced and +HE  HAEBRGRETEBRZE -

overwhelming uncertainties surrounding the epidemic. REBBRERAEEFRERZRETS® A

(HH R EAH 2RI REREEE
RITRZERTHBAREE -

SBRCREEH  EAEEENE
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RESULTS (contd) ES {6
Securities Investments (Cont'd) HERE(E)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under different LA T KB TEER 2 EH R EWA BT (EifE—

categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd) Harat : (8)
Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other FEBEAMPEKGEARBAFEZ LTRERE
Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) (&)

The table below summarises the performance of listed equity investments ~ FERBUAAAFE BB EM 2 E RN R AT E

at FVTOCI during the Year: 2 ETRAIRE 2RI
Recorded in Recorded in
consolidated statement of consolidated statement of
financial position comprehensive income
BAGAHBRRER BFAGEREANRER
Financial Financial
assets assets
measured measured
at fair value at fair value Other
Closing  through other  through other comprehensive
Stock Number of price  comprehensive  comprehensive Profit expenses
code shares (per share) income  income reserve for the Year for the Year

BREMEZE  BBEMR2E
Wi AR R Wt AR B

kwE  ATEHEZ  ATEHEZ REERM
RHRE RBEAE (BR) SHEE SREEZRR REEET 2EXH
HK$ HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
B BBER BBER BBER ABER
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+-A=1+-8 3333 860,000,000 216 18,576.0 4980.0
9988 12,800 2072 2.7 0.4
Disposal HE 9988 12,800 2166 (28) - - -
Realised fair value changes BERATERY
(including transaction cost) (BERHHRE) 9988 0.1 0.1 - 0.1
Unrealised fair value changes FERATER 3333 (5762.0) (5762.0) - (57620)
(5,764.7) (57619) - (57619)
Transfer to retained profits LEREEE
upon disposal RERM 9988 (05)
Net dividend income REWAFE 3333 19676 -
Net finance costs HBERTE (313) -
Profit/other comprehensive ~ AEE %7/
expenses for the Year Hft2EXE 1,936.3 (5,761.9)
At 31 December 2020 RZB-%f%
+ZA=t-H 3333 860,000,000 149 12,814.0 (782.0)
Percentage to total assets ~ {HEEBECEA L
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-BE
tZA=t-A 34.2%
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+=A=1-A 38.4%
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Other Income and Expenses

Other income for the Year, which mainly came from surrender premium
and dilapidations settlement received from tenants in respect of properties
in the United Kingdom, rental services income, leasing administration
services and property administration services income increased to
HK$281.3 million (2019: HK$20.8 million (restated)), representing an
increase of 12.5 times. The increase was mainly due to surrender premium
and dilapidations settlement received from tenants in respect of properties
in the United Kingdom in aggregate of HK$249.8 million (2019: HK$2.0

million) was recorded during the Year.

During the Year, administrative expenses increased by 19.0% to HK$320.6
million (2019: HK$269.5 million). The increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the increase in depreciation of right-of-use assets of
HK$42.9 million during the Year. Finance costs decreased by 41.8% to
HK$215.6 million (2019: HK$370.2 million) during the Year, including
exchange loss of HK$13.1 million (2019: exchange gain of HK$4.3 million)
on translation of foreign currency other borrowings hedged for foreign
currency securities investments and exchange loss of HK$7.1 million (2019:
exchange gain of HK$9.5 million) on translation of foreign currency bank
borrowing and loan. The decrease in finance costs was mainly due to the

decrease in total borrowings and interest rates during the Year.

Other gains and losses for the Year recorded a loss of HK$4.9 million
mainly comprised write-down of stock of properties (2019: HK$12.3
million comprised loss on dissolution of subsidiaries of HK$10.6 million,
write-down of stock of properties of HK$0.7 million and allowance for credit

losses recognised in respect of advances to associates of HK$1.0 million).
Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

The share of results of investments accounted for using the equity method
for the Year recorded a loss of HK$38.4 million (2019: profit of HK$209.7
million), comprised loss from the share of results of associates of HK$35.6
million and a joint venture of HK$2.8 million (2019: profit from the share
of results of associates of HK$5.0 million and a joint venture of HK$204.7

million).

The share of results of associates turned from profit to loss was mainly
derived from (a) decrease in fair value of investment properties held by
associates; and (b) share of loss from Hilton Beijing (50% interest) as

business was severely affected by COVID-19 pandemic.
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RESULTS (contd)

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method (Cont'd)

During the Year, the Group acquired remaining 49% interest in Landrich
(H.K.) Limited, details were disclosed in the paragraph headed "Other
Information and Event After the Reporting Period” in the section headed

“Chairman'’s Statement” of this annual report.
Fair Value Changes on Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were revalued at 31 December 2020 by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.l.
Appraisals”) whereas investment properties in the United Kingdom were
revalued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”). B.l.
Appraisals and Peak Vision Appraisals are independent property valuers.
An unrealised loss on fair value changes of investment properties of
HK$1,549.2 million (2019: HK$742.7 million) was recorded during the
Year. The unrealised fair value change is a non-cash item and will not affect

the cash flow of the Group.

PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES

Profit

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$622.2
million as compared to HK$790.2 million for last year. The decrease
in profit for the Year was mainly due to a mix of the following reasons:
(a) decrease in profit from investments and treasury products at FVTPL of
HK$1,666.5 million; (b) increase in unrealised loss on fair value changes
of investment properties of HK$806.5 million; (c) share of results of
investments accounted for using the equity method turned from profit of
HK$209.7 million to loss of HK$38.4 million; (d) decrease in net rental
income; (e) net dividend income of HK$1,967.6 million (2019: nil) was
recognised from the Evergrande Shares during the Year; (f) surrender
premium and dilapidations settlement received from tenants in respect
of properties in the United Kingdom of HK$249.8 million (2019: HK$2.0
million) were recorded during the Year; and (g) no impairment loss of
goodwill (2019: HK$322.9 million) was recognised during the Year.
Earnings per share for the Year was HK$0.33 (2019: HK$0.41).
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES (contd)

Core Profit

If the net loss on the major non-cash items of HK$1,605.1 million (2019:
HK$907.2 million) is excluded, the Group will have a core profit for the
Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$2,227.3 million (2019:
HK$1,697.4 million) and a core profit per share of HK$1.17 (2019:
HK$0.89).

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised fair
value loss on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates and joint venture of HK$1,605.1
million (2019: attributable net unrealised fair value loss on investment
properties together with their respective deferred tax from the Group and
its associates and joint venture of HK$584.3 million and impairment loss of
goodwill of HK$322.9 million).

Dividends

Final dividend of HK1 cent (year ended 31 December 2018: HK10
cents) per share in total amount of HK$19.07 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 was paid in cash on 11 June 2020.

Interim dividend of HK1 cent (half year ended 30 June 2019: HK1 cent)
per share in total amount of HK$19.07 million for the half year ended
30 June 2020 was paid on 7 September 2020.

Total dividends of HK$38.1 million were paid in cash during the Year.

Repurchase

During the Year, the Company had not repurchased any of the Company's

share.
Cash Payment Ratio

Based on (a) the core profit for the Year of HK$2,227.3 million or HK$1.17
per share (2019: HK$1,697.4 million or HK$0.89 per share); and (b) cash
final dividend for the Year of HK1 cent (2019: HK1 cent) per share
proposed; and (c) cash interim dividend for 2020 of HK1 cent (2019:
HK1 cent) per share paid, the ratio of such cash payment to the core profit
is 1.7% (2019: 2.2%).
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES (contd)

Total Comprehensive Expenses

Total comprehensive expenses for the Year attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$4,978.6 million or HK$2.61 per share (2019: HK$283.6
million or HK$0.15 per share), which comprised (a) profit for the Year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$622.2 million (2019:
HK$790.2 million); and (b) other comprehensive expenses for the Year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$5,600.8 million (2019:
HK$1,073.8 million) which mainly included unrealised loss on fair value
changes of listed equity investment at FVTOCI of HK$5,762.0 million (2019:
HK$1,590.6 million), details are disclosed in the sub-paragraph headed
“Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive
Income (b) Implication on Other Comprehensive Expenses for the Year” of
paragraph headed “Securities Investments” above.

NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's net asset value attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to HK$28,758.8 million (2019:
HK$33,568.9 million), a decrease of HK$4,810.1 million or 14.3% when
compared with 31 December 2019. With the total number of ordinary
shares in issue of 1,907,619,079 as at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$15.08 (2019: HK$17.60). The movement in net asset value was
mainly due to (a) total comprehensive expenses for the Year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$4,978.6 million; (b) gain of HK$206.6
million recognised in contribution reserve upon disposal of debt securities
during the Year; and (c) final and interim dividends recognised as

distribution during the Year totaling of HK$38.1 million.

During the Year, loss on fair value changes of the listed equity investments
categorised as financial assets measured at FVTOCI of HK$5,761.9 million
(2019: HK$1,590.6 million) was recorded in other comprehensive
expenses, and the Group transferred the balance of the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve of the disposed listed equity investment of
HK$0.5 million to retained profits. The cumulative amount of loss on fair
value changes of listed equity investment(s) included in financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve as at 31 December 2020 was HK$782.0
million (2019: cumulative amount of gain on fair value changes of
HK$4,980.4 million).

Other than the existing projects and those disclosed in the final results, the
Group did not have material acquisition or disposal of assets and any future

plans for material investment or capital assets.
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NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

The Group recorded net current liabilities as at 31 December 2020 of
HK$1,508.9 million (2019: HK$1,138.6 million), of which current assets
were HK$4,272.0 million (2019: HK$8,653.9 million) and current liabilities
were HK$5,780.9 million (2019: HK$9,792.5 million). The position was
mainly due to certain of the Group's current liabilities had been utilised to

finance the Group's non-current assets.

In the consolidated statement of financial position and within securities
investment activities, which comprised of bonds, listed equity investments
and structured products, the total carrying amount as at 31 December
2020 was HK$16,306.8 million (2019: HK$27,554.2 million). Included
in non-current assets were part of the bonds in the sum of HK$1,571.3
million (2019: HK$1,607.4 million) presented as financial assets measured
at FVTPL and listed equity investment(s) in the sum of HK$12,814.0
million (2019: HK$18,578.7 million) presented as financial assets
measured at FVTOCI. Included in current assets were part of the bonds,
listed investments held-for-trading and structured products in the sum of
HK$1,921.5 million (2019: bonds of HK$7,368.1 million) presented as
financial assets measured at FVTPL. Margin loans utilised to finance the
securities investments in both non-current and current assets in the sum
of HK$1,074.1 million (2019: HK$7,128.4 million) were presented as

borrowings in current liabilities.

The ratio of margin loans against pledged securities investments was
loan-to-value ratio, which was 8.3% (2019: 25.9%) as at 31 December
2020. In accordance with the terms and conditions of margin loans facility
agreements of the Group with financial institutions, among others, as long
as the securities investments maintained market value which is in excess
of pre-defined loan-to-value ratios as set out by the financial institutions,
the margin loans upon interest payment due date would be roll-overed
month-for-month, and repayment of margin loans by the Group to financial
institutions would not be required. As such, very often margin loans
of the Group which were presented as current liabilities would not be
current and would be repayable over one year. As at 31 December 2020,
the outstanding margin loans amounted to HK$1,074.1 million (2019:
HK$7,128.4 million) were recorded in current liabilities. In the event that
the Group intends to reduce or repay part of the margin loans, the Group
might, among others, dispose of some of the securities investments to

effect the payment.
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NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (contd)

Securities investments and treasury products of the Group were frequently
traded in the market, and formed part of the Group’s treasury management.
They were presented as non-current assets and current assets according to

their intended holding periods.

If the entire securities investments and treasury products of the Group as at
31 December 2020 were presented as current assets, current assets would
be increased by HK$14,385.3 million (2019: HK$20,186.1 million), and
net current liabilities position of HK$1,508.9 million (2019: HK$1,138.6
million) would become net current assets position of HK$12,876.4 million
(2019: HK$19,047.5 million).

The Group believes that the net current liabilities position as at
31 December 2020 would not have adverse financial effect to the Group's
liquidity or gearing position and the Group has ability to continue as a going

concern.
SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management and invest in securities investments and treasury
products with attractive yield and good prospect in order to bring stable
and satisfactory realised return in long run. During the Year, the Group
diversified the bonds portfolio comprised of the bonds issued by overseas

financial institutions and PRC-based real estate companies.

As at 31 December 2020, the portfolio of securities investments and
treasury products of HK$16,306.8 million (2019: HK$27,554.2 million)
comprised (a) bonds, structured products and listed investments held-
for-trading (presented as financial assets measured at FVTPL (non-current
and current assets)) in aggregate of HK$3,492.8 million (2019: bonds
of HK$8,975.5 million); and (b) listed equity investment(s) (presented
as financial assets measured at FVTOCI) of HK$12,814.0 million (2019:
HK$18,578.7 million), representing 43.5% (2019: 57.0%) of total assets.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are
elaborated below:

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income

In prior years, the Group had acquired 860,000,000 shares of China
Evergrande and recorded as financial assets measured at FVTOCI.
During the Year, there was no acquisition or disposal of shares of China
Evergrande. The Group held 860,000,000 shares of China Evergrande,
representing approximately 6.5% of the total issued share capital of China
Evergrande as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2019, the cumulative unrealised gain on fair value
change of the Evergrande Shares was HK$4,980.0 million and the
carrying amount of the Evergrande Shares was HK$18,576.0 million. After
deducting the unrealised fair value loss of HK$5,762.0 million for the
Year, the carrying amount of the Evergrande Shares as at 31 December
2020 was HK$12,814.0 million, representing 34.2% (2019: 38.4%)
of total assets. The cumulative unrealised gain on fair value change of
the Evergrande Shares of HK$4,980.0 million as at 31 December 2019
turned to unrealised loss on fair value change of HK$782.0 million as at
31 December 2020, which was recorded in the financial assets measured
at FVTOCI reserve.

China Evergrande group is principally engaged in property development,
property investment, property management, new energy vehicle business,
hotel operations, finance business, internet business and health industry
business in the PRC. According to the audited consolidated financial
statements of China Evergrande for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, the revenue and profit attributable to shareholders were
Renminbi (“RMB") 477.6 billion (2018: RMB466.2 billion) and RMB17.3
billion (2018: RMB37.4 billion) respectively; while the total assets and
total equity were RMB2,206.6 billion (2018: RMB1,880.0 billion) and
RMB358.5 billion (2018: RMB308.6 billion) respectively, the net debt
was RMB571.1 billion (2018: RMB468.9 billion). In accordance with the
unaudited consolidated financial statements of China Evergrande for the
six months ended 30 June 2020, the revenue and profit attributable to
shareholders were RMB266.6 billion and RMB6.5 billion respectively; while
the total assets and total equity were RMB2,299.1 billion and RMB316.5
billion respectively, the net debt was RMB630.8 billion. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of another listed equity
investment at FVTOCI was HK$2.7 million, after recorded a net realised
gain of HK$0.1 million (2019: an unrealised gain on fair value change of
HK$0.4 million) and was decreased by a disposal of HK$2.8 million (2019:
nil), the carrying amount of that listed equity investment at FVTOCI became
nil. The cumulative fair value gain together with the transaction costs in the
financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve of that listed equity investment

disposed of amounted to HK$0.5 million was transferred to retained profits.

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or

Loss

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the bonds presented as
financial assets measured at FVTPL was HK$8,975.5 million. During the
Year, the bonds portfolio was decreased by a net disposal of HK$5,266.1
million (including disposal to Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan of HK$6,377.6 million
and net acquisition from third parties of HK$1,111.5 million). After
deducting the fair value loss of HK$421.8 million recognised in profit or
loss, the bonds portfolio of the Group became HK$3,287.6 million as at
31 December 2020, representing 8.8% (2019: 18.6%) of total assets,

which formed part of the Group’s cash management activities.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2020, the bonds portfolio comprised bonds issued
by overseas financial institutions of 9.4% (2019: 40.5%), PRC-based
real estate companies of 90.6% (2019: 55.9%) and no other industries
(2019: 3.6%). They are denominated in different currencies with 91.4%
(2019: 97.0%) in United States dollar ("US$"), 8.0% (2019: 3.0%) in
Pound Sterling (“GBP") and 0.6% (2019: nil) in Euro ("EUR"). The bonds
denominated in US$ carry at fixed rate range from 7.000% to 13.000%
(2019: 4.750% to 13.750%) per annum of which notional amount
of US$188.2 million (2019: US$937.0 million) are callable, all bonds
denominated in GBP carry at fixed rate range from 5.875% to 7.250%
(2019: 5.875% to 7.250%) per annum of notional amount of GBP23.5
million (2019: GBP24.5 million) are callable and bond denominated in
EUR carries at fixed rate of 6.125% of notional amount of EUR2.0 million
(2019: nil) is callable. As at 31 December 2020, the bonds portfolio
comprised of 27 bonds (2019: 34 bonds); in terms of credit rating, non-
investment grade and unrated were 18 bonds and 9 bonds (2019:
investment grade, non-investment grade and unrated were 5 bonds, 26
bonds and 3 bonds) respectively. In terms of maturity, 5 bonds (2019:
17 bonds) were contingent convertible bonds issued by overseas financial
institutions which were perpetual with no fixed tenor, 22 bonds (2019: 17
bonds) issued by issuers other than overseas financial institutions of which
21 bonds (2019: 17 bonds) will be matured between 2021 to 2025
(2019: between 2020 to 2046) and remaining 1 bond (2019: nil) was
perpetual bond.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW B # £ % 51 B8

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd) EERE®

The respective securities investments under different categories are LA N REER 2 B AR EEH &t « (8)
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or BREZURMATEZRERMEER (B
Loss (Cont'd)

Details and movement of the bonds portfolio at the end of the reporting ~ RHEHAREHBA B REBHI AT

period are set out below:

Overseas
financial PRC-based
institutions real estate Others Total
BHERKE FEEHE Hity @
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEART BEART o BEHBT
Movement of bonds portfolio BHRERZEE
Carrying amounts BHEE
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NEF+ZR=1+—H 36324 5,015.1 3280 8,975.5
Purchases BA 17.2 2,0123 10.1 2,039.6
Disposals )= (3,096.0) (3915.3) (294.9) (7,305.7)
Fair value changes ATEZD
(recognised in profit or loss) (RMBERER) (244.1) (134.0) (43.7) (4218)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-Z5+-A=t—H 309.5 2,978.1 - 3,287.6
Percentage to total assets HEERBEZED
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF+=-A=+-H 0.8% 8.0% - 8.8%
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—H 7.5% 10.4% 0.7% 18.6%
At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019
R-ZB-FEF+-A=+-H RZE-AF+ZA=1—H
Percentage Percentage
HK$ million to total HK$ million to total
BEBAT (HAEzBEIW BEBTL (HBEZEANL
Bond issuers by industry REFBOTAZTE
Carrying amounts BEE
Overseas financial institutions BINE RIS 309.5 9.4% 36324 40.5%
PRC-based real estate HEEE 2,978.1 90.6% 5,015.1 55.9%
Others Hit - - 3280 3.6%
3,287.6 100.0% 8,975.5 100.0%
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd) EERE®

The respective securities investments under different categories are LA TNELRREZER] 2 5B AR A EL Sl « (8)
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or BRBHEURMRATFEZRERMEER(E)

Loss (Cont'd)

Details and movement of the bonds portfolio at the end of the reporting ~ RBWEHRESFMEE 2FBREBEINMT « (8B)

period are set out below: (Cont'd)

At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019
R=2-BF+-A=t+-A R-_F-hF+-A=t—H
Coupon rate Percentage Coupon rate Percentage
(per annum) HKS$ million to total (per annum) HK$ million to total
REERE BERT LBEZEAL RRERE BEAT RREZANNL
Bonds by currency RES2EH
Carrying amounts HREE
Us$ e 7.000% to 3,004.6 91.4% 4.750% to 8,710.3 97.0%
13.000% 13.750%
1.000E % 4750E %
13.000E 13,750
GBP B 5.875% to 262.6 8.0% 5.875% to 265.2 3.0%
1.250% 7.250%
5.875E% 5.875E%
1.250E 72502
EUR BT 6.125% 204 0.6% n/a = =
6.125F NiEf
3,287.6 100.0% 8,975.5 100.0%
Investment in China Evergrande RHABRERZRE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's securities investments in an entity 7
with a value which exceeds 5% of the Group's total assets is investments in ~ FA5EEEERHAER 2 EEHAFESD  ZIBREA
China Evergrande. The Group's securities investments in China Evergrande R

kol

“ER-REFTA=+—RH  AEER-EBZ

FEEXZRE AKRERPEEAZEBHFKRE

including listed shares and bonds amounted to HK$13,414.2 million (2019: (1 LMK &E%) A13,414,200,0008 T (==
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Investment in China Evergrande (Cont'd)

The Group held 860,000,000 shares of China Evergrande at a total
consideration (including transaction costs) of HK$13,596.0 million.
As at 31 December 2020, the market value of the Evergrande Shares
was HK$12,814.0 million (2019: HK$18,576.0 million), there was net
dividend income of HK$1,967.6 million (after transaction costs) for the
Year. During the Year, the Group disposed of 4 bonds which were issued
by China Evergrande and its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Scenery
Journey Limited (collectively “Evergrande Group”) recorded a realised loss
of HK$77.0 million and relevant interest income of HK$104.0 million in
profit or loss and gain of HK$155.3 million in the contribution reserve. As
at 31 December 2020, the Group also held 6 bonds which were issued by
the Evergrande Group.

Details and performance of the 6 bonds issued by the Evergrande Group
as at 31 December 2020 and for the Year are summarised as follows:

Acquisition

Bonds Name of issuer cost
&% SN W R A
HK$ million
BEET
Evergrande 8.75% China Evergrande Group 6.2
fER8.750% HEEAKHE
Evergrande 10.5% China Evergrande Group 40.1
fER10.5% PEEALHE
Evergrande 12% China Evergrande Group 1127
BEA12% hEEALE
Scenery Journey 11.5% Scenery Journey Limited 29.6
£1211.5% FRARAF
Scenery Journey 12% Scenery Journey Limited 14.7
R1212% FREARDT
Scenery Journey 13% Scenery Journey Limited 4385
=1213% FRERRA

R-B-2£+-A=1+-H
BEAEEzES

Evergrande Group's bonds

at 31 December 2020 641.8

Evergrande 8.75% bond carries fixed coupon rate of 8.75% per annum. It
is denominated in US$ and matures on 28 June 2025. The bond is listed
on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX-ST") and the Stuttgart Stock Exchange and rated “B3e" by
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody's").

Evergrande 10.5% bond carries fixed coupon rate of 10.5% per annum. It

is denominated in US$ and matures on 11 April 2024. The bond is listed
on the SGX-ST and rated “B2" by Moody's.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Investment in China Evergrande (Cont'd)

Evergrande 12% bond carries fixed coupon rate of 12% per annum. It is
denominated in US$ and matures on 22 January 2024. The bond is listed
on the SGX-ST and rated “B2" by Moody's.

Scenery Journey 11.5% bond carries fixed coupon rate of 11.5% per
annum. It is denominated in US$ and matures on 24 October 2022. The
bond is listed on the SCX-ST and rated “B2" by Moody's.

Scenery Journey 12% bond carries fixed coupon rate of 12% per annum.
It is denominated in US$ and matures on 24 October 2023. The bond is
listed on the SGX-ST and rated “B2" by Moody's.

Scenery Journey 13% bond carries fixed coupon rate of 13% per annum.
It is denominated in US$ and matures on 6 November 2022. The bond is
listed on the SGX-ST and rated “B2e" by Moody's.

China Evergrande group is principally engaged in property development,
property investment, property management, new energy vehicle business,
hotel operations, finance business, internet business and health industry
business in the PRC. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 3333). China Evergrande is one of the
leading real estate developers in the PRC with strong property sale and
reasonable profit margin. The Group believes that dividend payment from
the Evergrande Shares will provide steady income to the Group. Bonds
issued by the Evergrande Group carry attractive coupon interest rates which
the Group believes that it will enhance investment return from treasury
management perspective.

Unlisted Securities Investments

The Group invested in an exempted limited partnership formed under the
Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and
the carrying amount was HK$467.9 million as at 31 December 2019.
During the Year, the Group has contributed US$1.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$8.3 million) and received distribution of US$2.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$17.6 million) (which were included in
financial assets measured at FVTOCI), after adding the fair value gain for
the Year of HK$30.0 million (which was recognised in financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve), the carrying amount was HK$488.6 million
as at 31 December 2020, representing 1.39% (2019: 1.0%) of total assets.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management procedures that
enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risk it
faces. This is supplemented by active management involvement, effective
internal controls and adequate internal audit in the best interests of the
Group.
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EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
were 1,907,619,079.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total debt amounted to HK$7,389.0
million (2019: HK$13,574.3 million), comprised bank and other
borrowings of HK$7,263.8 million (2019: HK$13,442.3 million) and lease
liabilities amounted to HK$125.2 million (2019: HK$132.0 million). Cash
and deposits at banks amounted to HK$1,654.5 million (2019: HK$565.3
million), pledged deposits amounted to HK$260.5 million (2019:
HK$274.2 million) and net debt (including lease liabilities) amounted to
HK$5,474.0 million (2019: HK$12,734.8 million).

Total debt to equity ratio (including lease liabilities) was 25.7% (2019:
40.4%) and net debt to equity ratio (including lease liabilities) was 19.0%
(2019: 37.9%), which are expressed as a percentage of total debt, and
net debt, respectively, over the total equity of HK$28,780.3 million (2019:
HK$33,590.4 million). The decrease in both ratios was mainly due to

decrease in total debt and net debt.

If the securities investments and treasury products of HK$16,306.8 million
(2019: HK$27,554.2 million) are included, there would be a net cash
position of HK$10,832.8 million (2019: HK$14,819.4 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank and other borrowings of
HK$7,263.8 million, 73.19%, 12.8% and 14.1% were repayable within
1 year, 1 to 2 years and 2 to 5 years respectively. Of which the Group's
bank and other borrowings were denominated in HK$ (28.2%), GBP
(54.4%), US$ (17.0%) and EUR (0.4%) before entering the cross
currency swap. HK$, GBP and EUR securities investments were hedged
by HK$, GBP and EUR borrowings. During the Year, the Group has
entered into short term US$/HK$ cross currency swap to enhance interest
payable on borrowing, and as at 31 December 2020, notional amount
of approximately US$159.7 million was outstanding. The Group's bank
borrowings were carried at interest rates calculated with reference to cost of
funds, Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") or London Interbank
Offered Rate; other borrowings were carried at interest rates calculated
with reference to cost of funds or HIBOR. As at 31 December 2020, all
the Group's borrowings were on floating rate basis. Except as disclosed, no

hedging for interest rate is subsisted at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged the following assets with

their respective carrying amounts:

@

(b)

©

The Group's investment properties of HK$12,387.0 million (2019:
HK$12,248.6 million) and bank deposits of HK$233.2 million (2019:
HK$255.8 million) were pledged to the banks to secure general

banking and loan facilities granted to the Group.

The Group's bonds, listed equity investments and structured product
with carrying amounts of HK$12,877.3 million (2019: bonds and
listed equity investments of HK$27,554.2 million) and cash deposits
of HK$27.3 million (2019: HK$18.4 million) were pledged to
the financial institutions to secure margin and securities facilities
granted to the Group in respect of securities transactions, of which
HK$1,074.1 million (2019: HK$7,128.4 million) was utilised as at

31 December 2020 as borrowings due within one year.

Interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged
as part of the security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to

the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had subordinated and assigned

its advance to a joint venture of HK$158.8 million to a bank to secure a

banking facility granted to the joint venture.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES

Interest income was included in revenue and investment income. Interest
income for the Year decreased to HK$603.4 million (2019: HK$724.9

million), representing a decrease of 16.8% as compared with last year

which was mainly due to the decrease in bonds portfolio and hence its

relevant interest income during the Year.
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FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES
(Cont'd)

Finance costs included interest expenses on bank and other borrowings
and lease liabilities; exchange difference on translation of foreign
currency borrowings; and arrangement fee and facility and commitment
fee expenses. Interest expenses (excluding interest expenses on lease
liabilities) for the Year amounted to HK$185.4 million, representing a
decrease of 50.7% over last year of HK$375.8 million. Interest capitalised
for the Year was HK$2.8 million (2019: nil). The decrease in interest
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in total borrowings and interest
rates during the Year. The average interest rate over the year under review
was 1.99% (2019: 2.67%), which was expressed as a percentage of total
interest paid (excluding interest on lease liabilities) over the average total

interest-bearing borrowings.
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 475 staff (2019:
481 staff) including about 236 staff (2019: 235 staff) employed under the
estate management company in Hong Kong and 1 staff (2019: 1 staff) in

the United Kingdom.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages
comprised salary and year-end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The executive Directors continued
to review employees’ contributions and to provide them with necessary

incentives and flexibility for their better commitment and performance.
UNITED KINGDOM AND MAINLAND CHINA

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's investment properties in the
United Kingdom with carrying amount of GBP719.7 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,614.2 million) (2019: GBP788.2 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$8,051.1 million)) incurred a net loss of HK$396.7
million (2019: HK$813.0 million) to the Group for the Year, the loss
mainly included in gross profit, other income, fair value changes on
investment properties, finance costs and taxation. GBP exchange gain
of foreign operations included in other comprehensive expenses for the
Year amounted to HK$132.5 million (2019: HK$114.3 million). As at
31 December 2020, the Group’s net investment in the United Kingdom
amounted to HK$4,025.4 million (2019: HK$4,129.6 million) representing
14.0% (2019: 12.3%) of the Group's total equity.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

UNITED KINGDOM AND MAINLAND CHINA
(Cont'd)

Loss incurred by the Group's investment in Mainland China (mainly
included in fair value changes on investment properties, share of results
of investments accounted for using the equity method and taxation) for
the Year amounted to HK$44.3 million (2019: HK$24.5 million). RMB
exchange gain of foreign operations included in other comprehensive
expenses (including share of investments accounted for using the equity
method) for the Year amounted to HK$30.0 million (2019: exchange loss
of HK$11.6 million). The Group's net investment in Mainland China as at
31 December 2020 amounted to HK$518.1 million (2019: HK$536.6
million) representing 1.8% (2019: 1.6%) of the Group's total equity.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group's investment properties in
Hong Kong and Mainland China as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
were carried out by B.Il. Appraisals, independent qualified professional
valuer. For the investment properties in the United Kingdom, the property
valuations as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were carried out by Peak
Vision Appraisals, another independent qualified professional valuer. Their
valuations were based on investment method and/or direct comparison
method and/or residual method as the valuation methodologies and were

used in preparing 2020 final results.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$14,373.3 million
(2019: HK$14,759.5 million), a decrease of 9.7% over 2019 after
adjusted for the additions and exchange adjustments of investment
properties during the Year. The decrease in fair value of HK$1,549.2 million
was recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the Year. The Group also shared a decrease in fair value of investment
properties of associates and a joint venture of HK$62.3 million in total for
the Year.

The decrease in fair value of HK$1,549.2 million was mainly derived from
the decrease in fair value of Harcourt House and Causeway Place in Hong
Kong and River Court in the United Kingdom. The spreading of COVID-19
pandemic has adversely affected the fair value of investment properties of
the Group. The fair value change is a non-cash item and will not affect the

cash flow of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEREREES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) and management of
the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group™) are committed to
principles of good corporate governance so as to safeguard the interests of

shareholders and enhance value to the shareholders.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 (the "Year"), the Company
had applied the principles and complied with substantial code provisions
(the “Code Provisions") and certain recommended best practices set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD

Board Composition

During the Year, the Board comprised four Executive Directors ("ED(s)"),
two Non-executive Directors (“NED(s)") and three Independent Non-
executive Directors (“INED(s)"), with INEDs representing one-third of the
Board. Names of each member of the Board are set out in this Corporate

Governance Report.

During the Year, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai acted as the Chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and Ms. Chan, Sze-wan acted as the Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ"). The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated and their

respective roles and responsibilities were set out in writing.

“List of Directors and their Role and Function” has been maintained at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Directors’
biographies and the relationship among the Board members, if any, are
set out in the Profiles of Directors of this annual report and available on
the Company's website. Save as disclosed in such profiles, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the

Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (contd)

Responsibilities of Directors

The NEDs and INEDs with diversified expertise, skills and experience play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of corporate governance as well as taking
the lead where potential conflict of interests arises. INEDs bring strong
independent judgement, knowledge and experience to the Board. The
Board has received from each INED a written annual confirmation of his/
her independence and satisfied that the independence of INEDs up to the

date of this annual report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.

On monthly basis, senior management provides the Directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. All Directors are kept informed of and duly briefed of major
changes and information that may affect the Group’s businesses in a timely

manner.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged
to access and consult with the Company's senior management or the

company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) independently.
Retirement by Rotation and Specific Term of Office

The Company's Bye-laws provides that no Director (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Directors’ appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election by the shareholders at
the annual general meetings. Accordingly, Directors shall retire by rotation
at least once every three years and a specific term of office has been fixed
for appointment of Directors. During the Year, there was no executive

chairman or managing director in the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT #¥EA

THE BOARD (contd)

Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall strategy,
the operational and financial performance of the Group. Four regular
Board meetings were held during the Year. Advance notices of not less
than fourteen days were served upon each Director for regular Board
meetings. All accompanying Board papers were sent to the Directors in a
timely manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other
period as agreed). Adequate explanation and information were given to the
Directors by the management to facilitate the Directors in decision-making.
Each Director has to declare his/her interest and abstain from voting on
any resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associate has a material
interest in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing

Rules.

The agenda of each Board meeting is set by the Chairman in consultation
with members of the Board such that they are given an opportunity to
include agenda items. Draft and executed Board minutes were sent in
good time to all Directors for their comments and records. Minutes of the
Board meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company

Secretary.
Board and Management Functions

The functions reserved to the Board are basically provided in the Bye-
laws of the Company and the Board from time to time delegates certain
functions to senior management whenever required. In short, the Board
has reserved for its decision on matters relating to the Group's strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, annual and
interim results, Directors’ appointment and other significant financial and

operational issues.

On top of daily business operation, senior management is responsible for
the preparation of annual and interim consolidated financial statements
for the Board's approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
control and sound risk management practices and is required to report to
the Board and obtain its prior approval on important matters at all times.
Notwithstanding the delegation, the Directors acknowledge that it is the
responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial statements, which give

a true and fair view of the financial results of the Group.
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THE BOARD (Contd) EEg®
Directors’ Training and Support EERIIREE

The Company encourages its Directors to possess up-to-date knowledge AR A HE S EEH I ZE ST N UET LB
in order to discharge their duties. Information regarding major changes in & > BRAE SIS R EER & L8 BIA R H Ab Xk
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Listing Rules as well as other & ##l /RS AEE 2 EHBERETEES -
laws/rules/regulations had been provided to the Directors.

During the Year, the Company has arranged a training session for the RAFE AR A ABELTH T —AHFIl - A
Directors regarding “Tightened Restrictions on Backdoor Listing and Other BRI E H B3k L 2B 5 R E M EWHRA 215
Amendments on Listing Rules”. The training was delivered by lawyers atthe  &]] ° &ZiZlm 2B EERE  EABARR L -
expense of the Company. Meanwhile, Directors had provided their record ~ E2IItER - EEEAA QA GHIRHEENGLEE - 25
of trainings to the Company. The Board considered the trainings attended ERAEZMSHZFIIRUNERSEITERE -
by the Directors are sufficient to discharge their duties. A summary of the EERAFEARNMSEZEZIHEMT ¢

trainings attended by the Directors during the Year is as follows:

Training Matters 3% 3| 518

Accounting/
Regulatory/ Tax/
Corporate Legal Finance Business/
Governance EEHTE &5t Economic
Name of Directors EEHS TEER e B MK mEKE
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan* [ReFmB 1> C C - c
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan FRYLERZ T c c = <
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan [t o c c = €
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai AR T4 a&ec a&ec a&c a&c
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai By et € € = c
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai A EEL+ C C - C
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai PR B & ST & a&ec a&ec a&c a&c
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping BENYZL ab&c a,ba&c a&ec a&ec
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun SRELAE ab&c a&c a&c a&c
Notes: BisE -
Training Method 1= =
a: attending seminar/webinar a: 2HMNE @ LEHIe
b: E-Training b: 4 LFII
¢ self-reading c: Bf7BIE
*  Resigned on 17 February 2021. * RZEZ—FZATHHBHE-

“ECZFEER  EABXEE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”) with
clear written terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the CG Code. Details of the respective committee’s terms
of reference are available at the Company's and the Stock Exchange's
websites. All the INEDs, i.e. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-
ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun are members of the Board Committees with
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai acts as chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee while Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping acts as chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The members of Audit Committee possess
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or related financial

management expertise, which is higher than the Listing Rules’ requirement.

All accompanying meeting papers were sent to the members in a timely
manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). Draft and executed minutes of the meetings were sent in
good time to all members for their comments and records. Minutes of
the meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company
Secretary. Professional advice and sufficient resources would be given
whenever necessary to allow the Board Committees to discharge their

duties.

Audit Committee

Role and Function

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's corporate
governance, financial reporting, risk management and internal control. It

plays an advisory role and makes relevant recommendations to the Board.

Meetings

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year, with the
presence of the representative(s) of the Group’s internal audit department
(the “Internal Audit Department”) in those meetings involving discussion
on internal audit reports prepared by Internal Audit Department. Senior
management was co-opted to join the meetings of the Audit Committee
to explain the financial and business conditions of the Group to the

committee members from time to time.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarised

below:

(1) reviewed the Group's final and interim results and draft consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
and for the six months ended 30 June 2020 respectively before
recommending them to the Board for approval, with the presence of
the Company's external auditors (the “Independent Auditors”) in the

meeting reviewing final results;

(2) reviewed the overall performance including the performance of

investment properties and development properties of the Group;

(3) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the requirements of the Listing Rules and statutory

compliance;

(4) recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the Independent

Auditors for shareholders' approval;

(5) reviewed the Group's internal control, risk management, financial

reporting and auditing matters;

(6) reviewed and discussed significant audit findings in a meeting with

the presence of Independent Auditors;

(7) prepared and submitted to the Board an audit committee report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during the
year 2019, presented its findings and made recommendations to

the Board for consideration;

(8) carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions

of the Group;

(9) reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit

functions, and their training programmes and budget;

(10) discussed with Independent Auditors the nature and scope of the
annual audit and reporting obligations of the Independent Auditors
for the Year; reviewed and approved the terms of engagement

letters, and fees for audit and non-audit services for the Year;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed (Cont'd)

an

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

a7

(18)

(19)

(20)

@n

(22)

reviewed the arrangement for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
related matters;

reviewed and discussed internal audit reports prepared by Internal
Audit Department;

considered and approved the internal audit plan for the year 2021;
reviewed the effectiveness of internal audit function;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance, compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the compliance of such

policies and practices;

reviewed the code of conduct for the Directors and the compliance
of such code;

reviewed the code of practice for employees;

reviewed the sufficiency of training and continuous professional
development for the Directors and senior executives;

reviewed the progress of risk management;

reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management and
internal control systems; and

reviewed the impact of adoption of new Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

In March 2021, the Audit Committee reviewed (i) the Group's final results

and draft audited consolidated financial statements for the Year; (i) the

Company's compliance with the CG Code during the Year and disclosure

in the Corporate Governance Report; (iii) the sufficiency of training and

continuous professional development for Directors and senior executives

for the Year; (iv) the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management

and internal control systems for the Year; and (v) the effectiveness of

internal audit function of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee also

made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring

Independent Auditors for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “2021 AGM").
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Independent Auditors

In order to enhance independent reporting by Independent Auditors, the
engagement director of the Independent Auditors is subject to periodical
rotation, and the nature and ratio of annual fees payable to Independent
Auditors for non-audit services and for audit services are subject to scrutiny
by the Audit Committee. A policy of non-audit services from Independent
Auditors was established. The Audit Committee considers whether there
is clear efficiency and value-added benefit to the Company from that
work being undertaken by the Independent Auditors; whether there is
adverse effect on the independence of their audit work or the perception
of such independence; the nature of the non-audit services envisaged
to be provided by the Independent Auditors; and the related fee levels
individually and in aggregate relative to the audit fees. In addition, a
policy restricting the employment of employees or former employees of
Independent Auditors as senior executives or financial positions with the

Group has also been in place.

During the Year, the Independent Auditors had been engaged in providing
non-audit services in relation to (i) annual review of continuing connected
transactions at a fee of HK$100,000; and (ii) a project in relation to
disposal of debt securities at a fee of HK$450,000. The audit fees of the
Independent Auditors for auditing the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year was HK$2,064,500. The relevant engagement

letters had been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Prior to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the Independent Auditors’ independence
and objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement as well as the nature

and scope of the audit and reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of their review of the
engagement process, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the

Independent Auditors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee
Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the remuneration
policies for all Directors and senior executives. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible to review regularly and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of individual EDs and senior executives
as well as the remuneration of NEDs. It would consult the Chairman or the

CEO on the remuneration proposals whenever it thinks fit.

The objective of remunerating the Directors and senior executives of the
Company is to ensure that there is an appropriate level of remuneration to
attract and retain experienced businessmen or professionals of high calibre
to act as the Directors and senior executives to oversee the Company's

businesses and development.

Meeting

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.
Works Performed

The works performed by the Remuneration Committee in the Year are

summarised below:

(1) assessed the performance of an ED; reviewed and recommended to

the Board the ED's remuneration packages for the Year; and

(2) recommended to the Board to fix the Directors’ fee of NEDs for the

Year.
Remuneration Policy for EDs

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on EDs" remuneration package
is to enable the Company to retain and motivate EDs by linking their reward
with performance as measured against corporate objectives. In determining
guidelines for each reward element, the Company refers to remuneration

surveys on companies operating in similar businesses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)
Remuneration Policy for NEDs and INEDs

The Directors' fees of NEDs and INEDs are subject to annual assessment
with reference to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
conditions as appropriate. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket

expenses incurred in connection with performance of their duties.
Nomination Committee
Role and Function

The role of the Nomination Committee is to lead the process and make
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as additional
appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in the light of challenges and opportunities facing the Company,

as well as business development and requirements of the Company.
Meeting

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.
Works Performed

The works performed by the Nomination Committee in the Year are

summarised below:

(1) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

and

(2) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors for

shareholders’ approval.

In March 2021, the Nomination Committee made recommendation to the
Board on the re-appointment of retiring Directors for shareholders” approval
at the 2021 AGM. It also assessed the independence of INEDs, including
those served more than nine years who are subject to re-election at the
2021 AGM.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Nomination Policy, Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size, composition
and diversity (including the evaluation of skills, knowledge, professional
experience, cultural and educational background, gender and age of the
Board members and assessment on the independence of the INEDs) of
the Board at least annually. It is responsible for making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy and succession planning for the Directors from time
to time and selecting suitable and qualified individuals to become Board
members. In evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship,
the Nomination Committee considers the character and integrity; skills
and expertise; professional and educational background; potential time
commitment for the board and/or committee responsibilities; and the
elements of the Board Diversity Policy as stated below etc. The Nomination
Committee makes recommendation to the Board to appoint the
appropriate person among the candidates nominated for directorship. The
Board appoints suitable candidate(s) in accordance with the Bye-laws of

the Company and the Listing Rules.
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse
board, and sees increasing diversity at board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage and achieving long-term
sustainable growth for the Group. A board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) has been adopted since September 2013. Elements of
the Board Diversity Policy include gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge of Directors.
The said elements have substantially been included in the current Board

composition.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE REZES

Investment Committee had been established since 2014, comprising Ms.  £&EZEE€H T —MFRY - AMFELZT (K=
Chan, Sze-wan (before 17 February 2021) and Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (on Z=—& - A+t HA) KR BLXET (R T =—
or after 17 February 2021) as chairman, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai as chief ~F= A+t HAE) BEERFE - MK L EDEER
investment officer, Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun as members & #8 - AR XA RERELEEAKREHERK  H
with written terms of reference in place. It is empowered to manage the EZEBEBENCHIT - HEZEGERESEA
investment business of the Group (other than real estate investment) and S EZ R EEBK(EHERERIN) - UERBHER
to make recommendations and provide advice to the Board in relation to ~ B SEEIREBEERNESTSRHEZRER -

investment or potential investment.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS EEHERE
Attendance record of each of the Board members is as follows: FEFENEBCHELHEHIWT ¢
Attendance Record of Directors £ H [F 0 &
Regular Ad hoc Audit ~ Remuneration Nomination  Investment  Annual Special Special
Board Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee  Committee General General General

Meeting Meeting' Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting* Meeting®
EHESE HHEZE  BUZRE  FMZRE REZEE  REZEE  RREE  BREE RRWH

Name of Directors ESHE Lt g3 S Lt EE EE g Kg Kge
Executive Directors UES

Ms. Chan, Sze-wan* BemaLt  4/4(100%) 3/3(100%) NATER  NATER O NATER  4/4(100%)  AbsentHE  AbsentEE  Absent#fE
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan RelEt 4/4(100%)  3/3(100%) NATER  NATER O NATNER O NATER  AbsentHE  AbsentfE  Absent B
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan Raeat 4/4(100%)  3/3(100%) NATER  NARER  NANER  NATER  AbsentHE  AbsentiE  Absent R
Mr. Lam, Knongwi MRS E 44(100%)  3/3(100%) NATER  NARER  NATER  4/4(100%) 1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)

Non-executive Directors FUTES

M Lau, Ming-wai it 4/4(100%)  03(0%)  NATEBR  NATEE  NATER O NATER  AbsentHE  AbsentBE  AbsentHF
Ms. Amy Lau, Yukwei RS v 4/4(100%)  3/3(100%) NATER  NARER O NANER O NATER  AbsentBE  Absent#E  Absent B
Independent Non-executive B3 1T
Directors ES
M. Chan, Kwok-wai RERLE 4/4(100%)  3/3(100%)  4/4(100%)  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)  4/4(100%)  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%) 1/1(100%)
Ms. Phlls Loh, Laiping BESLT  44(00%) 33000  44(00%) 11000 1/1(100%)  NATER  1/1000%)  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)
Nr. Mg, Tsz-chun EBEELE  44000%)  3/3(100%)  44(00%) /1000 11000  4A4000%  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)
Notes: P& -
*  Resigned on 17 February 2021. * RZEBE—FATHHBE-
To avoid conflict of interest, Director(s) was/were absent at ad hoc Board * A#BEEEINZEE EERFETHERNE LRE
meeting(s) that he/she was required to abstain from voting. REZERESFEEE -
* Held on 23 March 2020. *RIBECEFZACFZRBT
@ Held on 28 October 2020. @ RWZEZZF+HA+/\BHET-
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms without deviation from the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"). All Directors, after specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the said code of conduct during the Year.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant employees
(the "Relevant Employees”) who, because of office or employment, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the Group's securities had been requested to follow such code when
dealing in the securities of the Company. All Relevant Employees, after
specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the said code during the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains an effective risk management and internal control systems
and review of their effectiveness through the Audit Committee at least
annually. The Board oversees the Company's senior management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems and acknowledges that such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Internal Audit Department
is responsible for reviewing relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, and reporting their findings and
advice to the Audit Committee.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee and is
independent of the Company’s management, with key tasks to:

(1) assess and monitor internal controls of the Group with unrestricted
direct access right to any levels of management whenever it
considered necessary;

2) conduct comprehensive internal audits of the practices and
p p
procedures, income and expenditures, and internal control of all

business units of the Group on a regular basis; and

(3) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern
identified by the management for corrective actions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Internal Audit (Cont'd)

Internal Audit Department produces an annual internal audit plan
based on a risk assessment methodology for the Audit Committee's
approval. Internal audits are carried out on a regular basis according to
the approved plan. Internal audit reports summarising audit findings
and recommendations are prepared from time to time for the Audit
Committee's review and discussion. Management is responsible for
ensuring that control weaknesses highlighted in internal audits are rectified
within a reasonable period. Internal Audit Department would monitor the

proper implementation of corrective measures.

During the Year, Internal Audit Department had conducted six internal
audits, relevant reports had been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the scope and
quality of works done, and the extent and frequency of communication
of internal audit reports by the Internal Audit Department. The Audit
Committee was also satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal audit

function of the Group.

Risk Management

Risk Management Framework

The Company established an Enterprise Risk Management Framework that
includes a risk management policy and procedures, as well as a designated
risk management officer who helps to deploy the risk management process

across the business.

Risk Management Process

Our risk management process includes risk identification, risk assessment
and prioritisation, risk owner appointment, risk treatment and upward
reporting and monitoring of identified risks to the Audit Committee. A
corporate risk register has been established to track and document the
identified risks, risk owners, mitigating actions and control measures, and

facilitates continuous update of risk treatments.

Half-yearly reviews were conducted to follow up on the significant risks
and related actions as documented in the corporate risk register, and the
results reported to the Audit Committee. The year end risk management
assessment result was reported to the Board through the Audit Committee.
The Company will continue to enhance and standardize our approach to

manage risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Risk Management (Cont'd)

Risk Management Process (Cont'd)

Subsequent to the Year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management system for the Year and
the Board was satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management system of the Group and considered that the Company had
complied with the Code Provisions in respect of risk management during
the Year.

Internal Control

Annual Review

Based on the annual assessment made by the Independent Auditors and
the works done by Internal Audit Department, the Audit Committee and
the Board were satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the system

of internal control of the Group and concluded that:

(1) the Company had complied with the Code Provisions in respect of

internal control during the Year;

(2) a framework of prudent and effective controls had been established

to identify, evaluate and manage the risks;

(3) internal control and accounting systems of the Group were effective

and adequate;

(4) significant risks and control failings or weaknesses (if any) that
may influence the Group and the changes since last annual review
had been identified, evaluated and managed through the ongoing

monitoring process;

(5) material transactions were executed with the management’s

authorisation;

(6) the Company's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules

compliance were effective; and

(7) the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, and their

training programmes and budget were adequate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with shareholders that the Directors and the
chairmen of the Board Committees are encouraged to attend and answer
questions from shareholders at general meetings. The chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee as well as the Independent Auditors had attended the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 26 May 2020 (the “2020 AGM")
to answer questions from shareholders. All members of the independent
board committee were available at the special general meetings held on
23 March 2020 and 28 October 2020 (the “2020 SGMs") approving a
connected transaction and continuing connected transactions respectively

to address shareholders’ queries.

At the commencement of each general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll to the
shareholders and the shareholders were allowed to raise any question
concerning the poll procedures. At each of the meetings, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman of the meeting and put forward
to the shareholders for poll voting. Details of poll results are available at the

Company's website (www.chineseestates.com).

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a corporate website (www.chineseestates.com) to disseminate the Group's

information.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the corporate communications manual to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made. Such manual also provides
guidance for coordinating the disclosure of material information to investors,
analysts and media, identifies who could speak on the Company’s behalf,
and outlines the responsibility for communication with various stakeholder

groups.

A shareholders’ communication policy for enhancement of the corporate
governance had been established and the Board had reviewed the

shareholders’ communication policy during the Year.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy for the Company that aims to
set out the principles and guidelines of the Company in relation to the
declaration, recommendation and payment of dividends to its shareholders
(the "Dividend Policy").

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. Distribution of dividends should be
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. When
considering dividend declaration or recommendation, the Board shall take

into account the following factors:

(1) business condition and strategy of the Group;

(2) capital requirement for the Group’s existing/potential project or

investment;

(3) earnings, financial and cash flow position and distributable reserves

of the Company and the Group; and

(4) other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the provisions of
the Bye-laws of the Company, the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended from time to time) and any other applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used
as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be

declared or paid by the Company in future.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend or not to recommend
final dividends to the shareholders for approval; and to declare or not to
declare any other dividends, including but not limited to interim and/or
special dividends, after taking into consideration the factors as stated in (1)
to (4) above.

The Dividend Policy may be updated, amended, modified and/or cancelled

from time to time as the Board may think fit and necessary.

064  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

iR S BE

EFERMARRIZREEE  SHEIIABEEAR
FAIMERREIR  Z2FRERE 2R RS
(TR BER])

BBEREBK  ARRWEFEMBETHIRELLE -
REREEFEADFARERRHBEENG - &=
BERIEZRERER ESFREENUTH
=

(1) AEEOEERTRER

Q) AT&EERE/ BERBIKENEAFTFR

(3) ARBRAKENRN  FBRBEDRERR
AR A 73 IR - &

(4) EFERRMEENHEMRAZE-

EREREMNBREXBRARR 2 ARMA - BRE
—AN—FREEEETERAEET) KA E b 38 %
& RABOER -

=

¥IN/NE]
Al e

BENEE SRS T A BIEB AR A
EARS

ERENZREKT 22 EREE -

BEFERERLLAMEMGERER - AI2EEE
BEREATEZRARFRERPBE  RERHTE
IREREMAR S - BEETRN P H R, SHERIR

B o
o

EFERABENLER  TTHEN - 55 - &
B OB B o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &4

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company can at all times submit a signed
written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board or the Company
Secretary to request the convening of a special general meeting (“SGM")
and deposit the requisition at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, the addresses

are disclosed in “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene the SGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from twenty-one days of the deposit.
Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting at
the date of the requisition or shareholders not less than 100 in total can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to

propose a resolution at the general meeting (the “Written Requisition”).

The Written Requisition must be accompanied by (i) the proposed
resolution; and (ii) a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at the general meeting. The Written Requisition must contain
the signatures of all the requisitionist(s). The Written Requisition must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or the
registered office of the Company in Bermuda, the addresses are disclosed
in “Corporate Information” of this annual report, not less than six weeks
before the general meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week before the general meeting in the

case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (contd)

Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting (Cont'd)

Provided that if, after a copy of the Written Requisition requiring notice of
a resolution has been deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, an
annual general meeting is called for a date which is six weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the

purposes thereof.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the applicable

laws and rules.

Propose a Candidate for Election as a Director at an Annual

General Meeting

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director had been established and published at the Company's website

(www.chineseestates.com).
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the Company
Secretary in writing by sending such written enquiries to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address disclosed
in “Corporate Information” of this annual report or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company's constitutional

documents.
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DEVIATIONS FROM CODE PROVISIONS

Non-executive Directors Attending General Meetings

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, a NED, was unable to attend the 2020 SGMs and
the 2020 AGM as he had business engagement. Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai,
another NED, was also unable to attend the 2020 SGMs and the 2020
AGM as she was not in Hong Kong on the dates of 2020 SGMs and 2020
AGM.

Chairman Attending Annual General Meeting

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, the Chairman, was unable to attend the 2020 AGM
as he had business engagement. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, the chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, was elected as
the chairman of the 2020 AGM to ensure effective communication with
shareholders of the Company at the 2020 AGM. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping had also attended the
2020 AGM.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
ESEREE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board") are pleased
to present to the shareholders their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property investment and
development, building and property management, brokerage, securities

investment, money lending and cosmetics distribution and trading.
BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year, discussion on
the Group's future business development and description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found in the
Chairman's Statement of this annual report. Furthermore, the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important event(s)
affecting the Group that has/have occurred since the end of the Year are
contained in the Chairman’s Statement of this annual report. An analysis of
the Group's performance during the Year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Financial Operation Review of this annual
report. Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with its key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group are
provided in the Chairman's Statement, the Corporate Governance Report,
the Directors’ Report and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

of this annual report.
OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from operations
analysed by principal activities are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31 December 2020 are set out in Notes 49 and 50 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on pages 123 to 124.

During the Year, the Board had declared and paid an interim dividend of
HK1 cent per share (payment date: 7 September 2020) (2019: HK1 cent

per share).

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1

cent per share (2019: HK1 cent per share) for the Year.
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is set out on pages 290 to 291.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

Details of the principal properties and property development rights of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out on pages 292 to 296.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Year are set out in

Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the Year, the Group acquired an investment property (through
acquisition of a subsidiary) of approximately HK$900,562,000 (2019: nil)

and did not dispose of any investment properties (2019: nil).

Other movements in investment properties during the Year are set out in

Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$58,000 (2019: HK$116,000).
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GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of secured bank borrowings and other borrowings repayable within
one year or on demand and long-term secured bank borrowings are shown

in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the Year, interest capitalised amounted to approximately
HK$2,838,000 (2019: nil) by the Group.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on
pages 128 to 132.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted of approximately HK$16,382,789,000 (2019:
HK$16,422,734,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Movement in the share capital of the Company during the Year is set out in

Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Year, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked

agreement.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the

Company's businesses were entered into or existed during the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers
amounted to less than 30% of the Group's total revenue (excluding the
Group's interest income from bonds and structured products, dividend
income from listed and unlisted equity investments and gain on sales of

investments held-for-trading) for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers

amounted to less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year or up to the date of this Directors’ Report are:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan
(resigned as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on
17 February 2021)
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 17 February 2021)
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan

Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai

Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun

Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to
Bye-law 111 of the Bye-laws of the Company and all being eligible will
offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS' REPORT EESHEE

TEEFRHEER

AEERAAEFPREZAFRARRAEERA
FEZBBRATEREAKEREER REBEER
BV BN - BRI E T RARE MALS A
RHEREREE 2 IRE W) Z230% °

AEEZAARERRZAFBERERAEERA
FRZBEEBERZ30%
EE

REAFENNEZRAEFSREEEHLE FF
=3

BITES:

REFRL T
(R-B-_—F A+ +tHBREIRHTEER
TTIEABZL)

BREVRBE = (7748 #)
(R-F-_—F A+ HARZERITEEE)
REBEL LT

MR L

FHITES :
BISIEELE (L/E)
EES-Son

BYFHTES
REIR AL
BENLL
Bk ELE

BREBERRBZRRMANE 16 - REEEE - BRE

R REHELEBENBRITZRRBFRE
LEERRESR  REHEERKBEEBEEE-

—B-BEER  EABEEE

£



DIRECTORS' REPORT E=Zg i ZE

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Appendix 10 of Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as

follows:
1 The Company
Number of

Shares Held
ERAEE

Name of Director

EEns

Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (“Ms. HW Chan")
el (Rl )

1,430,700,768 *

EERBELN

AR E AN E AR YRS RRAT A —4F
W& BB E R IEA O AFLREOCXERERIM
ZIRIEEH o

EENBETHRAEBREAQFR
FREBEBE 2 & B

RZZBZTF+ZA=+—H  EEREARAES
THRABRARBR LA BN EE (ER REBE
PlEES71 ZEH R EEEH ([35 5 RS KA Exv
M) 2 M&m - ARG REFTFRE S RAR
BARARRIBES RBEBRANEIS2GET 2 ELM
FTESRIBE A AR S BR A 7 (B A1) FH
EmARRAT EMmARR DM EmEITAERHEST
BHEXHHZESFAD SRR B RE T

Percentage of

Issued Share

Capital
ERITREATSL

Capacity
14

Interest in controlled 74.99%
corporation and interest of
children under 18
N2k VNI 595
R85 F R 2 # s

Note:

e These shares of the Company were indirectly owned by Sino
Omen Holdings Limited (as disclosed under “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests in the Securities of the Company”), the
entire issued share capital of which was held by Ms. HW Chan as
the trustee of her minor children Lau, Chung-hok, Lau, Sau-wah
and Lau, Sau-yee.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(Cont'd)

Associated corporations of the Company
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EENBETHRAEBREAQFR
MRBEB 2 &S ER @

N RAFZEEEE

Percentage of

Name of Associated Number of Issued Share
Name of Director Corporations Share(s) Held Capacity Capital
EEps HEOEE AR FsRO#E 5 | ERTRZASL
Ms. HW Chan Sino Omen Holdings Limited 50,000 * Interest of children under 18 100%
R L R85 T2 2 s
Ms. HW Chan Solar Bright Ltd. 1 J Interest in controlled 100%
BelBL L corporation and interest of
children under 18
IR AR Z K
R85 T 22 s
Note: B3

b Ms. HW Chan (as the trustee for her minor children Lau, Chung-
hok, Lau, Sau-wah and Lau, Sau-yee) directly held the entire
issued share capital of Sino Omen Holdings Limited. Sino Omen
Holdings Limited directly held the entire issued share capital of
Solar Bright Ltd.. Therefore, Ms. HW Chan as the trustee for her
said minor children was also regarded as interested in the entire
issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd..

The interests stated above represent long position. The percentage
shown was the number of shares the relevant Director was interested
in expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at
31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December
2020.

During the Year, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of

the Company or any of its associated corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as are known to any Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Number of
Name of Substantial Shareholders Shares Held
FTERRAE FiERAEE
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung 1,430,700,768 &
("Mr. Joseph Lau")
2|8 o A ([ B8 ST )
Sino Omen Holdings Limited 1,430,700,768 &

(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands)
(REBER R ST

Solar Bright Ltd. 1,430,700,768 &

(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands)
(REBER RS ML)

Century Frontier Limited 476,425,000 &

(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands)
(REBER R SR

Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited 230,984,820 &

(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands)
(PB4 R R B & s AR 32D

UBS Group AG 334,371,828
(Incorporated in Switzerland)
(P ¥ £ 5 A AL)

UBS AG 333,611,579

(Incorporated in Switzerland)

(¥ LM ASL)

FTERRNRAQF RS ER

BEFHIARAERTHRABRAE  RZZ2ZF
FH+ZA=1+—RH  AQaREBEEHFRHEEKOIE
3Z6IRAEETF L EEMAENSITMERAR - B
HEEEA IR AEARATEEITRAS5%3 A
B ZAT(ESEHIRABHERTHRABRIN MG
T~

Percentage of

Issued Share

Capital
Capacity BR#1T
=27 BRAEE DL

Interest of spouse and 74.99%
interest of children under 18
BB 2 M
Ao 18BE TR Z MR

Interest in 74.99%

controlled corporation

NEREL NI

Beneficial owner and interest 74.99%
in controlled corporation
E=EBAR
N N o -

Beneficial owner 24.97%
Ema A

Beneficial owner 12.10%
EmEAa A

Interest in 17.52%

controlled corporation

SERZL PN

Other 17.48%
HAt
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (contd)

Notes:

A

Mr. Joseph Lau was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
shares that his spouse, Ms. HW Chan, and his minor children, Lau,
Chung-hok, Lau, Sau-wah and Lau, Sau-yee, deemed to have interests.

Solar Bright Ltd. held the entire issued share capital of Century
Frontier Limited and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited and
therefore was deemed to be interested in 476,425,000 shares of the
Company held by Century Frontier Limited and 230,984,820 shares
of the Company held by Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited
respectively. In addition, Solar Bright Ltd. directly held 723,290,948
shares of the Company. As such, Solar Bright Ltd. was interested or
deemed to have interested in a total of 1,430,700,768 shares of the
Company. Sino Omen Holdings Limited held the entire issued share
capital of Solar Bright Ltd. and therefore was deemed to be interested
in 1,430,700,768 shares of the Company, which were referred to in
the interests of Ms. HW Chan as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief
Executives' Interests in the Securities of the Company and Associated
Corporations”.

UBS AG was deemed to be interested in a total of 333,611,579 shares
of the Company mainly due to a right of borrowing of 333,497,500
shares of the Company granted to UBS AG, Hong Kong Branch by
Century Frontier Limited. UBS AG was a wholly-owned corporation of UBS
Group AG and therefore UBS Group AG was deemed to be interested in
333,611,579 shares of the Company held by UBS AG. UBS Group AG
was also deemed to be interested in another batch of 760,249 shares of
the Company through its other controlled corporations. Therefore, UBS
Group AG was deemed to be interested in 334,371,828 shares of the
Company in aggregate.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 December

2020, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, Ms. HW Chan, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai and Ms. Chan, Sze-wan

(resigned as Director of the Company on 17 February 2021) had personal

and/or directorship interests in private companies engaged in property

investment business and securities investment business; while Ms. HW

Chan

and Ms. Chan, Sze-wan had personal interest in private companies

engaged in money lending business. As such, he/she was regarded as

being interested in such businesses, which competed or might compete

with the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (Cont'd)

In addition, Mr. Joseph Lau, a former executive Director, Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, had through certain
private companies wholly-owned by him acquired the retail shops of York
Place, Excelsior Plaza (include Laforet) and Southorn Centre (also known as
Wanchai Computer Centre) from the Group in 2010, certain floors and car
parking spaces constituted part of the properties known as Silvercord and
the properties known as The ONE from the Group in 2015 as well as the
properties known as Windsor House from the Group in 2016 (collectively
the “Private Properties”). Each of Ms. HW Chan, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai and
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan (resigned as Director of the Company on 17 February
2021) was a director of or deemed to have certain interests in one or
more of the said companies during the Year. There might be potential
leasing competition for existing and prospective tenancies between the
Private Properties and investment properties held by the Group. In order to
manage such potential leasing competition, Mr. Joseph Lau had provided
certain undertakings and the Company had agreed with the Stock Exchange
to implement certain measures for monitoring the compliance of such
undertakings. Details of such undertakings and monitoring measures
were set out in the circulars of the Company dated 18 June 2010, 23
September 2014, 7 January 2015 and 15 January 2016. The independent
non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs") had carried out an
annual review on the compliance of the said undertakings and monitoring
measures and confirmed that such undertakings and monitoring measures
were duly complied with and considered adequate monitoring measures

were in place to avoid the potential leasing competition during the Year.

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties and will act honestly and
in good faith in the interests of the Company and will avoid any potential
conflict of interests and duties. The Company comprises three INEDs and
all of them are audit committee members of the Company, so that the

interest of its shareholders can be adequately represented.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in
any businesses apart from the Company's businesses, which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company's

businesses.
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DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

According to the Company's Bye-laws, each Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the extent allowed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended)) which such Director may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of the Director's office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has provided indemnity to INEDs since July 2014
by issuing a letter to each of the INEDs. The Company has also arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers' liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Group which was in force during the Year and

up to the date of this Directors’ Report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate during the Year.

DIRECTORS" AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the agreement(s) disclosed under the heading “Connected
Transactions” below and the facility agreement(s) entered into between
the Group and Ms. HW Chan as disclosed under “Material Related Party
Transactions” in Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements, there
were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s businesses, to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year, and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor
there were any other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Company’s businesses between the Company or any
of the Company's subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its

subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transaction

On 29 January 2020, Chase Master Company Limited, Lucky Way Company
Ltd. and City Gateway Limited (all being indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company) as sellers entered into a disposal agreement with Ms.
HW Chan as purchaser in relation to, inter alia, the disposal of certain debt
securities at a consideration of 100% of the principal amount or market bid
price (whichever is higher) (the “Disposal”). The total consideration for the
Disposal was estimated to be not less than US$840,415,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$6,543,135,000), capped with a maximum total
transaction amount of HK$8,000,000,000 (the “Cap Amount").

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules in respect of the Disposal by reference to the Cap Amount
exceeded 25% but less than 75%, accordingly the Disposal constituted
a major transaction for the Company. In addition, as at the date of the
relevant announcement, Ms. HW Chan was an executive Director and a
trustee of the substantial shareholders of the Company (who are two of her
minor children), Ms. HW Chan was a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the Disposal also constituted a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and was therefore subject
to the reporting, announcement, circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to the Listing Rules. Details of the Disposal
were set out in the Company's announcement dated 29 January 2020 and
circular dated 28 February 2020.

The Disposal was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held on 23
March 2020. The disposal of the last tranche of the debt securities was
completed on 18 December 2020. An announcement in respect of the

completion of disposal was made on 18 December 2020.

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions

(1) On 28 February 2019, Chinese Estates, Limited (being a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (“CEL") (as tenant)
entered into (a) a tenancy agreement in relation to the leasing
of the whole of 17th floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor House
(the “First Tenancy Agreement”) at a rent of HK$1,025,000 per
month (excluding service charges and rates) for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1 March 2019 to 28 February 2022 (the “First
Tenancy”); and (b) an agreement for lease in relation to the leasing
of the whole of 19th floor, the whole of 20th floor and the whole
of 21st floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor House (the “Framework
Agreement”) at a rent of HK$1,084,000, HK$1,044,000 and
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions
(Cont'd)

M

(Cont'd)

HK$1,056,000 per month (excluding service charges and rates)
respectively for a term of 3 years commencing from a date or dates
to be agreed between the parties provided that the commencement
date(s) shall not be earlier than 1 November 2019 or later than 29
February 2020 (the “Subsequent Tenancies"), with Windsor House
Limited ("WHL") (as landlord) for the purpose of new headquarter
of the Group. On 18 October 2019, a tenancy agreement for the
Subsequent Tenancies was entered into for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1 November 2019 to 31 October 2022 (the
“Subsequent Tenancy Agreement” together with the First Tenancy

Agreement, the "Tenancy Agreements”).

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 28 February
2019, the caps of the service charges and rates payment as well as
the fit-out administration fee payment payable by CEL to WHL under
the First Tenancy and the Subsequent Tenancies for the Year were
set at HK$9,300,000 and HK$700,000 respectively (the “Charges
Caps").

As at the date of the relevant announcement, WHL was indirectly
owned by (i) Ms. HW Chan (an executive Director and a trustee
of the substantial shareholders of the Company (who are two of
her minor children)), both in her capacity as a trustee of her minor
children and in her own capacity; (i) Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (a non-
executive Director, the Chairman of the Board and a substantial
shareholder of the Company); and (iii) a family trust of Mr. Joseph
Lau (the spouse of Ms. HW Chan), hence WHL was a connected
person of the Company. Therefore, under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, (a) in respect of the First Tenancy, the entering into
of the First Tenancy Agreement and the rental payment thereof
constituted a connected transaction for the Company and the fit-
out administration fee payment as well as the service charges and
rates payment thereof constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company; and (b) in respect of the Subsequent Tenancies,
the entering into of the Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the entering into of the
Subsequent Tenancy Agreement, the rental payment, the fit-out
administration fee payment as well as the service charges and rates
payment thereof) constituted continuing connected transactions for

the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions
(Cont'd)

M

(Cont'd)

Given that (i) one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in
respect of the value of the right-of-use asset under the First Tenancy
and the maximum amount of the total value of the right-of-use asset
under the Subsequent Tenancies, on an aggregated basis, exceeded
0.1% but less than 5%; and (i) one of the applicable percentage
ratios of the Charges Caps exceeded 0.1% but less than 5% at the
date of entering into the First Tenancy Agreement and the Framework
Agreement, therefore the First Tenancy and the Subsequent
Tenancies (and the transactions contemplated thereunder) were
exempt from the independent shareholders' approval requirement,
but were subject to the reporting, announcement and (to the extent
constituting continuing connected transactions for the Company)

annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs, pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the
requirement to carry out an annual review on the continuing
connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions were made
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the Tenancy
Agreements governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable

and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (collectively the “HKICPA Guidelines”) that the subject
continuing connected transactions had received the approval of
the Board, had been entered into in accordance with the Tenancy
Agreements and had not exceeded the caps disclosed in the
announcement of the Company made on 28 February 2019. The

Company provided a copy of such letter to the Stock Exchange.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions
(Cont'd)

@

On 12 June 2020, CEL (as tenant) entered into a tenancy
agreement with WHL (as landlord) in relation to the leasing of the
whole of 39th floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor House at a rent of
HK$1,409,500 per month (excluding service charges and rates)
for a term of 3 years commencing from 13 June 2020 to 12 June
2023 (the "39F Tenancy”) for the purpose of other part of the new
headquarter of the Group (the “39F Tenancy Agreement”).

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 12 June 2020,
the caps of the service charges and rates payment as well as the fit-
out administration fee payment payable by CEL to WHL under the
39F Tenancy for the period from 13 June 2020 to 31 December
2020 were set at HK$1,900,000 and HK$2,300,000 respectively
(the “39F Charges Caps").

As at the date of the relevant announcement, WHL was indirectly
owned by (i) Ms. HW Chan (an executive Director and a trustee of
the substantial shareholders of the Company (who are her minor
children)), both in her capacity as a trustee of her minor children and
in her own capacity; and (i) a family trust of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (a
non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Board), hence WHL
was a connected person of the Company. Therefore, under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, the entering into of the 39F Tenancy
Agreement and the rental payment thereof constituted a connected
transaction for the Company, and the service charges and rates
payment as well as the fit-out administration fee payment thereof

constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company.

Given that (i) certain applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
value of the right-of-use asset under the 39F Tenancy Agreement,
when aggregated with the right-of-use asset value under the Tenancy
Agreements (as mentioned in paragraph (1) above), exceeded
0.1% but less than 5%; and (i) certain applicable percentage ratios
in respect of the largest aggregated amount of the 39F Charges
Caps and the Charges Caps (as mentioned in paragraph (1) above)
exceeded 0.1% but less than 5%, the 39F Tenancy Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder were exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement, but were subject
to the reporting, announcement and (to the extent constituting
continuing connected transactions for the Company) annual review

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions
(Cont'd)

@

(Cont'd)

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs, pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the
requirement to carry out an annual review on the continuing
connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions were made
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the 39F Tenancy
Agreement governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable

and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with the HKICPA
Guidelines that the subject continuing connected transactions
had received the approval of the Board, had been entered into in
accordance with the 39F Tenancy Agreement and had not exceeded
the caps disclosed in the announcement of the Company made on
12 June 2020. The Company provided a copy of such letter to the
Stock Exchange.

Continuing Connected Transactions

M

On 31 October 2017, CEL entered into a contract for services with
Mr. Joseph Lau regarding the provision of (i) leasing administration
services (including without limitation matters relating to dealing
with tenants, rent collection and taking legal actions, but excluding
services in relation to the referral of potential tenants and the
negotiation with existing and/or potential tenants regarding terms
of lease of properties), (ii) sale administration services (including
without limitation the appointment of and coordination with estate
agents for such sale but excluding any sale agency service), (iii)
property management services (including matters relating to
management, maintenance, operation, servicing and repairs of
properties), (iv) property administration services (including without
limitation accounting, company secretarial, recruitment, human
resources administration works, taxation, marketing and information
technology services) (the “Property Administration Services”), (v)
asset management and maintenance services (including property,
household and other management and maintenance services in

relation to properties and assets) (the "Asset Management and
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

Q)

(Cont'd)

Maintenance Services"), (vi) rental services (including rental of
motor vehicles, car plates, vessels, car parking spaces, premises and
such other rental services) (the “Rental Services"), (vii) advisory
and consultancy services (including general advisory, consultancy,
administration, liaison, personnel support services and such other
services (including without limitation accounting, taxation and
company secretarial services) ancillary and/or incidental thereto)
(the "Advisory and Consultancy Services”), and (viii) other ordinary
services (including without limitation securities and other financial
services) to Mr. Joseph Lau, his associates and/or relatives for a term
of 3 years commencing from 1 November 2017 to 31 October
2020 (the “Contract”). The cap of the service charges payable by
Mr. Joseph Lau to CEL for the period from 1 January 2020 to 31
October 2020 under the Contract was set at HK$96,666,667 (the
“Cap") as disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 31
October 2017.

As at the date of relevant announcement, Mr. Joseph Lau being the
spouse of Ms. HW Chan, accordingly an associate of Ms. HW Chan
(an executive Director and a trustee of the substantial shareholders
of the Company (who are her two minor children)). Therefore,
Mr. Joseph Lau was a connected person of the Company and the
Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for the expected annual
caps for the transactions contemplated under the Contract exceeded
0.1% but were expected to be less than 5%, the Contract and the
annual caps were only subject to the reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements but exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement pursuant to Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

Q)

(Cont'd)

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs, pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the
requirement to carry out an annual review on the continuing
connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions were made
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company (other
than household management and maintenance services under
the Asset Management and Maintenance Services, the Property
Administration Services, the Rental Services and the Advisory
and Consultancy Services), on normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the Contract governing them on terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole. Having considered the reasons and benefits in
respect of the provision of household management and maintenance
services under the Asset Management and Maintenance Services,
the Property Administration Services, the Rental Services and the
Advisory and Consultancy Services as mentioned in the Company's
announcement dated 31 October 2017, the INEDs were of the view
that, although the provision of such services contemplated under the
Contract were not in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group, the terms of such services were fair and reasonable so
far as the Group were concerned and on normal commercial terms,
and were in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a

whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with the HKICPA
Guidelines that the subject continuing connected transactions had
received the approval of the Board, were in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company, had been entered into in accordance
with the Contract and had not exceeded the Cap disclosed in the
announcement of the Company made on 31 October 2017. The

Company provided a copy of such letter to the Stock Exchange.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

@

On 14 August 2020, CEL entered into a contract for services with
Ms. HW Chan regarding the provision of (i) leasing administration
services (including without limitation matters relating to dealing
with tenants, rent collection and taking legal actions, but excluding
services in relation to the referral of potential tenants and the
negotiation with existing and/or potential tenants regarding terms
of lease of properties), (i) sale administration services (including
without limitation the appointment of and coordination with estate
agents for such sale but excluding any sale agency service), (iii)
property management services (including matters relating to
management, maintenance, operation, servicing and repairs of
properties), (iv) property administration services (including without
limitation accounting, recruitment, human resources administration
works, taxation, marketing and information technology services) (the
“Chan’s Property Administration Services"), (v) asset management
and maintenance services (including property, household and other
management and maintenance services in relation to properties and
assets) (the "Chan's Asset Management and Maintenance Services”),
(vi) rental services (including rental of motor vehicles, car plates,
vessels, car parking spaces, premises and such other rental services)
(the “Chan’s Rental Services"), (vii) advisory and consultancy
services (including general advisory, consultancy, administration,
liaison, personnel support services and such other services (including
without limitation accounting and taxation services) ancillary and/
or incidental thereto) (the “"Chan’s Advisory and Consultancy
Services"), and (viii) other ordinary services (including without
limitation securities and other financial services) to Ms. HW Chan, her
associates and/or relatives for a term of 3 years commencing from
1 November 2020 to 31 October 2023 (the “Chan’s Contract”).
The cap of the service charges payable by Ms. HW Chan to CEL for
the period from 1 November 2020 to 31 December 2020 under
the Chan’s Contract was set at HK$9,800,000 (the “Chan’s Cap")
as disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 14 August
2020 and circular dated 7 October 2020. The Chan's Contract
and the transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 28 October 2020.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

@

(Cont'd)

As at the date of the relevant announcement, Ms. HW Chan was an
executive Director and a trustee of the substantial shareholders of
the Company (who are her minor children), Ms. HW Chan was a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Chan's Contract
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. As
one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for the expected
annual caps for the Chan’s Contract were more than 5%, the Chan's
Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder were subject
to reporting, announcement, circular, independent shareholders’
approval and annual review requirements pursuant to Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules.

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs, pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the
requirement to carry out an annual review on the continuing
connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions were made
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company (other
than household management and maintenance services under the
Chan's Asset Management and Maintenance Services, the Chan's
Property Administration Services, the Chan's Rental Services and the
Chan's Advisory and Consultancy Services), on normal commercial
terms and in accordance with the Chan's Contract governing them
on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole. Having considered
the reasons and benefits in respect of the provision of household
management and maintenance services under the Chan's Asset
Management and Maintenance Services, the Chan's Property
Administration Services, the Chan's Rental Services and the Chan's
Advisory and Consultancy Services as mentioned in the Company's
announcement dated 14 August 2020 and circular dated 7 October
2020, the INEDs were of the view that, although the provision of
such services contemplated under the Chan’s Contract were not in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, the terms
of such services were fair and reasonable so far as the Group were
concerned and on normal commercial terms, and were in the

interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)
(2) (Cont'd)

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with the HKICPA
Guidelines that the subject continuing connected transactions had
received the approval of the Board, were in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company, had been entered into in accordance
with the Chan’s Contract and had not exceeded the Chan's Cap
disclosed in the announcement of the Company made on 14 August
2020 and circular dated 7 October 2020. The Company provided a
copy of such letter to the Stock Exchange.

Save as aforesaid, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this Directors'
Report.

Save as aforesaid, none of the "Material Related Party Transactions” for
the Year as disclosed in Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-

exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above “Material Related Party Transactions” constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the relevant

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 23 November 2018,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Borrower”) as
borrower has on 23 November 2018 entered into a facility agreement
(the "Facility Agreement”) with a bank (the “Bank”) as lender in respect
of a term loan facility (the “Facility”) in the principal sum of up to
HK$674,000,000 and it is a term of the Facility Agreement that the
Company entered into a guarantee (the “Guarantee”). The Facility will be
repayable in 12 successive quarterly instalments with the final repayment
date falling 36 months after the date on which the advance under the

Facility is made.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement and the Guarantee, the Borrower
and the Company shall procure that the substantial shareholders of the
Company (as disclosed at pages 69 to 70 of the 2017 annual report of
the Company) and/or their ultimate beneficial owners together with their
respective associates and connected persons in aggregate shall maintain
not less than 30% shareholding in and remain a single largest shareholder

of the Company.

A breach of the abovementioned undertaking may constitute an event
of default under the Facility Agreement, whereby the Bank may, among
others, cancel the Facility and declare that all sums accrued or outstanding
(including accrued interest) under the Facility Agreement be immediately
due and payable. The occurrence of such event may trigger the cross
default provisions of other banking or credit facilities available to the Group
and, as a possible consequence, these other facilities may also be declared

by the relevant lenders to be immediately due and payable.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the "ORSO Scheme"); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the "MPF Scheme”).

Both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes are managing by their respective

trustees accordingly.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

The ORSO Scheme is available to the Group's full-time permanent staff
employed in Hong Kong before 1 December 2000. Contributions to the
ORSO Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% based on
the staff's basic salary depending on the length of service. Staff members
are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued
returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining the
retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to 90%
of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service of at least
3 years but less than 10 years. The ORSO Scheme allowed any forfeited
contributions (made by the Group for any staff member who subsequently
left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) to be

used by the Group to offset the current level of contributions of the Group.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$30,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to be

preserved until the retirement age of 65.

In order to provide similar benefits to those who joined the MPF Scheme
and the ORSO Scheme, the Group provided an additional portion (the
“Top-up Portion”) for those who joined the MPF Scheme. The purpose
of the Top-up Portion is to match up the benefits of the MPF Scheme
with that of the ORSO Scheme by providing those staff under the MPF
Scheme with basic salary over HK$30,000 and/or years of service over 5.
Contributions to the Top-up Portion are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5%
or 10% of the staff's basic salary less the Group’s mandatory contribution

under the MPF Scheme as mentioned above.

The Group's total cost for the schemes charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately HK$8,744,000 (2019: HK$8,408,000). In
addition, an amount of forfeited employer’s contributions for the schemes
amounted to approximately HK$28,000 (2019: HK$331,000) was
utilised towards reducing the Group's contributions during the Year. As at
31 December 2020, no (2019: nil) available balance to reduce future

contributions.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of this

annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") who would retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint HLB

as the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lam, Kwong-wai

Director

Hong Kong, 8 March 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report (“this Report”)
captures the ESG performance of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited
(“Chinese Estates”, the “Group”, or “we") during the reporting period. The
information collected during report preparation process and disclosed in
this Report will serve as the basis of the Group's ESG strategy, management

and future improvement.

Reporting Standard

This Report was prepared in accordance with the requirements as set out
in Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”),
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise specified, this Report covers our progress and

performance on ESG issues from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

Reporting Scope and Boundary

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting scope of this Report only covers
our operations in Hong Kong. The reporting principles of “Materiality”,

noou

“Quantitative”, "Balance” and “Consistency” as set out in the Guide
underpin the preparation of this Report, the contents of this Report and the

presentation of information.

Accessibility and Feedback

This Report can be accessed on our corporate website at
www.chineseestates.com and on HKEXnews website at www.hkexnews.hk.
Readers may contact us via e-mail at investor.relations@chineseestates.com
should there be any enquiry or comment about this Report.

Board Approval

The board of directors of Chinese Estates (the “Board”) has approved this
Report on 8 March 2021.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

PHILOSOPHY AND GOVERNANCE IN
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

To achieve a sustainable development, we strive to address the ESG

concerns by integrating ESG principles into our operation and management.

A well-structured ESG management approach helps us to identify the ESG-
related risks and ensure daily operations are aligned with the Group's ESG
practices. Chinese Estates has a solid ESG governance structure which
comprises of the Board and the Sustainability Working Group (the “Working
Group”). The Working Group comprises of managers from key divisions,
including Administration, Building Management, Company Secretarial,

Human Resources, Marketing, Project Development and Internal Audit.

The Board is the highest decision-making authority responsible for the
overall ESG management and reporting. The Working Group reports to the
Board and oversees the Group's sustainability strategies, daily operations
and risk management. The Working Group also monitors sustainability-
related matters in operations, reviews stakeholder feedback and updates
respective policies. We listen to our stakeholders and consider their views,
comments and recommendations on ESG management. Materiality
assessment is carried out to identify, assess and refine ESG related issues
and it facilitates the Group in formulating sustainability strategies. Our
efforts in understanding and managing the ESG related risks enable us to

achieve our objectives of creating greater values for all stakeholders.

To understand stakeholders’ expectations and ESG related issues that
are relevant and important to Chinese Estates, we are committed to
maintaining constant communication with our stakeholders. This Report
captures the highlights of our sustainability performance and achievements
in 2020.

A. Stakeholder Engagement

Chinese Estates engages with stakeholders to understand their
expectations and addresses their concerns regarding the ESG
related issues of the Group. We constantly engaged with our key
stakeholders through diverse communication channels to collect their
opinions. The table below shows various communication channels

with our key stakeholders:
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PHILOSOPHY AND GOVERNANCE IN
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

(Cont'd)

A. Key Stakeholder Groups (Cont'd)

Key Stakeholder Groups
TERNERR

RE HEREANESRER

()

A. RBHESHE)

Communication Channels

Customers/Tenants

®F/MP

Tenant Satisfaction Surveys

HEMEERAE

Day-to-day communication through frontline employees
RBHNAEINARER

Customer hotline

B RISER

Employees

(=31

Intranet

)ik

Annual appraisal
FERFZ

Team building activities

B A EARE

Industry Associations

EF R

Annual and regular meetings
FRERERAGE
Events

BIEH

Media
A

Media enquiry
HEeE A
Corporate website

NSIEEbE

Non-Governmental Organisation (“NGO") Partners

TR AR (SEBRTARED A 1ERE

Volunteer activities and charitable activities
BELERPREEED

Sponsorships and donations

BB B

Meetings

&2
B A

Shareholders/Investors

BR/REE

General meetings

RERARE

Annual and interim reports

FERTHHE
Circulars/announcements/notices/publications
WK AE A R

Investor relations enquiry

REEBREN

Corporate website

NGIEEN

Suppliers/Contractors/Service Providers/
Professional Advisors

HIER, AR RGO R, EEEM

Ongoing direct engagements
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PHILOSOPHY AND GOVERNANCE IN
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

RE HEREANEZRERE

(&)

(Cont'd)

B. Materiality Assessment B. EZMFM
To identify the ESG related issues that are significant to the group, RBAIHAEEMEBERNRE  H@RE
Chinese Estates engaged with stakeholders in 2019 to understand BHEBEE  FEAEER _ZT-NFEFHE
their expectations and to address their concerns. Based on the results B DAT BRAPIR) B EE R Bl FE A IR BEDE o
from 2019, we conducted media and peer review to re-evaluate BE_Z-NENER  BHIETERRET
the focuses of the Group's ESG strategies in 2020. The results were ﬁ% NEHAEAREER _Z_TFHIR
discussed in the Working Group meeting and were endorsed by the HERECRKER  BREARDHNIE
Board. J\z LRI EESESR -
In 2020, we have identified a total of 10 material sustainability RZZE_ZF > ZME#HFEEI0BEEEA
issues. The results serve as a guide to the Group on the ESG HEERZE FUARRTNEEREIRESN

management and disclosure of this Report.

Aspects
Ei

B e REREEREERMES -

Material sustainability issues

ERTHARREE

Environmental

B

Greenhouse gas emission and energy conservation
= R U B

Waste management

BEEYE R

Employment and Labour Practices

BENRSETIER

Employment

&=

Occupational health and safety

Career and personal development

BENEARR

Operating Practices

Tenant communication and satisfaction

HPEBEmEE

Tenant/Visitor safety
MpP/HERE

LERH Tenant/Visitor privacy and data protection
P/ BT R ERHMRE
Anti-corruption
k&S

Community Community investment

Zad' HRigE

94 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IR3E - #HERERHRES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We are committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of our investors and other
stakeholders. Our corporate governance practices are in strict compliance
with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the laws of Hong
Kong) and relevant anti-corruption laws. To uphold the highest standard
of corporate governance, the Board and management are dedicated to
ensuring corporate integrity and business ethics in all our business activities.
All management and staff must abide by the standards of operating ethics
and employee conduct set forth in the Group’s Code of Practice (“Code of
Practice”). Our employees should avoid any conflict of interest and ensure
all business decisions are made objectively and in the interests of the
Group. No employee should accept advantages, gifts or entertainment from
our current and future business partners in contravention of the Code of
Practice. Any acts of non-compliance may lead to strict disciplinary or legal

action.

To ensure the accountability and openness of our management, our
employees are encouraged to report any misconduct and malpractices
concerning financial reporting, internal control or other related matters. A
whistle-blowing mechanism is established to provide guidelines for our
employees to report any suspected cases and to set out the procedures
to be carried out by the Audit Committee. During the reporting year, no

reported case was received by the Audit Committee.

In 2020, no concluded legal cases relating to corruption were brought
against the Group. For more information about our corporate governance
policies and practices, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of

this annual report.
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OPERATIONS

To achieve higher operational efficiency, Chinese Estates actively engages
with employees, tenants, visitors and suppliers to understand their needs
and expectations. The Group makes every effort to provide quality products
and services to our tenants and visitors while ensuring a healthy and safe

working environment for our employees and visitors.

A. Commitment to Product and Service Quality

Chinese Estates strives to offer high quality products and services
with excellence and creativity. We strictly abide by all relevant laws
and regulations regarding product safety, anti-competition behaviour,
advertising and labelling. We have formulated the Product and
Services Responsibility Policy to communicate our expectations and
requirements on delivering high-quality products and services in our
project development as well as building and property management
business. The Policy also demonstrates our commitment on
safeguarding the environment, as well as the safety and health of our

tenants and visitors.

A holistic quality control system and assurance procedures are
in place to manage the quality of products and services. When it
comes to property planning, design and development, where we
control the quality through careful selection and close monitoring our
contractors and suppliers, we also communicate our commitment to
the environment and such that environmental impact is considered

throughout the properties’ life cycles.

We are ambitious in safeguarding the health of our tenants and
visitors. In 2020, Silvercord, Windsor House (Public Area of Office
Building) and The ONE were awarded the Indoor Air Quality
Certificate (Excellent Class) by the Environmental Protection
Department, while Windsor House (Public Area of Shopping Mall)
and Harcourt House obtained the Indoor Air Quality Certificate (Good
Class). In addition, Windsor House was certified with the standards
of the Quality Water Supply Scheme for Buildings — Fresh Water
(Management System) (Blue) by the Water Supplies Department in
2020. These achievements recognise our efforts in providing quality

products and services.
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OPERATIONS (contd)

Tenant Communication and Satisfaction

It is essential to improve our customer satisfaction. While we are
building trust with our tenants and visitors, we do not compromise

our professionalisms and business ethics.

Collecting feedback is vital to the enhancement of customer
experience and our business growth. To improve our products and
services, we listen to our tenants and visitors and take every opinion
seriously. We have established multiple communication channels for
our tenants and visitors to provide valuable feedback. In 2020, we
also conducted tenant satisfaction surveys in eight of our managed
properties and achieved an average mark of 83.25/100 in the

overall performance of management service.

In addition, our frontline employees are equipped with adequate
knowledge and skills in handling complaint from tenants and visitors.
We strive to respond to their inquiries and complaints promptly with
follow-up actions to ensure that tenants and visitors are satisfied with
the solutions. In 2020, we received 386 service-related complaints
(2019: 169).

Tenant and Visitor Safety

The safety of tenant and visitor is our top priority. We put ample
resources in emergency response training for our frontline employees
regarding handling emergencies, such as gas leakage, power outages

and escalator malfunctions.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has adopted various
preventive measures in its properties to safeguard the health of
owners and users. For instance, we intensify disinfection in common
areas, provide hand sanitizers and disinfectants as well as checking
body temperature in most of the entrances of our managed

properties.
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OPERATIONS (contd) EE@®
D. Supply Chain Management HEEEE

To support our diversified operational activities, we engage a diverse
range of contractors and suppliers. We have high expectation
on our suppliers and we require them to have the same level of
business ethics and conduct as we do. Among all contractors and
suppliers, we consider those who support our building and property
management as well as property development to be of higher
environmental and social risks. We have now rolled out our Supplier
Code of Conduct and are requiring the aforementioned contractors
and suppliers to acknowledge it as part of the contract agreement.
The Supplier Code of Conduct outlines our minimum requirements
for supplier behaviour, covering legal compliance, health and safety,
non-discrimination, labour practices, anti-corruption, employee. We
have a standard tendering process to manage contracts, consultants
and to source building materials for our development projects. We
concern environmental and safety risks throughout the whole value
chain. As such, we have clearly stated our requirements on the
environmental and occupation safety and health compliance on the

tender contract.

The Group adopts a fair and transparent approach to select, monitor
and evaluate our contractors. A supplier assessment tool is in place
to regularly assess the performance of contractors for our building
and property management business. Besides, property managers and
estate officers conduct surprise inspections and regular inspections
on monthly basis. Clarification and explanation are required in case
our requirements are not met by any supplier. Depending on the
severity of the issue, supplier who failed to take corrective actions
may result in termination of the contract. During the reporting period,

there were 332 active local suppliers.
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OPERATIONS (contd)

E. Tenant/Visitor Privacy and Data Protection

Chinese Estates is aware of the emerging concern of data privacy
from our tenants and visitors. We will inform our tenants and visitors
the purposes for which their personal data are collected and ensure
that the data collected are not excessive. The Group has established
internal work instruction on personal data privacy to provide clear
instructions and guidelines to our employees on handling sensitive
data. We also offer data protection training to all employees in
orientation and refresher programmes to make sure that our policies
are effectively communicated to employees in different positions.
The Group strictly complies with all relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Chapter 486 of the laws of Hong Kong). During the reporting year,
there was no complaint or accusation regarding leakage of tenant

and visitor data.
F. Intellectual Property Rights

Chinese Estates respects the intellectual property rights and upholds
all applicable law and regulations. These include but not limited to
Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559 of the laws of Hong Kong),
Registered Designs Ordinance (Chapter 522 of the laws of Hong
Kong), Patents Ordinance (Chapter 514 of the laws of Hong Kong)
and Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the laws of Hong
Kong). Our Information Technology Department verifies and confirms
all hardware and software purchased or installed are licensed to
ensure our daily operation does not violate any intellectual property

provisions.
ENVIRONMENT

Recognising the environmental impacts arising from our day-to-day
business operations, Chinese Estates makes every effort to mitigate
those impacts so as to minimise the harm to our environment. We
have been taking various measures to reduce the adverse impacts of air
emission, wastewater discharges, waste generation and natural resource
consumption. Furthermore, we promote the efficient use of resources, such
as energy, water and other raw materials in our daily operation to fulfil our

commitment to the environment.

Chinese Estates strictly complies with all the relevant provisions of
environmental laws and regulations. These include but not limited to the
Buildings Energy Efficiency Ordinance (Chapter 610 of the laws of Hong
Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the laws of Hong Kong)
and Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the laws of Hong
Kong). During the reporting period, there was no case of breaching of

related laws and regulations.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

We take environmental impacts into account in the entire lifecycle of our
business projects, including planning, design, development and operation.
We have formulated the Environmental Policy to guide our employees to
act in an environmentally responsible manner during business operation.
The Policy has demonstrated our commitment to assessing and monitoring
the environmental implications of our operations and to integrate
environmental consideration in our property investment, development
projects as well as building and property management businesses. We
also communicate with our consultants, contractors and other stakeholders
about our environmental policy to promote sustainability throughout the
value chain. Meanwhile, various measures are in place in different business
units to manage our environmental impacts. At self-owned or managed
sites, we adopt green initiatives and promote environmental awareness. In

our offices, we strive to create a green workplace for our employees.
A. Energy and Carbon Management

Buildings contribute to 90% of the city's electricity consumption and
60% of the city's carbon footprint'. As a property developer and
manager, Chinese Estates is obliged to play our part to reduce
electricity and energy consumption across our portfolio. In this regard,
we implement energy-saving initiatives to better manage our use of
energy. For instance, we conduct regular energy audit at the
properties that we manage, including Windsor House, Harcourt
House and Wanchai Computer Centre, to analyse their energy
consumption, and identify opportunities to reduce energy usage and

carbon footprint.

To demonstrate our commitment to reducing energy usage,
we support the Charter on External Lightings launched by the
Environment Bureau. We are committed to minimising the light
nuisance and energy wastage by switching off unnecessary outdoor
lighting at night. In 2020, The ONE, Windsor House and Wanchai
Computer Centre were honoured with the Platinum Award, while
Excelsior Plaza and Causeway Place were honoured with the Gold
Award. Besides, we actively engaged in green events organised by
NGOs, such as the Earth Hour by World Wide Fund (WWF) in March
2020 and the No Air Con Night by Green Sense in October 2020, to

reduce energy consumption.

: Council for Sustainable Development, "Chapter 3 Time To Step Up Action
Now, How Do We Move Forward?’, Public Engagement Document,
www.susdev.org.hk/en/paper-ch3.php (2021)
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

A.

Energy and Carbon Management (Cont'd)

To create an environmentally friendly atmosphere and encourage
green behaviour at our workplace, the Group appoints the Green
Office Team to formulate and implement energy conservation
strategies at offices. The Green Office Team adopts various measures
to enhance the employees’ awareness of energy-saving. For example,
stickers are posted next to light switches and electronic appliances
to remind employees to turn off idle electronic appliances and lights.
Reminder emails are also sent out to communicate these initiatives
to our employees. To ensure the green office initiatives are carried
out effectively, the Green Office Team will review all initiatives twice

a year.

Waste Management

The Group is committed to divert waste from landfill sites. As
such, we implement different waste management initiatives in
the properties and offices we own or manage to minimise waste
generation. We actively promote reusing and recycling to maximise
the lifetime of useful materials. The Group also engage conscientious
recycling contractors to collect and process the recyclables

responsibly.

At our managed properties, we encourage our tenants and residents
to practise waste separation at source. We have placed multiple
recycling bins in the properties under our management, such as The
ONE, Windsor House and Harcourt House. In 2020, The ONE and
Windsor participated in Greeners Action’s “Tetrapak Clean Recycling
Pilot Scheme”, aiming at raising public awareness on Tetrapak
recycling, promoting clean recycling method of Tetrapak, and
enhancing the public on Tetrapak recycling habit. Besides, we worked
closely with environmental organisations to carry out recycling
programmes to facilitate the recycling of festive consumables, such

as red packets, Christmas trees and cherry blossom trees.

To reduce food waste, the Group has been collaborating with our
business partners and suppliers to initiate a food waste reduction
programme. Our composter at The ONE composts coffee grounds
and used tea leaves collected from catering tenants of The ONE
and Windsor. The compost is used in the gardens of our managed
properties, the podium roof organic farm at Harcourt House and our

organic farm in Fanling.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd) RiB @)

B. Waste Management (Cont'd) BEYERE(E)
At our offices, waste reduction initiatives are also in place to create ERAEN - FFIIEREUR D EEEYEE - A
an environmentally friendly working environment and cultivate green BERBERENTIERBENIESHETMH - &

minds. We establish e-communication channels to substitute the
use of paper to promote a paperless working environment. Not only
can we minimise paper wastage at the source, but also increase
the efficiency in our daily communication within and outside the

organisation.

To encourage recycling at our offices, not only do we set up
collection points for paper recycling, but we also place boxes around
the offices to collect reusable stationaries, such as file folders, single-
side-used paper and pens. Used printer cartridges are returned
to suppliers. Retired but functional electronic appliances, such as
computers, printers and fax machines, are donated to NGOs to

support those in need.

Use of Resource

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to
using resources efficiently and promoting recycling in our community.
We adopt different measures to promote the efficient use of energy,
water, and other raw materials. For examples, we use carpets that
are produced from recycled materials in a number of our commercial
properties and conserve the use of water by installing dual flush

toilets in some of the properties we own or manage.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

C.

Use of Resource (Cont'd)

The environmental metrics for 2019 and 2020 is tabulated below:

Energy consumption
BERHAE

Electricity

B

Towngas

R

Energy consumption intensity
REREDE

Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBHER
Scope 1 — Direct emission

#E - ERHN

Scope 2 — Indirect emission
HE2 - FEHR
Greenhouse gas emissions intensity

BERBHNREE

Non-hazardous waste
BEEZEY

General waste collected
PR —MRREZEY)
Paper consumption
R ERE

Paper recycled

el e 4 o
Metal/Aluminium recycled
B /RE

Plastic recycled

BB EI

Food waste recycled

B E 1K

Unit
E-ivs

Kilowatt Hour (kwh)
TR

Gigajoule (GJ)

ThEF

al

FREE

GJ/HK$ million revenue
FHEE BEBTHA

Tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (tCO,e)

M_g(iREs

tCO,e

M_EliRES

tCO,e/HK$ million revenue

M_ftmEE/BEBTKA

Litres (L)

ﬂ_

Kilogramme (kg)
NIy

BIE 3

=38 ()

il

C HEREA®E

TE-NEFER ST CTFRREBEEEZENOT

2020 2019
Group 1 Group 2 Group 1 Group 2
portfolio* portfolio* portfolio* portfolio*
-8 et £ F-H
MEAE* LES ES MEEE*
31,579,705 5,530,047 35,153,902 6,032,871
113,687 19,908 126,554 21,718
0.00 14.59 0.00 56.11
43.93 113.23
(restated)
(&31)
0.00 1.00 0.00 3.00
22,148.29 3,194.12 24,579.10 3,490.90
8.33 21.43
(restated)
(&31)
12,232,284 6,073,680 N/A NE M
116,140.18 3,089.68 126,264.85
40,087.00 164.00 39,616.00
372.40 0.00 469.30
455.40 26.00 576.50
2,588.00 N/AR@EHA 3,519.20
“ECEEER EABXEE
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

C. Use of Resource (Cont'd)

Unit

B

Water consumption

ke

Water Cubic metre (m®)

7K MK

Water consumption intensity m?3/HK$ million revenue
HKEBEE NHR/BEBTHRA

Notes to reporting boundary for environmental metrics

Group 1 portfolio refers to properties that are owned by Chinese
Estates, and properties owned by Chinese Estates’ substantial
shareholder which Chinese Estates is managing as an agent. We
consider Group 1 to be remained in our portfolio for a long period
of time. Group 1 portfolio includes: Chinese Estates’ headquarters,
The ONE, Silvercord, Windsor House, Causeway Place, Excelsior
Plaza (include Laforet), Wanchai Computer Centre and Harcourt
House.

Group 2 portfolio refers to properties that are currently not
owned by Chinese Estates, but the owners have appointed a
subsidiary of Chinese Estates to be the property manager (other

R -HE2RE

=38 ()

il

A B

C. EREA®

2020
Group 1
portfolio*
$—8
mEEE

144,480.00

64.03

*

Group 2
portfolio*
E-HE
MELE*

50,250.00

2019
Group 1 Group 2
portfolio* portfolio*
£ F-H
ES WEEE*
213,064.20°
162.65
(restated)
(&3)

RIEEENREREZFHA

EHEMEECEREABEEEFTNDY
¥ UMHEABEIZREREABEE

RREANER)EENYE - T

27 M Y
REBE—

BoEeRPERMNREAGT - F—

HYEMES
ONE * #BH L »
£ ’|ﬁ%ﬁ%(@%%ﬁuaforeﬂ
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B
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EAE -
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BHmE

BEIBEZEEAE XK

BAREEIHREEAGE - BEYRAEAR

than those covered in Group 1 portfolio). For electricity and water
consumption, we only cover areas that we have control. General
waste collected refer to those collected from the entire property.
Group 2 portfolio includes: Chic Castle, Evergreen Garden, i-home,
Indihome, Manhattan Avenue, Miami Crescent, MOD 595, One
South Lane, One WanChai, Sunrise Villa, The Bellevue Place and

York Place.

g Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 since January 2020 in Hong Kong, the 2
Water Supply Department had stopped their manual water meter reading
recording service for certain period of time, and some water bills had
not been received as of the date of publication of 2019 ESG Report. A
small proportion of the water consumption data in 2019 ESG Report was

based on estimation and has updated in this Report.
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EMPLOYMENT

Employees play a critical role in the success of the Group. Chinese Estates
endeavours to create an equal, healthy and inclusive workplace for our
employees to grow together with the Group. Our Workplace Employment
Policy outlines the guidance to prohibit any discrimination and harassment,
offering healthy and safe workplaces, as well as provide comprehensive
trainings and professional development to employees. The Policy will be
reviewed regularly by the management to ensure the rights of employees
within the company are protected. With dignity and respect, we recognise
employees from diverse backgrounds, and we comply with the applicable
laws and regulations including the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of
the laws of Hong Kong).

A. People

Equal Opportunities

The Group adheres to providing employees with a pleasant and
harmonious working environment that can improve productivity
and staff morale. Our employees are required to comply with the
guideline of equal opportunities specified in the Code of Conduct
and to treat everyone with respect and dignity. We adhere to the
non-discrimination policy during the recruitment process. Applicants
are assessed based on their skill, ability and working experience
regardless of gender, age, ethnicity, religion, race, disability, marital or
family status, or any other characteristics protected by law. We assure
that our recruitment process remains fair and competitive and we
provide equal opportunities to employees in making all employment

decisions by us.

Remuneration

To attract and retain talents, we provide employees with a fair
and competitive remuneration package. Appraisal is conducted
annually by department heads. Salaries are reviewed based on the
performance and experience of the employees. Our promotion
policies are performance-based. Employees are rewarded with a
year-end discretionary bonus based on market conditions where
certain individual performance levels are met. Our remuneration
packages and policies are reviewed regularly to assure that
employees are assessed and rewarded based on their capabilities,

responsibilities and performance.
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EMPLOYMENT (Contd) 3
A. People (Cont'd) A. EEE)
Workforce Composition ESHAK

m Total Number of Workforce

EERRE
g 0e0
rvy

E Total Number of Workforce by Employment Category
ZEREREDHEB B

2019

480

2020 n 2019 2020 ﬁ @ 2019
27 lll T 26 38 .y II 39
Senior Management or Above Manager or Assistant Manager
SRERENU L KIS BNIB AT IR
2020 O G 2019
409 & 415

I

Senior Supervisor or Below

SR EEHIAT
Q Total Number of Workforce by Gender
B RIE DA E BB
2020 n 2019 2020 2019
284 281 190 199
Male Female
B4 g
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EMPLOYMENT (contd) EBRE®
A. People (Contd) A. EE®HE)
Workforce Composition (Cont'd) 1ESHAR ()

Q Total Number of Workforce by Age Group
REWRAEREDHEB R

207 246
228 193
PR
2019
41
B <30 yearsold B 30-50 years old B >50yearsold
305 AT 3085 E505% 505 A

Q Turnover

//Ib

2020 n O 2019
12.16% [ ] 21.76%
YV L

Q Employee Turnover Rate by Gender
17 I_&J';IJiIJ DR B K

ol 8w el @ ) 2
. 0 . 0 . 0 . 0
L’ 10

Male Female

S gk

Q Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group
RFAREDEBRIRAE

2020

2019 73.81%

2020

2019 20.24%

2020
2019

13.00%
12.17%

. <30 years old . 30-50 years old . >50 years old
B0RLA T 305%-505% 505 AL

e ——
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EMPLOYMENT (contd)

Occupational Health and Safety

Chinese Estates strives to provide a safe and health workplace by
managing the inherent risks in our operations. We comply with all
applicable laws and regulations including Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the laws of Hong Kong), Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the laws of Hong
Kong) and relevant safety practices stipulated in Construction Sites
(Safety) Regulations (Chapter 591 of the laws of Hong Kong).

To ensure the health and safety of our building management
front-line employees, regular and surprise safety inspections are
conducted. Property managers and estate officers are required to
report any injuries at work, including our employees and contractors
and to submit an incident report to the Human Resources for record.
We also provide annual occupational health and safety training on
personal protective equipment, fire control, loading and unloading,
manual handling operations and confined space management.
Besides, our employees are required to review occupational health

and safety-related video clips on a regular basis.

Under the pandemic situation in 2020, government-required
preventive measures are adopted. Apart from introducing Employee
Guidelines on prevention of COVID-19, we also distributed surgical

masks and hand sanitizers to our employees to protect them.

In 2020, there were 6 confirmed injury incidents. 159 lost days due
to work injury or occupational diseases was recorded. No workplace

fatalities for our employees was recorded.
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EMPLOYMENT (contd)

C.

Career and Personal Development

To improve service quality and maintain the competitiveness of
our employees, we provide trainings to employees in delivering
exceptional services to tenants and visitors and to cope with business
needs. In addition, we encourage employees to pursue further

education for self-enhancement or career development.

New hires are required to attend a compulsory New Hire Orientation
so as to get familiar with our corporate culture and to understand
their duties and skills required for their roles. On-the-job training
is provided to enhance employees’ job-related techniques and

consolidate industry knowledge.

Our Educational and Training Sponsorship Scheme supports
employees’ continuing education and skills training. Employees
enrolled in qualified courses with satisfactory performance are eligible
to apply for the sponsorship with reimbursement up to 100% of
the tuition fee. These include higher education courses relevant to
employees’ job duties organised by local educational institutions. The
external training programmes enable employees to enhance their
professionalism and maximise their potential, as well as become

well-rounded in their careers within the Group.

In alignment between our business needs and interest of our
employees, we regularly offer training that is tailored to individuals
and industry-specific. Training topics consists of the integral of various
business segments to equip employees with the necessary skills and

knowledge to manage the complex business scenario.

Building and property management is one of the key business
segments which highly depends on specialised knowledge and
practical skills that goes beyond the professional qualification.
Therefore, we regularly offer specialised trainings under various
circumstances, including topics ranging from occupational health and
safety to customer service. Apart from receiving specific professional
training, office employees must abide by the annual training plan
while front-line employees would attend regular on-site trainings with

tracked records of attendance.
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EMPLOYMENT (Contd) ’E

C.  Career and Personal Development (Cont'd) C BEEBAZE®E
Development and training data of Building Management Department NTAREEMEEELRN _T_TFNER
of the Group in 2020 are as follows: RIBFNEUE

Percentage of Employees Received Training by Gender

EMRB I NZIEET DL

Male B1% 6.69%
Female %% 16.32%

Percentage of Employees Received Training by Employment Type
REREHNEINZIEERDL

Senior Management or Above =R B E sk LA 0%
Manager or Assistant Manager 4% 3% sk B 32 45 12 10.53%
Senior Supervisor or Below &= & EE KA T 11.25%

Average Training Hours Per Trained Employee by Gender

EMRB I NEEZIEEFHIZIER

Male 514 1.29 Hours /]NEF
Female ZZ 1% 1.44 Hours /B

Average Training Hours Per Trained Employee by Employment Type

ZEBERNESINESRZIREEFIZIRH

Senior Management or Above =R E IR E LA £ 0 Hour /)N
Manager or Assistant Manager 4% 1% sk B 1% 4712 1.38 Hours /N
Senior Supervisor or Below 1= &% EE s AT 1.38 Hours /)N
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COMMUNITY

Chinese Estates is dedicated to creating values for society while striving for
company growth. We are keen to engage in various charitable activities,
donation and sponsorship events to show our love and care to the
society. Our Community Investment Policy demonstrates our commitment
to making a positive social impact through integrating the community
development plan with business operations. Besides, the Policy summaries
the focus areas for our community programmes, namely environmental
protection and conservation and youth and children development. We
strive to nurture a culture of social responsibility through partnership with
NGOs in organizing community activities to promote a caring culture in
the society. Our employees are welcomed to join the Chinese Estates
Volunteer Team to interact with people from different sectors of the
community and help the people in need. We believe that the business-
community partnership will provide long-term benefits to the society and

foster a friendly and caring culture in the company.

We also encourage our employees to give back to the society by joining
different volunteer and charitable activities. During the reporting year,
we participated in 6 charitable activities, contributing to a total of 166
volunteering hours. For instance, we have been participating in the “Life
Buddies” Mentoring Scheme for the fourth consecutive year to provide
mentorship support to the youth. This year, 10 staff joined to be the
mentors and accompanied the youth to gain different life exposures and
to explore potential career paths by participating in academic and career

development workshops.

List of charitable activities we have participated as follows:

Organisation

iR

Commission On Poverty

KEZE®

Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped Youth
EECEEFHE

Agency for Volunteer Service

EHTIEERRE

With the consideration beyond financial return, Chinese Estates integrates
community investment into business operation. We leverage our resources
to support the local community by offering shopping mall spaces that are
under our management to different organizations for hosting exhibitions,

charity sales and publicity events.
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Charitable Activities
BETEE

“Life Buddies" Mentoring Scheme 2019/20
& - BA 6D AT 812019/20

Joy Charity Walk = Inclusion « 50th Anniversary
[M2REAT] « RO - A+

Caring Start-at-Home Campaign
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REASONS OF NOT REPORT CERTAIN “COMPLY
OR EXPLAIN" PROVISIONS OF THE GUIDE

ABIESIFETIAETHAERE]
1R SCAEE 3 2 R

“Comply or explain” Provisions Reasons

[ 8 <F R AR ] R 3L RE

A. Environmental

A R#E

Aspect Al: Emissions

BEAL : $B

Key Performance The types of emissions and respective emissions data. | During the reporting period, there was no significant
Indicator (“KPI") HEp e AR B R U o emission of NOx, SOx and other pollutants in our
Al operations.

BB RIER RBEHN - RMEEERTRERNSHRAEL
((EREZIER]) - e R EAME R
Al

KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, During the reporting period, there was no significant

B AR IEALS where appropriate, intensity.
FEEEEEEDLEE CAIEE)R(WMER) =
[ o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBEA2 : ERER

KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
RRR4EWUIRIZA2.4 | water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

K ERGE A KR E AT B (AT RE - AR PRETSZEY
Rk B IR R AEREL B RAMERME S8 o

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in
B AR IEA2.5 tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

R mAABEMENEE AR E) Rk (ER)
BEEEUGE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3 : BERRXAER

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on

B A8 IR TRAS. the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

MR EBTHHRERARRERNERFERER
MEBRAHELENTE -

B. Social
B. #E&

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
FBEB4 : &5 T%A|

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
BB BUIEIEBRA practices to avoid child and forced labour.
e s B EPI R EIEAB R E T RAHIAT -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
BB BUEIEBRA2 when discovered.

AR B B R ERR B B IS SLPTERERH 22
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EmB6 : EMEE

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
B2 4E BUIE1ER6.1 recalls for safety and health reasons.
EENRREREMEBTRL S BEFIEMMAR
WE B AL ©
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production of hazardous waste in our operations.
REBEHN - BRMELERTBELIAEFEREER
) o

During the reporting period, there was no issue in
sourcing water for our operations.

RI|BEHA - BAELER L EKBUKR HHH
B

The issue of packaging materials is considered not
significant in our operations.

BEMHERMANEEMFLTEK -

During the reporting period, there was no significant
impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources.

RIBEHA - TEEBEBHHRERRAREREK
BERYE -

The issue of child and forced labour is considered not
significant in our operations.

BTIRBHBTHEHRMANEEMSLTEK

During the reporting period, there was no non-
compliance case regarding child and forced labour.
REERA - WEAHEET RaH% TATESFE

£

During the reporting year, no products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
RBEFA  TEREEXEREXERRLT 2 RIER
B mAR Y o
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HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 123 to 289, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYZBERES
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2020,
the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current
assets by approximately

HK$1,508,939,000.

To support the going
concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financial
statements, management of
the Group has prepared a
cash flow projections of the
Group covering a period of
not less than twelve months
from 31 December 2020 and
concluded that there would
be sufficient funds from the
Group's existing cash resources,
available facilities from banks
and a director and cash flows
to be generated from its
operations to finance its future
operations and enable it to
meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due in
the next twelve months from
31 December 2020.

The cash flow projections
involved key assumptions
such as revenue growth, gross
profit margin, planned capital
expenditures, and availability of

facilities to the Group.

Our procedures in relation to the

preparation of the consolidated

financial statements on a going

concern basis included, but were not

[imited to:

assessing the appropriateness of
the key assumptions in the cash
flow projections, including revenue
growth, gross profit margin and
planned capital expenditures by
referencing to actual historical
performance of the Group and
making reference to the Group's
future development plan, and
testing the mathematical accuracy

of the projections;

confirming the cash resources
and available facilities from banks
and the director as at year end
by circularisation of confirmations
and assessing the probability of
banking facilities renewal during
the projection period by examining
historical records of renewal
pattern, and reviewing management
assessment on the present and
forecast status of compliance with
restrictive loan covenants, where

relevant; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis (Cont'd)

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements (Cont'd)

Our procedures in relation to the
preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going
concern basis included, but were not
limited to: (Cont'd)

— evaluating the sensitivity of the
projected available cash by
considering downside scenarios
through applying reasonably
plausible changes to the key
assumptions, including revenue
growth and gross profit margin.
We have also considered the
appropriateness of the relevant

disclosures.

We found the use of going concern
basis of accounting to be supportable

by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Notes 19 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements

Management has estimated
the fair value of the Group's
investment properties to be
approximately HK$14,373,283,000
as at 31 December 2020 with
a net loss on fair value changes
for the year ended 31 December
2020 recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income of approximately
HK$1,549,240,000. Independent
external valuations were obtained
in respect of all of the portfolio
of the Group, also with the
investment properties held by its
associates and joint venture in
order to support management's

estimates.

The valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that
require significant management
judgment including reversionary
yield and rental income from
future reversion leases in light

of current market conditions.

Our procedures in relation to
management's valuation of investment
properties included, but were not

limited to:

— evaluating the independent external
valuers' competence, capabilities
and objectivity;

— assessing the methodologies used
and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions and parameters based
on our knowledge of the property
industry and using our audit

valuation experts; and

— checking, on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input

data used.

We found the key assumptions were

supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Classification and fair value measurement on financial assets

Refer to Notes 5(c), 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2020,
the Group held equity
securities with carrying
amount of approximately
HK$14,407,220,000 which
were irrevocably elected and
designated as financial assets
measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2020,
the Group held unlisted
equity securities (including
limited partnership), structured
products and club and
corporate debentures with
carrying amounts of approximately
HK$1,593,220,000,
HK$52,426,000 and
HK$57,774,000 respectively.
These financial instruments
do not have a quoted market
price in an active market (the
“Unquoted Investments”). They
were classified as financial
assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive
income or financial assets
measured at fair value through
profit or loss and measured at

fair value.

Our procedures over the classification
of financial assets and fair value
measurement of the Group's portfolio
of the Unquoted Investments included,

but were not limited to:

— assessing management's evaluation
in relation to the classification
of financial assets based on the
Group’'s business model for
managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial

assets;

— reviewing management's
memorandum for the classification
of financial assets and the irrevocable
election to designate investment in
equity instruments that would be
measured subsequent changes in
fair value in other comprehensive

income;

— enquiring the management
including fund manager and
assessing the methodologies
used in fair value measurement
and the appropriateness of the
key assumptions and parameters
based on our knowledge of the
investment and using our audit

valuation experts;

— enquiring the management
the assumptions around the
sustainability of earnings based
on the plans of the investee
companies and whether these

were achievable;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT RV B M| EE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Classification and fair value measurement on financial assets

(Cont'd)

Refer to Notes 5(c), 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements

(Cont'd)

The valuation of the Unquoted
Investments is complex and
requires the application of
significant judgment by the

management.

The Unquoted Investments are
valued on a basis considered
the most appropriate by the
management and independent
external valuers, depending on
the nature of the underlying
business which has been

invested in.

Our procedures over the classification

of financial assets and fair value

measurement of the Group's portfolio

of the Unquoted Investments included,

but were not limited to: (Cont'd)

obtaining management information
including budgets and forecasts
from the portfolio companies
being valued and using these to
corroborate the key inputs in the

valuation model;

checking, on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input
data used such as comparing key
underlying financial data inputs
to external sources and investee
companies’ audited financial
statements and management

information as applicable;

obtaining market second hand
prices independently and
comparing them to the valuation

model;

evaluating the independent external
valuers’ competence, capabilities
and objectivity; and

checking the arithmetical accuracy

on the valuation model.

We considered management's

classification and fair value measurement

on financial assets were supported by the

available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the Group’s 2020
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also: (Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: PO6417

Hong Kong, 8 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REZTHEWRFERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE=—ZE=FF+-_A=+—HILFE

Revenue ION
Dividend income g B4 A
Interest income FEWA
Others Efth
Total revenue N L
Cost of goods and services provided RS mE R 2 AR
Gross profit EH|
Other income H A A
Investment (expenses) income, net FEFDWAFE
Administrative expenses TR

Gain (loss) on disposals of equipment, net &R 2 W (B518) F58
Fair value changes on investment properties REMFE 2 AT EE
Finance costs IS8R
Other gains and losses H bWz K g8
Impairment loss of goodwiill B 2R E R
Share of results of investments accounted for {5 MR E ARG E 2
using the equity method ES
Profit before tax R 350 A g A
Income tax expense FriSHi 2
Profit for the year AN i A
Other comprehensive expenses Hit2mEZ H
Items that will not be reclassified to TEEF /T HEERDZ
profit or loss IE 1=}

Gains and losses on investments in equity F‘J/H\ﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬂ 5 DA S Bk
instruments measured at fair value NFEFEZRATAKRE
through other comprehensive income 2 W Mg 1E

Share of other comprehensive expenses BIEUEREARREZ
of investments accounted for using the Hih2mEZ T
equity method

Items that may be reclassified BEAEEN T HERELZ
subsequently to profit or loss HH

Exchange differences on translation of BONERSPIEEE 2
foreign operations M W EH

Share of other comprehensive income BIEUEREARIKREZ
(expenses) of investments accounted for Efth 2w ()

using the equity method
Reclassification adjustment related to
dissolution of foreign operations

SR RBEHL
BN HEBE

AEEEMEELH
(Br#i1%)

Other comprehensive expenses for the year
(net of tax)

Total comprehensive expenses for the year NEEXH X HELE

Notes

Wi

~

11

23

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

(restated)

(&7

1,973,156 =

596,092 715,857

472,216 594,095

3,041,464 1,309,952
(79,938) (43,497)

2,961,526 1,266,455

281,268 20,763

(427,829) 1,169,820
(320,600) (269,516)
6,299 (173)
(1,549,240) (742,659)
(215,559) (370,185)
(4,860) (12,341)
= (322,938)

(38,459) 209,684

692,546 948,910
(70,282) (157,258)

622,264 791,652
(5,763,244) (1,187,045)
(93) (38)
(5,763,337) (1,187,083)

152,262 106,977
10,225 (4,344)

- 10,678

162,487 113,311
(5,600,850) (1,073,772)
(4,978,586) (282,120)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #R& 2 E R ZE KK

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FHET FHET
(restated)
(Z5)
Profit for the year attributable to: A FERR
Owners of the Company ZA/NIE 2N 622,233 790,167
Non-controlling interests FEER R S 31 1,485
622,264 791,652
Total comprehensive expenses BiEAFER2ER HAE !
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KAREB A (4,978,617) (283,605)
Non-controlling interests FEFER R 31 1,485
(8,978,586) (282,120)
Earnings per share (HK$) ERERNCET) 18
Basic and diluted ERRES 0.326 0414

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — #R& M BHREM T R A M BEHREN—BH -

financial statements.
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Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for
using the equity method

Advances to associates

Advance to a joint venture

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Advances to investee companies

Deferred tax assets

Pledged deposits

Prepayments

Current assets

Stock of properties

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Inventories

Debtors, deposits, other receivables and

prepayments

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Tax recoverable
Pledged deposits

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R |k

At 31 December 2020 R=ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H

FRBEE

KREME
WE -~ BB k&
EREEE
BEE
AEREANRZIEE

BB A RIRUE

BN —HEEERARIIE
IR 18 38 DA I B
ATEFEZERMEE
478 38 2t 2 T M e DA P ik

ATEFEZERMEE

BB ERRIFIA

BT E &

ERFR

TR RIE

D

RBEE

NEFE
BB 18 7 DA R A
RHEAEZEREE
E3 S

FEWRRIE - 2% - HARUKARIA

KIaR5RIA
& W78 75 22 5 PR IA R A 3R
AT = 35 R
ERER
EHIFR

CIRTTHEBRRE

Notes

B eE

24
25
26

27

33

27
34

32
31(b)

31(a)
31(0)

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Figx FHET
14,373,283 14,759,507
169,262 45,524
126,215 136,899
2,199,510 2,433,328
48,463 48,111
- 158,818
1,629,070 1,670,271
14,407,220 20,182,543
100,737 105,902
11,272 1,592
81,974 100,002
50,380 15,388
33,197,386 39,657,885
232,938 224,380
1,921,466 7,368,082
4,964 2,328
250,152 301,181
27,055 16,961
2,344 1,432
178,532 174,221
1,654,542 565,319
4,271,993 8,653,904
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2020 R—ZZE-ZHF+_-_A=+—H

Current liabilities

Creditors and accruals

Securities trading and margin payable
Deposits and receipts in advance
Lease liabilities

Tax liabilities

Borrowings

Derivative financial instrument

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company

Share capital

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
reserve

Contribution reserve

Statutory reserve

Special reserve

Capital redemption reserve

Translation reserve

Retained profits
— proposed final dividend

— others

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

nEBaE

FE 5 AR IR K FE R 3RIR
ENEFRZEBERFRESD
e RIEWRR

RBEEFEE

EERERRBAR

RABERAEER AR

LN

378 308 L At 2 T M DA S Bk
NHEREZEREELZ
Zi

TE

EERR

Ry Bl 5
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mEMBRRER

2020 2019

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M TExT FHET
35 158,469 151,010
38,883 11,246
167,623 218,235
21(b) 67,300 47,929
36,110 117,700
36 5,312,436 9,240,299
37 111 6,060
5,780,932 9,792,479

(1,508,939) (1,138,575)
31,688,447 38,519,310
38 190,762 190,762
65,461 5,829,284
206,627 -
668 668
2,499,685 2,499,685
138,062 138,062

(317,410) (479,897)
19,076 19,076
25,955,852 25,371,285
28,758,783 33,568,925
21,467 21,436
28,780,250 33,590,361




Non-current liabilities

Borrowings

Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to investee companies

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

FRBEE

BE
REBER
REESZE
REFFIER
HEAE
EEHBARE

AIFRIA
EWNEIE ]
% D% B8 308

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 8 March

2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Chan, Hoi-wan

Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %R & BF ik SR 3k

At 31 December 2020 R ZZE=_TF+_-_A=+—H

2020 2019

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M TExT FHET
36 1,951,396 4,201,960
39 260,344 212,419
39 581,898 368,563
39 275 333
21(b) 57,890 84,125
30 56,394 61,549
2,908,197 4,928,949

31,688,447 38,519,310

EEEFEN T _—F=AN\BHERKREHE

i WHTIEFHKEREFERE

Lam, Kwong-wai MHEF
Director EF

FaMBRRM TGS M ERERN—

“ECEFEER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERETEZEFHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BIZE—ZE-ZFF+-_A=+—BILFE

At 1 January 2019

Profit for the year
(ains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— Listed equity investments
— Unlisted investments
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Reclassification adjustment related to
dissolution of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive expenses of

investments accounted for using the equity method

Total comprehensive expenses for the year
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
Interim dividend for 2019 paid

Final dividend for 2018 paid

At 31 December 2019
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Attributable to owners of the Company

FOAERARERAFES

Share

capital

LEN
HK$'000
Tz

190,762

Financial assets
measured

at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income reserve
BREMEEWES
NURMATLETE
ZEMEEZRE
HK$'000

TR

(note (i)
(PEE(i))

7,016,367

Contribution

reserve

EERE
HK$'000

TET
(note (ii))
(PR i)

(1,590,629)
403,584

(38)

(1,187,083)

190,762

5,829,284




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #MRERTEZRSEH X

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREANEERARER
Capital Non-
Statutory Special redemption Translation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EERE Rl E EXRERE ER REBR #a FERER RARRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TEL TEL TET TET
(note (iii)) (note (iv))
(BREE i) GEI)

668 2,499,685 138,062 (593,208) 24,810,032 34,062,368 81,201 34,143,569

S S S = 790,167 790,167 1,485 791,652
= = = = = (1,590,629) = (1,590,629)

= = = = = 403,584 = 403,584

S S S 106,977 = 106,977 = 106,977

S S S 10,678 = 10,678 = 10,678
= = = (4,344) = (4,382) = (4,382)
- - - 113,311 790,167 (283,605) 1,485 (282,120)
= = = = = = (61,250) (61,250)
- - = = (19,076) (19,076) = (19,076)
= = = = (190,762) (190,762) = (190,762)

668 2,499,685 138,062 (479,897) 25,390,361 33,568,925 21,436 33,590,361
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the year
Gains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— Listed equity investments
— Unlisted investments
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive income of

investments accounted for using the equity method

Total comprehensive expenses for the year

Transfer of reserve upon disposal of the investment in
an equity instrument measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Disposals of debt securities

Interim dividend for 2020 paid

Final dividend for 2019 paid

At 31 December 2020
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RERTERBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOARERARERAFES

Share

capital

LEN
HK$'000
TAT

190,762

Financial assets
measured

at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income reserve
BREMEEWES
NRMATLETE
ZEMEEZRE
HK$'000

TR

(note (i)
iEA0)

5,829,284

Contribution

reserve

TERE
HK$'000
TET
(note (ii))
GiEA0)

(5,761,885)
(1,359)

(93)

(5,763,337)

(486)

206,627

190,762

65,461

206,627




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #HFERAEREE R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAEERA#ER
Capital Non-
Statutory Special redemption Translation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EERE KRR E BEXRERE ER REBR #a FERER RARRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TET
(note (iii)) (note (iv))
(BRFEE i) GEI)
668 2,499,685 138,062 (479,897) 25,390,361 33,568,925 21,436 33,590,361
- - - - 622,233 622,233 31 622,264
- - - - = (5,761,885) - (5,761,885)
= = = = = (1,359) - (1,359)
- - - 152,262 - 152,262 - 152,262
- - - 10,225 - 10,132 - 10,132
= = = 162,487 622,233 (4,978,617) 31 (4,978,586)
- - - - 486 - - -
- - - - - 206,627 - 206,627
= = = = (19,076) (19,076) = (19,076)
= = = = (19,076) (19,076) = (19,076)
668 2,499,685 138,062 (317,410) 25,974,928 28,758,783 21,467 28,780,250
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #SZeaRAEZEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZF-ZFF+-A=+—BIEFE

Notes: Fits

(i)  The cumulative amount of the loss on listed equity investment(s) () RZ-Z_ZTF+_A=+—H ' LTREELESD
classified as financial assets measured at fair value through other HREBAEMEENRARBEAFE(REEAm
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") was approximately HK$781,957,000 2EHBEARBAFEDGEZEREEZ B
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: gain of HK$4,980,414,000). E1E 4584 /781,957,000 T (ZF—LE : Ik

#4,980,414,000% 1)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the unrealised loss on fair B’\%Zi EEFEFT_A=Z+-HIEFER
value change from holding shares of China Evergrande Group (stock BAEMEEAREURBMATEFZZS mﬁé
code: 3333) (“Evergrande Shares”) of HK$5,762,000,000 (2019: EZREBPHEREFEPE \Ejﬁ‘i = (AR 1
HK$1,591,000,000) was recorded in financial assets measured at R37 3333\ ([ERABRDDZAFEESFH 2
FVTOCI reserve. The gain of another listed equity investment measured RE I E 5,762,000, OOO/’%E(_ —NEF
at FVTOCI including realised gain of approximately HK$120,000 1 ,591,000,000787T) © 3 18 H fth 2 U a5 DA I B
(2019: nil) and the transaction costs of the disposal of approximately AFEHEZEREEZREFHRBRES —E
HK$5,000 (2019: nil) was recorded in the financial assets measured AREMEEHKEARRAFEFEZ ETRA
at FVTOCI reserve. Upon completion of the disposal, the cumulative fair BREZW=BEEZRINEL 1200008 T(ZF
value gain and the transaction costs in the financial assets measured at —NF B RHEZRHKALS 0008 T(ZF
FVTOCI reserve that related to the disposal amounted to approximately —NEE) cREKREER  BBHEM2ER
HK$486,000 was transferred to retained profits. HURBMAFEFEZEREEZHETREBAD

EZ R R TFEKERRSRAEFEL486,000

BTEEBEREBEF

(i)  The excess amount paid by Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, who is a trustee of (i) HEEEESFZREHRABLET(KARAFRZE
substantial shareholders of the Company (“Trustee of Substantial ERFzEAATEERR 2EEAD)ERE
Shareholders”), as the purchaser in relation to the disposal of debt ALERBKES 2 ER FBEEHINRMEE270))) KA
securities (details are set out in Note 27(i)), at the consideration of AE&EESBEZ100%ZNMBEHBETTHEEAEGZ
100% of principal amount over the prevailing market bid price of the BHINCREERRBENER - MEZBINSEER
debt securities disposed of was directly recognised in the reserve as it is ERARNAIERLEEZ FEST -
deemed as the contribution from the Company's equity participant.

(i)  The statutory reserve of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) (i) ZARBREMBAB([AEE]) ZAT HEIEF
refers to the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") statutory reserve fund. ZARAMB(HED)EZE#HEBEES - MZRHE
Appropriations to such reserve fund are made out of profit after tax as B 2 BRI 8 F B B 2 REE M B8R
recorded in the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The RIFSFF 2R - BRIEFMB SR ZER
amount should not be less than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in BB BB AREMEARZ50%  BRIZE
the statutory financial statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds BISENEETBBRERAMBEZRBIRER
500% of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory 10% - EERBE DN E#HBEFREEEREWAR)E
reserve can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be YEH » M0 RT 3B 3B & AN B 1T FE AR DA L 4805 Fh B BT
applied in conversion into the PRC subsidiaries' capital by means of BARIZAR -
capitalisation issue.

(iv)  Special reserve represented the difference arising from the aggregate of  (iv) 45 BIREH# T HEATIEIR A FIEA R VIWAIK:S
the share capital and premium amount of the former holding company B ZIZR A Tﬁﬁ%ik TEq*ZHxZJS&mf‘LBE

and the Company upon redomicile of the holding company as a
Bermuda Company in 1989 and is non-distributable.

%@%EE‘EEZ%%E&Z%T—J DB -

BT BEN A S REMN—F5 -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — #3&

financial statements.
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Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest expenses
Interest income from other financial assets
Allowance for credit losses recognised
in respect of trade receivables
Reversal of allowance for credit losses
in respect of trade receivables
Write-off of trade receivables
Write-off of other receivable
Unrealised gain arising from change in
fair value of bonds
Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of structured products
Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of investments held-for-trading
Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of club and corporate debentures
Realised gain arising from change in
fair value of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss
Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of derivative financial instrument
(Gain) loss on disposals of equipment, net
Share of results of investments accounted for
using the equity method
Allowance for credit losses recognised
in respect of advances to associates
Reversal of allowance for credit losses
in respect of advance to an associate
Fair value changes on investment properties
Overprovision of costs in respect of
a development project, net
Write-down of stock of properties
Exchange loss (gain), net
Impairment loss of gooduwill
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries

Write-off of creditors and accruals

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBRETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE=—ZE=FF+-_A=+—HILFE

xR
B T A )
RN ER A
WE - BERRETE
EREEERE
M E R
Hitv 2 BEEZ N BHEA
SN E BRI FER
EEEBRE
W E P RIERE 2
EREERE
FIEU E 5 R TE 2 i3
FhELAD R U AR TE 2 i 8H
(EEWANSRIEE
MEL 2 REH WS
BEUEERZIATEED
MEL 2 REHEIR
FIEEEZREZAVEE
MELZ REHEIE
ERRARESFZATEES
MELZ REHEIE
BEERARRAFEEZ
EMEEZATEED
MmES 2B #H =
TEERMTAZ A FEES
MELZ REHEIR
H &Rz (Wad) B 1% 5
BIEAESEARRE 258

T HE & 1N B BURRER
EEEERE
FREAY — B & N R FOR R
ZIEEEERREE
REMEZ A FER
—IRERERZ

XA B R R
WEFEZRE
PE B 1R (W) FHR
BEZEERE
LRIPNEIL S ol 3
FAPE A AR TE K FE AT R IR 2 # 8K

Notes

B eE

23

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(restated)

(&7)

692,546 948,910
25,624 7,384
62,564 19,680
188,332 376,856
(6,705) (8,648)
2,852 -
(29) (43)

- 16

- 18
(14,912) (978,452)
1,897 -
12,678 -
1,646 13,090
(7.,345) (30,024)
111 6,060
(6,299) 173
38,459 (209,684)
56 982

(29) -
1,549,240 742,659
(1,877) (6,452)

4,831 681
21,134 (13,080)
- 322,938

- 10,678
- (135)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #IRERE&RER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FExT FAT
(restated)
(E75))

Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEDR 2

working capital KEBRRRE 2,564,774 1,203,607
Increase in stock of properties MEFEEM (411) -
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE OG> (2.636) 859
Decrease in debtors, deposits, other receivables FEURFRIE « =& + H i EUIRTE

and prepayments M FEAS FRIE R, 51,195 210,962
Decrease (increase) in financial assets mBEEARBRATEFEZ

measured at fair value through profit or loss EEVEER D (80 5,432,083 (1,416,954)
(Increase) decrease in securities trading ERFESRZZFERBRER

receivables and deposits ()RS (10,094) 5,536
Decrease in sales proceeds held by stakeholders 1R & A P15 $5 & AT1S s B A - 32,341
Increase (decrease) in creditors and accruals FE T BRIE 2 FE ST SR I3 A0 ORi 4) 6,250 (100,291)
Increase (decrease) in securities trading and ENEFRXZEERRES

margin payable EHCR L) 27,635 (11,049)
(Decrease) increase in deposits and e RBWGKIE

receipts in advance CRLA) 1N (52,677) 3,034
Decrease in derivative financial instrument PTHESBT AR (6,060) -
Cash generated from (used in) RE AR KEEB RS

operating activities 8,010,059 (71,955)
Income tax paid, net B ATISEUE (170,770) (78,305)
Net cash generated from (used in) RERARREEB 2R FE

operating activities 7,839,289 (150,260)
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Investing activities
Dividends received from associates
Interest received from other financial assets
Payments for investment properties
Payments for purchases of equipment and
leasehold improvement
Proceeds from disposals of equipment
Advances to associates
Advances from associates
Advance to a joint venture
Advances to investee companies
Advances/repayments from
investee companies
Decrease (increase) in pledged deposits
Decrease (increase) in time deposits with
maturity greater than three months
Payments for stock of properties
Net proceeds from disposals of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss
Net proceed from disposal of a financial asset
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Purchases of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss
Purchase of a financial asset measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of
assets through acquisition of a subsidiary
Net return of capital contribution from
a financial asset measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income

Net cash (used in) generated from

investing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

?E—AIﬁﬁl)ILE%‘:{

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

REXH
BE R A E 2R E
BUWEH A SR E E 2 S
SR EYERIE
SREEREREEYEE
RIE

S R FTS 5RIE
B AR ZFIE

VR EWE QT ZHRIE
AN —HEERRZHIE
BRNEZIREQR ZHRIEA
BREEABEIRER
FIE

HRFR R hn)

3

Az

BRMSN=EAZTHER

B (38 n)
S MEFERIE
HE®BBER

ZERMEEZES

AR AT ERE
FIBFEE

B H fth 2 R E DA SR AR

RNHEFEZERMEEZ

FriS FIRF 58
EERBERUARRA
ZEBMEE

FiEEE

BEABEMEEKEIARKR

ATEHEZ EWAE
$HE AU — R 2

AR

BEREEZHSRLFE
2R B 3 i@ B fth A [ Ui as DA S gk

RNFEFEZEREELZ

iR T BB

(AR RAEREEB 2R FHE

Notes

B eE

40

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
(restated)
(E51)
= 48,212
7,333 6,706
(47,792) (861)
(143,130) (32,449)
6,394 8
(594) (151)
47,964 40,800
= (4,600)
= (155,787)
218,500 1,070,752
5,972 (39,154)
118,700 (44,959)
— (886)
1,062,626 139,254
2,767 -
(1,000,856) -
- (2,281)
(352,438) -
9,312 —
(65,242) 1,024,604
—s-zaFE  gAE¥$%E 135
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #FRERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

Financing activities

Dividends paid

Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder

Interest on bank borrowings and

other borrowings paid

Payments for lease liabilities (including interest)

Bank borrowings and other borrowings raised

Loans from a director raised

Repayments of bank borrowings and

other borrowings

Repayments of loans from a director
Repayment to a non-controlling shareholder

Deemed contribution from an equity participant

of the Company

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents

at 31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash and

cash equivalents

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

Less: Time deposits with maturity greater

than three months

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes

B eE

31(0)

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAET
(restated)

(&51)

(38,152) (209,838)
-~ (50,000)
(196,651) (374,926)
(56,106) (11,600)
5,735,541 7,172,415
589,778 =
(12,224,650) (7,570,936)
(589,549) =
- (23,924)
206,627 -
(6,573,162) (1,068,809)
1,200,885 (194,465)
413,190 605,872
4,833 1,783
1,618,908 413,190
1,654,542 565,319
(35,634) (152,129)
1,618,908 413,190
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE=—ZE=FF+-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
Company's registered office and principal office in Hong Kong are
disclosed in the section head “Corporate Information” of this annual
report. Details of the substantial shareholders of the Company
are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders'
Interests in the Securities of the Company” in the section headed

“Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“"HK$"), which is same as the functional currency of the
Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set

out in Notes 49 and 50 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs

The accounting policies adopted in these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 except

as described below.

1.

—RE#

ARBR—HRBAREIMR L2 ER AR
RE KRR EBEBARZMAR AR (H
RN LM - ARRZEAMMERREELE
WMERZHUNAFERIDBER | —EH FIA
W - ARBEERRZFBENRAFRIES
BRES | —HPEI2RRREAR B ZESFE

3B AT IABE -

R B BHERABT(EBTDZ25 BT
RBARBZYeEEY - BEBRZEHBAN - B
BHHUBERAAEZREOZ TREFTET)

ARRZEBEBR/REER  METENE
REIRBERE 2 EBEB DRI K
4950 °

R REE B HHREE
A2 85T

BRTaEN BE_B-_BF+-_A=+—H
IR 2RV BRRARMZ SRR ER
HAGKEBEE_T-NF+_A=t—HLF
BB BRRMKBEE - -

—ECEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HKFRSs (Cont'd)

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
in HKFRS Standards and the following amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (“Other Amendments")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)  Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions'

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

(Amendments)

Definition of Material

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
and early application is permitted

The application of the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in HKFRS Standards and the
Other Amendments had no material impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or on

the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HKFRSs (Cont'd)

The Group has not early adopted the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs (“new and amended HKFRSs") that have

been issued but are not yet effective.

FER#HTIREEBMEREE
B 2 1&5] @)

AREEIW AR KA NI BMEDRERZ
Al R EBM B REER BT ([T &
ERTEBM B HmELER])

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

(Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendments)

HKFRS 17

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

HKAS 37 (Amendments)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts and the related
amendments®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)*

Property, Plant and Equipment —

Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts —

BN BREER 20185 %2020 F

(BETA) Bz EARERE
AR F 2 du?

BENBREENEIR SIREESIER?

CHES

EENBRSENSR - FIREEYE -

BECHEREI% - 124

EEMBEREERNET -
BENBREERNEIRR
EAMEREERE 165
(BEIK)

ERNBRELNEI0K K

REZEREBENT

BRGERE28H Py YN PAE
(B3TA) BELERLAE

BRMBREENE1TH

R AR RARBE T

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are in the process of
assessing the potential impact of the new and amended HKFRSs
but are not yet in a position to determine whether the new and
amended HKFRSs will have a significant impact on how the Group's
performance and financial position are prepared and presented.
The new and amended HKFRSs may result in changes in the future
as to how the performance and financial position are prepared and

presented.

EHSHEE IR BaEIBAREN
CHEN) ERBEaRER
HEBRESSSE
(20209F) Z HEERT
BESERE 165 ME - BB R&E -
CHEy EERTERAZ
Fii5 B2
BEGERE375 ZENAY -
CHEy BHIRR A
' RZEZ—F—A— B Z2EABZFE
HART A4
? RZEBE_—F—A—HRZ2EABRZFE
BRI AR
3 RZE_ZF—A—HRAZ2BRBZEE
HARS A4
¢ WMEFETZHBSZERARZFEHRBE
03

ARRZEF(EF])RIEFEZFHTRE
BRI BB BRELRNBETE - R ARE
ERENFT RRETEEMBREENEAE
Bz RARMBRABER 2N T AEEHE
RERTE - ZEHM] REBRIRBU B RS
HRSEEHRARRBARMBRARZ mEL 2
SR IREE -

—B-BEER  EABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, these consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
("Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately HK$1,508,939,000 (2019:
HK$1,138,575,000). Notwithstanding the above result, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

The management closely monitors the Group's financial performance
and liquidity position. The validity of the going concern basis
depends upon the success of the Group's future operations, its
ability to generate adequate cash flows in order to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due, and its ability to refinance or
restructure its borrowings such that the Group can meet its future

working capital and financing requirements.

140 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

RE MR

TEETBREE

A AN RRE REEERIAAGEHZ
BRI W R (R IR BRI e
Al EAEIEAI(EBRHEN)RRD R
EEARBHEANMEY - 1IN - KA
WREIBMRFES L RR( EHRA) A
Tk A RERES A A D (56228) 2
BEES -

RZBZZF+-_A=+—H  AEBZRH
BEHBAE B EEL1,508,939,000% T(=
T—NF 1 1,138,575,000/87T) ° BE I LT
o RNERE MG mRDIRFELEEERR -

ERETNEEAEE I MBRARRDES
AR o SRR 2 BRIEEURN A LB R
REBZHR  HEARHRERENETH
NEPMBEECRESD AREBREREAE
EEZEN  UWnRAEEHAREEES R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHHEMHMEw

POLICIES (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had unutilised bank facilities.
Based on the latest communications with the banks, the Directors
are not aware of any intention of the principal banks to withdraw
their bank facilities or require early repayment of the borrowings, and
the Directors believe that the existing bank facilities will be renewed
or roll-overed when their current terms expire given the good track
records and relationships the Group has with the banks. Further, the

Group has unutilised loan facility from a Director.

The Directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by the management. The cash flow projections cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December 2020.
Based on the cash flow projections, the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due in the coming twelve months from 31 December 2020. The
management has made key assumptions on the projections with
regard to the anticipated cash flows from the Group's operations,
capital expenditures and the continuous availability of bank facilities.
The Group's ability to achieve the projected cash flows depends on

the continuous availability of bank facilities from the banks.

In view of the above, the Directors are of the opinion that there will
be sufficient financial resources available to the Group to enable
it to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared these

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Change in presentation and classification of certain revenue

items

In the current year, the Group has changed its accounting policy for
the presentation and classification in its consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of building management fee income and
property management services income (previously presented in and
classified as "Other Income”) and interest income from bonds and
other forms of debt securities and dividend income from listed and
unlisted equity investments (previously presented in and classified
as “Investment Income, Net"). The Group has determined that these
items should now be presented in and classified as "Revenue” of the
Group under the new accounting policy (“Reclassification”) for the

following reasons:

- Interest income from bonds and other forms of debt
securities and dividend income from listed and unlisted
equity investments are earned from investments by the
Group in various debt and equity securities. Such securities
investments are now amongst the principal activities of the
Group and comprise three out of the six reportable segments
of the Group. The Group's strategy with regard to securities
investments is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management and invest in securities investments
and treasury products with attractive yield and good prospect
in order to bring stable and satisfactory realised return in long
run. Following the reduction of the scale of operations of
the Group for sales of development properties and holding
of investment properties for generation of rental income in
recent years, the revenue contribution of the interest income
and dividend income from these securities investments have
become more and more significant to the Group. In the recent
years, the Group has committed significant financial and
managerial resources in pursuance of its securities investment
strategies. Hence, the interests and dividends derived by
the Group from its investments in these securities are now
amongst the main revenue-generating activities of the Group
and are not incidental to the main revenue-generating activities

of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHHEMHMEw

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Change in presentation and classification of certain revenue
items (Cont'd)

- Building management fee income and property management
services income are earned from provision of building and
property management services. The provision of building
and property management services is a significant activity of
the Group, entailing the employment of the highest number
of employees amongst all revenue-generating activities of
the Group. Hence, the provision of building and property
management services are now amongst the main revenue-
generating activities of the Group and are not incidental to the

main revenue-generating activities of the Group.

Further, in the opinion of the Directors, the Reclassification results
in the consolidated financial statements providing reliable and
more relevant information, taking into account the practice adopted
by other listed companies in Hong Kong for the presentation
and classification of similar items as the subject matter of the

Reclassification.
The amounts of the adjustments to the line items in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income affected by the Reclassification

are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

Revenue 1 ON
Cost of goods and services provided 1244 & & & AR 7% 2 B AR

Gross profit E7
Other income HaA
Investment income, net TEBAFEE

ETRAEBEIRDE 2B (E)

- BFEEBRAMIEEERBEAT
RRHEEBFLYEEBRRE DR < 18
HEFRMEEERBAAEE AT
BEB  EAKEMEELERAEHT
FERAKZBET A - Bt - 22
FRYEERRBECK /A EBHESD
ZEBEERAEY A AEELIE
EEWRNEBSPIIFRE -

AN EREEBERREM EWARBEEE
REFOPERA NZAB 225 ROEMER
MZI1BD - RRREEMBEREAREHN D
FRZERTMRHEAERERBEIER -

FerzERaBRXRTENERXEEHROE
EZEMTARBZ BT

BE-S-NFT-A=T-ALEE:

As previously

reported Reclassification As restated
AR KEHHEFE E7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
538,986 770,966 1,309,952
(27,535) (15,962)™ (43,497)
511,451 755,004 1,266,455
59,910 (39,147) 20,763
1,885,677 (715,857)@ 1,169,820
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Change in presentation and classification of certain revenue ETWAEBENRSE 228 (H)
items (Cont'd)

The amounts of the adjustments to the line items in the consolidated FETEHKNGERKXTFERNEEZXLENSES
statement of comprehensive income affected by the Reclassification B EMTAREBZBWT  (B)

are as follows: (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2020: BE-Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE:
Amounts without Effects of
Reclassification Reclassification As reported
I
REHFDE REHDE
EEZSH BHZY Sl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Revenue A 418,984 2,622,480 3,041,464
Cost of goods and services provided R4 & & & AR 7 2 B AR (63,449) (16,489)™ (79,938)
Gross profit EF 355,535 2,605,991 2,961,526
Other income HaA 318,011 (36,743)™ 281,268
Investment income (expenses), net & E WA (F)/F58 2,141,419 (2,569,248)? (427,829)
Notes: BitsE
(1) These relate to building management fee income of approximately (1) HHEREZINERSERBRAZEFER
HK$27,822,000 (2019: HK$28,225,000) and property B8 A 427,822,000 75 (Z T — 4 -
management services income of approximately HK$25,410,000 28,225,000/8 7T) & ¥ % & 1 AR 75 WA &)
(2019: HK$26,884,000), amounted to approximately 25,410,000/ 7T (ZZ — L% : 26,884,000
HK$53,232,000 (2019: HK$55,109,000) in aggregate I + @A H4953,232,0008 L (=ZF
now presented in and classified as revenue, net of building — L : 55,109,000/ 7T) - IKRE 25| K
management fee expenses of approximately HK$16,489,000 DERRHEEMRBRB IR A EFER
(2019: HK$15,962,000) now presented in and classified as cost BRI 416,489,000 L (ZE —NF -
of goods and services provided. 15,962,000/ 7T) 178 °
(2) These relate to interest income from bonds and structured Q) WHREBZNRDBRBAZES REHE
products of approximately HK$596,092,000 (2019: M 2 BRI 49596,092,0007 7T (=
HK$715,857,000), dividend income from listed equity T — N4 : 715,857,000 7T)  _FHARA
investments of approximately HK$1,969,757,000 (2019: nil) and "EZREWALT,969,757,0008E T (=
from unlisted equity investment of approximately HK$3,399,000 Z-hF:BRFLTRAKEZRS
(2019: nil) now presented in and classified as revenue. WA #93,399,000/ 0 (Z T —NF : £)4H
The Reclassification has no effect on the profit for the year and hence REFHOVEFRYRFE R EZE - At
on the earnings per share figures presented in the consolidated 2IREE2ERRRRAZBRAEFIEFT T
statement of comprehensive income. myE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHE#HMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Change in presentation and classification of certain revenue ETHAEBRI RS E2BE(E)
items (Cont'd)

The amounts of the adjustments to the line items in the consolidated FERERNERTERNBEERLENSHEFE
statement of cash flows affected by the Reclassification are as P TIAAEZ & FMNT !

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019: BEZZ-NFT-A=+—RHLFE:

As previously

reported Reclassification As restated
BEFHR KEHHEFE E]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Operating activities REXEK
Adjustments for: A T3 E1E 2 FHE
Interest income 2 U A (724,505) 715,857 (8,648)
Operating cash flows before EEESHEHZ
movements in working capital KERESRE 487,750 715,857 1,203,607
Decrease in debtors, deposits, other  FEUARTA ~ &4 -~ HAibEIK
receivables and prepayments IRIE RIERRIER 238,655 (27,693) 210,962
Cash used in operating activities AREEEB R (760,119) 688,164 (71,955)
Net cash used in operating activites ~ ARG & RS FRE (838,424) 688,164 (150,260)
Investing activities REXEK
Interest received B FI B 694,870 (688,164) 6,706
Net cash generated from investing KEREEG 2B EFHE
activities 1,712,768 (688,164) 1,024,604
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Change in presentation and classification of certain revenue

items (Cont'd)

RE MR

FESTHEHMEw

ETWAEB 2SR B2 28 (H)

The amounts of the adjustments to the line items in the consolidated FeaRengkTEMNEERXLENSEEE
statement of cash flows affected by the Reclassification are as FiEmTURARZSBOT  (B)

follows: (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

Operating activities
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Dividend income from listed and
unlisted investments
Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
(Increase) decrease in debtors,
deposits, other receivables and
prepayments
Decrease in financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss
Cash generated from operating
activities
Net cash generated from operating

activities

Investing activities

Dividends received from listed and
unlisted investments

Interest received

Net cash generated from (used in)

investing activities

REER

B T5IEH L HE
RN
EHRFELETREZ

FEWARIA ~ e - Hit
FENS BR TR I FR AN R
(4% ) Rk >

BRBEEARRATE
FFEZEREERD

REREEH 2R

KEREERH RS FE

B EMRIFLETREZ
[Re=)

B YFE

xERREBREXERBZ
e FR
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BE-_Z-EF+-_A=t+—RIEE:

Amounts
without
Reclassification
rE¥E
REHIE
EEZSH
HK$'000

FET

(602,797)

(1,973,156)

(4,474)

(88)

5,433,757

5,391,202

5,220,432

1,971,482
654,708

2,553,615

Effects of
Reclassification

REHDE
BRI

HK$'000
FTExT

596,092

1,973,156

2,569,248

51,283

(1,674)

2,618,857

2,618,857

(1,971,482)
(647,375)

(2,618,857)

As reported

53R
HK$'000
TExT

(6,705)

2,564,774

51,195

5,432,083

8,010,059

7,839,289

7,333

(65,242)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHHEMHMEw

POLICIES (Cont'd)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at their fair values as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.
Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or

value-in-use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its

entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;
Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company: (i) has power over
the investee; (ii) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and (iii) has the ability

to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the profit or loss from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income and
expense of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this

results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply
an optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is
met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a

business and no further assessment is needed.

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Cont'd)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to

goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of
the Company and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost that is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b)

Goodwill

Gooduwill arising from an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see the

accounting policy above).

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or groups
of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the gain or loss on

disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

Investments accounted for using the equity method

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held
for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or

joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value-in-use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on
the same basis as would be required if that associate or
joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant

associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair

value upon such changes in ownership interests.

DR R AR ZIRE (48)

EAEETERAUBERREARE

NRBEE AR KFHEHIE - HIROE
BXRET2HERAERAESIBEA
RANBRPHER - MAEBERERA

BEQNRHUABRAZEE R RE#E
BRBEVBRELENFIRBEANZ
EREE  AAKREERZARAFE
AEREBHER  MaZAFERERRY
SHABZAVE BERARREER

Az REESEARE S R D ERE
RAE KA B AR AR S PSR R
BZAFERZEZR  eREBEEHEZ
ERBREE AR ZWAEKEERA
AR Ubsh  AEEERLHERMEE
Wt % B S A RIRE B QR R T
BB AR BZBERRXAER
AERHERBEERABEMTEENR
[l e At HEBERRHAERARSL
AIEEMEEKERAZ RANEEE
E’\\Hj’iﬁfﬂ'ﬁéﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%i%ﬁﬁﬁ%éﬁ
C REBGNEE o SR
NS E}ZA’é’ BB 787 U 2 B 18 e AR

E)I

ZM BN BERE(EREN D ER
) -
ERBERRZRERRNEERAZ

BRAZNABARZRER BB ED
AZRAR - AREGEEREDS -
REERSRAREREDN  T8E
Bt BATE -

ZFEFR

_7_

g AB2E®E 155



156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

(d)

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to

profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to

the Group.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible

assets with indefinite useful lives)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEHBEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e)

Investment properties and investment properties under

construction

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation including properties
under construction for such purpose and land held for a

currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease

income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of

the investment properties under construction.

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded
as held for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an
investment property, and carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value of the leasehold land are recognised directly in profit or

loss for the period in which changes take place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e)

Investment properties and investment properties under

construction (Cont'd)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property) is
included in profit or loss for the period in which the property is

derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair value to property,
plant and equipment when the property begins to be occupied
by the owner or of development with a view to owner-
occupation. Gain or loss arising from change in fair value of
the investment property upon the transfer is included in profit

or loss.

An owner-occupied property is transferred from property, plant
and equipment to investment properties at fair value when it
is evidenced by the end of owner-occupation. The difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accounted for as a revaluation increase or decrease in
accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of assets, the relevant

revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

A property is transferred from investment property to stock
of properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to
sale. Any difference between the fair value of the property at
the date of change in use and its previous carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

®

(8)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment (other than properties under development)
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method,

at the following rates per annum:

Type Basis

Leasehold land Over the remaining lives of the

leases
Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired period of the lease and
40 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of lease terms and
improvement 6 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Yachts and motor 3to 10 years

vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the asset is derecognised.
Stock of properties
Stock of properties including completed properties which are

held-for-trading, is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(8)

(h)

Stock of properties (Cont'd)

The cost of completed properties held for sale is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units. Net
realisable value is estimated by the management of the Group
based on prevailing market conditions, which represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs to be incurred in

selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed
properties held for sale is recognised as an expense in the
period when the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down or provision, arising from an
increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of completed properties held for sale recognised

as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and raw materials for
cosmetics products, which are stated at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. Costs are
assigned to individual items on the weighted-average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

Intangible assets

Trading rights, exchange rights and trademark

Trading rights, gold and silver exchange rights and trademark
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less any

identified impairment loss. The amortisation period adopted

for intangible assets is five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. A financial asset or financial
liability (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant
financing component) is initially measured at fair value plus
or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction

price.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending

on the classification of the financial assets.

() Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for
debt investments that are designated as at FVTPL on

initial recognition):

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

®

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial asset;
and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets that are other than those
categorised as amortised cost and FVTOCI above, are

categorised as measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset is held-for-trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term;

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern

of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that is required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEHBEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()  Financial instruments (Cont'd) (G) =®MIAGEH)
Financial assets (Cont'd) THEE(E
() Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () THEESEREEZGERE)

assets (Cont'd)

(1) BERAREERNIOX

(1) Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount at initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised using effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

revenue or investment income as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

() Financial instruments (Cont'd) (G) =®MIAGEH)
Financial assets (Cont'd) THEE(E
() Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () THEESEREEZGERE)

assets (Cont'd)

(2) Financial assets measured at FVTOCI 2) BRAHMEEEEIREA

According to HKFRS 9, the Group may make
an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in
equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at
FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment
is held-for-trading. A financial asset is held-for-
trading if it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term or it is a
derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 5(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss

and is included in revenue.

The Group has designated all investments in
equity instruments (listed or unlisted) that are not
held-for-trading as at FVTOCI since the application
of HKFRS 9.

164  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

FEAECEREE

REFBMBHRSEAE
5% AEERM{ERTAHE
EBRETAERE)R
ERATARERBBEM
2 EARBRAFE - i
BRARERFEEER - BIT
AHEERBBEMEEK
BmARBRADFE - WlES
MEEZTEZANANES
NHE IR EETI—
TR IR TE AR B AR
REMZOTETAR - BIZe
BMEERGDFEEER -

BB H 2 A A R B A
FEZEATAREVSR
RFEMEZZHATE -
BEREESRATENE M
NP EEHMEEZ WaE K
B 48 B A H At 2 T W R o R
R WRNEEEMEENKE
NRBRAFEFEZEHBE
EZEET R - 2 FER
A SRR M EES (o) Pt
ZIAERE °

P B ARBRPHER RS
RERARA -

BEATEMBEREERNE
MK - AEEEIEEF
BHRBEEEZRAT AR
B(LEmedFLm) AEBE
fih 2 E M A A R THE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEHBEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()  Financial instruments (Cont'd) (G) =®MIAGEH)
Financial assets (Cont'd) THEE(E
() Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () THEESEREEZGERE)

assets (Cont'd)

(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (3) BEBEZURBAFETS

Financial assets measured at FVTPL comprise
derivatives that are not designated and effective
as hedging instruments and club and corporate

debentures.

Investments in equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, unless the Group designates such
investment that is not held-for-trading as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition (see (i)(2) above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost and FVTOCI criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments
that meet the amortised cost criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.
A debt instrument may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on

different bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw

POLICIES (Cont'd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

() Cassification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (Cont'd)

Financial assets measured at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period, with any gains or losses arising from
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
is included in investment income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 5(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest income on debt instruments at FVTPL
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

revenue.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including debtors, deposits and other receivables,
securities trading receivables and deposits, pledged
deposits, time deposits, bank balances and cash,
and advances to associates/joint venture/investee
companies) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessment is done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for significant balances or collectively using a

provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market

indicators of credit risk;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more

lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

1)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate a later period
is more appropriate. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking information that

is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective

interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses on a
forward-looking basis whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
“credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data of the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
borrower;

. a breach of contract such as a default or past due
event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider; or

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
or the disappearance of an active market for a

security because of financial difficulties.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial assets to another entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEHBEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont'd)

On derecognition of a financial asset, except for an
investment in equity instrument that is classified as
FVTOC]|, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
that is classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit

or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

®

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or equity instruments according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's financial
liabilities are generally classified into (i) financial liabilities
at FVTPL and (i) other financial liabilities subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity

instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

®

Classification and measurement (Cont'd)

Q)

@

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL, representing those as
held-for-trading, comprise derivatives that are not

designated and effective as hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities subsequently measured

at amortised cost and effective interest method

Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included

in finance costs.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount at initial

recognition.

Interest expense is recognised using effective
interest method for financial liabilities, other than
those financial liabilities at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E T -_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFHEHE®w

POLICIES (Cont'd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)
() Cassification and measurement (Cont'd)
(3) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of

the Company’s own equity instruments.

(i) Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Group's
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss

immediately.

174  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

0

E@MITAME)

LHEBRRATAGE)

() PERAEE
@ BATA

RRBET2ZRATARE
WP 1S SRR IR B B BT
AR -

ERAMBEARRZBRATA
REAESHERR - 1
BE W& BOTHEEA
AR AR T AR I s
HEENBETHER -

(i) BOEERELEARE

EAKERBANZHEALE
FRER - BUBEIER - R AE
BARBUEHER - BURMER Z 28
BEREERESNRENREZ
EZRDHNBEPHER -

TEEMTA

TETAYSRTETREANEIER
ZRTFERER  BREFRENHEHR
ZRAFEEHSE - IEEZBENE
BENER N B TR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHE#HSEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL and do not arise from a transfer of an

asset, are measured subsequently at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (see financial assets above);

and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amortisation recognised over the

guarantee period.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance

l"

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

)

(k)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the

following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as

the Group performs;

the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional

right to consideration.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)

from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are

accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised in profit or

loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Building management fee income, property management
services income and management fee income are recognised
in accordance with terms of respective agreements over the
relevant period in which the services are rendered. Revenue
from provision of building and property management services
is recognised over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided by the Group’s

performance as the Group performs.

Sales of securities investments are recognised on a trade date

basis.

Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures
contracts is recognised at the point in time when the relevant

contract notes are executed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Revenue from sales of cosmetics products is recognised at the
point in time when goods are delivered and titles have been

passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

U]

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

U

(m)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of

remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the entity
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.

Leasing

Definition of lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract

are subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd) (m) HE®E

The Group as lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to short-term leases of assets (i.e. those leases that have a
lease term of twelve months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). The Group also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to lease of office equipment that are considered as low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date which the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, estimated costs to be incurred by the lessee in
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the

lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd) (m) HEE)

The Group as lessee (Cont'd)

Right-of-use assets (Cont'd)

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed lease

payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFHEHE®w

POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd)
The Group as lessee (Cont'd)
Lease liabilities (Cont'd)

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for

the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

. change in the lease term or change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option to purchase the
underlying asset, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the date of

reassessment;

change in lease payments arising from change in an
index or rate or expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments

using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item in

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd)

(m)

The Group as lessee (Cont'd)

Lease modifications

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective

date of the modification.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising from a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, the exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the
foreign operation. Exchange differences arising from the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising from the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised

directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m)

(0)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in the translation reserve in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reattributed to non-controlling interests and is not recognised
in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates or joint
venture that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control, the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or

loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(p)

(q)

U]

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value

of those cash flows.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(r) Related parties (Cont'd)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

M

@

3

®

®)

®

)

®

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is

a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i).

a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

V)

()

®

Related parties (Cont'd)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or
obligations between the Group and a related party, regardless

of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised

as a provision.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal management reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, financial assets and other
assets. Segment liabilities comprise financial liabilities and
other liabilities. The Group evaluates performance on the
basis of profit or loss from operations after tax expense and
non-controlling interests but not including the major non-
cash items. The major non-cash items are unrealised fair
value changes on investment properties and other properties
together with their, if applicable, respective deferred tax, and

impairment loss of goodwill (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

POLICIES (Cont'd)
(u) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders or directors, where

appropriate.
(v) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants

are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such

grants are presented under other income.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4.

ESTIMATES (contd)
Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, that the management of the Group has made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these

consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of unquoted financial assets measured at FVTOCI

As described in Note 5(c), the management of the Group uses
its judgments in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The Group's unlisted equity securities with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$1,593,220,000 (2019: HK$1,603,891,000) are
valued using a discounted cash flow analysis and with reference
to the fair values of the underlying properties and assets based
on assumptions supported, where possible, by observable market
prices or rates. The estimation of fair value of these unlisted equity
securities also includes some assumptions not supported by

observable market prices or rates.

Allowance for credit losses in respect of trade and other

receivables

The Group determines the allowance for credit losses in respect of
trade and other receivables based on the ECLs. Allowance for credit
losses in respect of trade receivables is assessed on lifetime ECL
while other receivables is assessed on 12m ECL as there had been

no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The policy for allowance for credit losses in respect of trade and
other receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and aging analysis of accounts and on management's
judgment. A considerable amount of judgment is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. If the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their abilities to make

payments, additional allowances may be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4.

ESTIMATES (contd)
Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Cont'd)
Fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuations performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on methods of
valuation which involve certain estimates. In relying on the valuation
reports, the management of the Group has exercised its judgments
and is satisfied that the methods of valuation are reflective of the
current market conditions, as detailed in Note 19. Should there be
any changes in assumptions due to change in market conditions, the

fair value of the investment properties will change in future.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.
Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2020, a deferred tax asset of approximately
HK$19,107,000 (2019: HK$4,108,000) in relation to unused tax
losses has been recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the period in which such a

reversal takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4.

ESTIMATES (contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)
Write-down of stock of properties

In accordance with the accounting policies as stated in Note 3, the
Group performs regular reviews on the estimated net realisable
values of the stock of properties in order to assess if, when the
estimated net realisable values declining below the corresponding
carrying amounts, any write-down of stock of properties is required.
The management of the Group has taken into account of the
prevailing market conditions, valuations or estimated unit selling
price from independent property valuers and internally available
information and exercised considerable judgments in making these
estimates.

Impairment loss in respect of investments accounted for
using the equity method

The management of the Group determines whether investments
accounted for using the equity method have suffered any
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable, according to their
recoverable amounts determined by the CGUs based on value-
in-use calculations. The determination of impairment indication
requires significant judgments, and the calculations require the use
of estimates which are subject to change of economic environment
in future.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

B HE R 5w

st THBE R Z T BZRR(E)
WEFEZHE

AEBEREBWFIMEZ A BREREHY
EEEZAERTAERFE - UHEE G E
BEETREENARKEER  AHYER
BEHRE - AKRBZEREEEERMN -
BB EGEMETREN G ELEER
RNE2EZEHR - UERAEHEMELZE
ffiat -

BB EARZRE Z BEEE

HEHFRRFECBTARSEARZIREZ
FREEAENAWE - AEE 2 EEEREE
REEAEZARSELEUEE 2 TKE S
B URPERB HBREMRE - FEERETR
FRELEAHE - Mt EBRTHBERANMG
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TEMTA

(a) =RMIEBER

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Financial assets SRIEE
Financial assets measured at fair value BBBEARBRATETE
through profit or loss ZEMEE 3,550,536 9,038,353
Financial assets measured at fair value 378 38 L 2 T Ml s DA S AR
through other comprehensive income ARTEFECZCREE 14,407,220 20,182,543
Amortised cost BIERAR 2,324,483 1,448,550
Financial liabilities cRAaE
Amortised cost BB 8,562,855 14,453,581
Derivative financial instrument PTEERT A 111 6,060
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, bonds, investments held-for-trading, structured
products, club and corporate debentures, derivative financial
instrument, advances to/from associates/joint venture/
investee companies/non-controlling shareholders, debtors,
deposits and other receivables, securities trading receivables
and deposits, pledged deposits, time deposits, bank balances
and cash, borrowings, creditors and accruals, securities
trading and margin payable, lease liabilities and deposits
received. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group's risk exposure
relating to financial instruments or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risks.

Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transactions, and
from recognised assets and liabilities. The functional
currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries in
Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currencies of those
subsidiaries operating in the United Kingdom and the
PRC are Pound Sterling (“GBP") and Renminbi ("RMB")
respectively in which most of their transactions are
denominated. The Group is mainly exposed to foreign
exchange risk in respect of exchange fluctuations
of HK$ against GBP and RMB. The conversion of
RMB into other currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the government of the PRC. The Group currently does
not have foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:

Assets EE

United States dollar ("US$") E(Ex)
GBP %

RMB AR

Euro (“EUR") BT ([BRoTl)
Liabilities =N

uss =

GBP HeE

RMB AR

EUR BT

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies. As HK$ is pegged to US$, it is
assumed that there would be no material currency risk
exposure between US$ and HK$ and therefore US$ is

excluded from the sensitivity analysis below.

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

194 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

€I AEw
b) LRAREEEERKEE)

mEmE (E)

() SrEEEE)

AEBERHEHRAAT ZINE

BT

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT
4,959,714 9,447,549
2,197,344 1,965,283
197,654 184,590
21,445 464
1,253,814 2,608,708
522,229 379,875
11 12
29,930 =

FREDH

TRF A KB B T AERE S
WZER EF R T B5% 2 8%
B - AR ITEE TR - R
RETERBT2HALTJ|ERER
Bk EXTTEHENTX 28
REDHT ©

RABEFTEEIEABREINE
BB & ASNIEASRE L X -
MEBLEAEREYEERTE
BB EEBIEL 25T ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

®

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts their
translations at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes external loans as well as loans to/from foreign
operations within the Group where the denomination
of the loan is in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower; but excluding
exposure resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group's
presentation currency.

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit
where the relevant currencies strengthen 5% against
HK$. For a 5% weakening of the relevant currencies
against HK$, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit.

Impact of 2
GBP e
RMB AR
EUR BT

There would be no material impact on the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

The net effect of the Group’s sensitivity to foreign
currency risk was attributable to the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities with exposure to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. T B
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREREEEERBEGE)
(Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont'd) mEE (&)
(i) Cash flow interest rate risk (i) BewENEER

The Group has variable-rate interest-bearing assets
and liabilities including time deposits, bank balances,
sales proceeds held by a third party and borrowings
(2019: also included advance to an associate) and is
therefore exposed to cash flow interest rate risk. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The Group currently does not have interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the

need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate ("HIBOR"), London Interbank Offered Rate
("LIBOR") or costs of funds of financial institutions or a

bank (2019: also included prime rate).

Sensitivity analysis

The following demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonable possible change in interest rates with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact of floating rates in
advance to an associate, time deposits, bank balances,

sales proceeds held by a third party and borrowings).

If the floating rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group's
profit before tax for the year ended 31 December
2020 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$30,242,000 (2019: HK$64,144,000). This was
mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest

rates on its variable-rate borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

There would be no material impact on the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased
during the current year mainly due to the decrease in

net debt carries at variable-rate.
Price risk

The Group's investments classified as financial assets
measured at FVTPL, financial assets measured at FVTOCI
and derivative financial instrument presented as current
liability which are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period and expose the Group to price
risk. At the end of the reporting period, the Group held
investments in certain high yield and fixed-rate bonds.
High yield bonds are bonds that are typically rated
below investment grade or are unrated and therefore
are generally more vulnerable to economic cycles as
they typically fall more in value than investment grade
bonds given higher default risk and higher investors
risk adversity. For bonds with fixed-rate coupons, they
are more susceptible to fluctuations in interest rates. As
interest rates move upward, the value of the bonds wiill
generally fall. Furthermore, the longer the tenor of the
bonds, the more sensitive they will be to interest rate

changes.

The management of the Group manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(iii)  Price risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's profit
before tax for the year ended 31 December 2020 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$177,532,000
(2019: HK$452,221,000). This was due to the changes
in fair value of financial assets measured at FVTPL and

derivative financial instrument.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's other
components of equity for the year ended 31 December
2020 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$720,361,000 (2019: HK$1,009,127,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of financial assets
measured at FVTOCL.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2020 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's time deposits and bank balances are deposited with
banks of high credit quality in Hong Kong, Mainland China and

overseas.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group made transactions with counterparties with
acceptable credit quality in conformance to the Group's
treasury policies to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable
credit ratings from reputable credit rating agencies and scrutiny
of financials for non-rated counterparties are two important
criteria in the selection of counterparties. The credit quality of
counterparties will be closely monitored over the life of the
transaction. The Group reviews its financial counterparties
periodically in order to reduce credit risk concentrations relative

to the underlying size and credit strength of each counterparty.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the
Group also monitors potential exposures to each financial
institution counterparty. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate allowance for credit
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
ECL provision for trade receivables. To measure the ECLs,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics. The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and ECL, and also considers the available reasonable and

supportive forwarding-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables that are
individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment, after taking into consideration, the background
and reputation of the customers, historical settlement records
and past experiences at the end of each reporting period. The
Group makes periodic assessments on the recoverability of the
trade receivables by using a provision matrix to measure ECL.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar financial strength
and any disputes with the debtors. The calculation reflects
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Directors were in the opinion that,
an allowance for credit losses in respect of trade receivables
of approximately HK$2,852,000 (2019: nil) was recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Details

are set out in Note 32.

For all other receivables, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL and assessed individually, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.

The credit quality of the advances to related parties has been
assessed with reference to historical information about the
default rates and financial position of the counterparties. These
balances were assessed individually based on 12m ECL. The
Directors are of the opinion that the credit risk of the advances
to related parties is low due to the current creditworthiness
of the debtors and sound collection history of the receivables
due from them. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
allowance for credit losses of approximately HK$56,000 (2019:
HK$982,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Investments in bonds are limited to financial institutions or
investment counterparties with high quality. When making
decisions on investments in bonds, the management of
the Group has also made reference to the credit ratings
of the issuers and guarantors (if any) which, however,
are not an assurance as to the issuers’ and/or guarantors’
creditworthiness or the risks, returns or suitability of the bonds.
Risks in particular specific to certain types of bonds held by
the Group are: (i) high yield bonds — they in general carry
high credit risk as they are often subject to higher risk of issuer
default as they are typically rated below investment grade or
are unrated; (ii) perpetual bonds — their coupon payments
may be deferred or suspended subject to the terms and
conditions of the bonds and they are often callable after a
call protection period (related risk is detailed in the liquidity
risk below); and (iii) contingent convertible bonds — issued
by financial institutions that are deeply subordinated in the
capital structure, typically Tier 1 or Tier 2 securities. The key
characteristic of contingent convertible bonds is that the
issuer can either write off the principal amount or convert it
to shares without causing a default on the bond. There could
be a specific hard capital ratio trigger or declaration of non-
viability event by the regulator for the write off or conversion
to equity to happen. The Group may be exposed to a higher
issuer credit risk and may experience substantial losses or
lose the entire value of investment as a result of a trigger
event. Other than the above, there may be additional risks
associated with trading of bonds over-the-counter (“OTC")
because OTC transactions are generally subject to limited
regulation and therefore less transparent in transaction details
such as volume, price formation, etc. There may also be
additional risks for investments located in an emerging market
which may involve certain risks associated with political and
economic uncertainty. In view of the specific risks above, the
Group has appointed the special team as disclosed in Note

5(b)(iii) above to closely monitor the risks.

The credit risk for pledged deposits, time deposits, bank
balances and deposits with clearing house are insignificant
because the counterparties are banks and clearing house with

high credit ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong, Europe and Mainland
China. As at 31 December 2020, the Group was subject
to investment concentration risk as there were (i) bonds
investment with three (2019: four) same issuer groups with
their respective amount of approximately HK$600,206,000,
HK$778,547,000 and HK$793,759,000 (2019:
HK$1,032,341,000, HK$1,067,082,000, HK$1,435,959,000
and HK$1,607,451,000) presented as financial assets
measured at FVTPL; and (i) equity security of a listed company
of HK$12,814,000,000 (2019: HK$18,576,000,000)
presented as financial assets measured at FVTOCI, which
represented a major portion of the Group's investment
portfolio as determined by the management of the Group.
Investment concentration risk may materialise when the
market in which those bonds are traded is constricted (related
risk is detailed in liquidity risk below), or when the fair value
of those bonds/that listed equity security are declined (related
risk is detailed in price risk above). The Group also monitors
regularly to avoid over-concentration (such as investment
products and underlying foreign exchange, etc.) of the

investment portfolio.

Liquidity risk

The Group's certain bonds and listed equity securities were
pledged to the financial institutions to secure margin and
securities facilities granted to the Group in respect of securities
transactions. Under adverse market conditions, the Group
may be called by the financial institutions upon at short notice
to make deposits to repay the margin loans. If the required
deposits are not made within the prescribed time, the Group's
securities may be liquidated by the financial institutions

without the Group's consent.

202 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2020

5.

RE MR

€I AEw
b) LREAREERERKEE)

EEmEGE

AEF@EMBEPREEERR 2
EXZAEE  BNERFAEKE - ®
—EETEF+A=+—H HAR
EEZEREBRAEZHREHEEGEET
PHO=(ZE—AF : M) ER—F
TAEEZRTT 25 ABBRIBEIN
RBAFEFEZESREEZESF
WESENAI#600,206,0008 T -
778,547,000/ 7T % 793,759,000/ 7T
(ZZT—H%F :1,032,341,0008 7T -
1,067,082,000% 7T ~ 1,435,959,000
7T ]1,607,451,000587T) © K (i) 27
AEBHMSARESARBRA T EFE
ZERMEEZ M ETRAZBRAE
#12,814,000,000/ L(Z T — N4 -
18,576,000,000& 70 4K - Bt - A%k
EmEEPRERR - EZEEHFNT
REITSEEHERRFEHIINTX
REBECRR—E)  NEZEESF %
ETRAES 2 ATFE TR GERERR T
BEEIR EXERRER—E)  EHEE
ERiEeRARE - AEENTTHER
BEHE  URBESETWREERR
THRASNES) -

REBELEE

AEBETEAFR ETRAFSFERA
SEERESFARIBEZREZFE LA
FREERT SREE - WMEBRINT
N TREBRREMASEELEEE
HMESEFFR  NWEERESER - HWA
SEREREEFERAMMSER - AE
BB EREARERSMEAER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Certain bonds held by the Group carried fixed-rate coupon are
accompanied with call rights, the issuers may call and redeem
the bonds early if interest rates fall. The Group may face
reinvestment risk when issuers exercised its right to redeem
the bond before it matures. Besides, some bonds may not
have an active secondary market. In case of the market in
which the bonds are traded is illiquid, the Group may run the
risk of either having to retain the investment until the end of

the term or selling it before maturity at an unfavourable price.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
bank deposits and cash, monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and

financial liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by the
management of the Group. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity requirement
are provided to the management of the Group for review
periodically. The management of the Group will contact the

bankers for renewals of bank borrowings whenever necessary.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. EM T Rw
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) LREMREEEERBEGE)
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd) HEBELERE(E)

At 31 December 2020
W-2-%F+-A=1-A

Weighted

average  On demand Total Total
effective orwithin  Within2to undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 5years  cash flows amount
ik 37 RERD KBRS REE
BBRA= -FR  WEELE hELR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER
Borrowings f&& 131% 5389221 1986676 7375897 7,263,832
Lease liabilties HEAE 2.12% 69,122 58,415 121,537 125,190
Creditors and accruals FEf RROR BB AR - 158,469 - 158,469 158,469
Securities trading and margin payable fEf *’%*%ﬁ&ﬁ&f Eokia - 38,883 - 38,883 38,883
Amounts due to associates REBERARN - - 260,344 260,344 260,344
Amounts due to investee companies r8 Tﬁi‘&ﬁ - - 581,898 581,898 581,898
Amounts due to non- controlling shareholders X & 3EHE Hxﬁx% - - 275 275 275
Total &g 5,655,695 2,887,608 8,543,303 8,428,891

At 31 December 2019
RIZ-AE+-A=1—-H
Weighted

average  Ondemand Total Total
effective or within Within 2to  undiscounted carying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amount
METH RESH TR REE
3k —£f  WEELE nERR am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL FHEL FHEL

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTELREE
Borrowings - 3.26% 9,657,992 4,340,769 13,998,761 13,442,259
Lease liabilties HEaE 247% 50,571 85,825 136,596 132,054
Creditors and accruals BB R BR TR = 151,010 = 151,010 151,010
Securities trading and margin payable ERESRR %EEIEM%.@% - 11,246 - 11,246 11,246
Amounts due to associates REBERTR - - 212419 212419 212419
Amounts due to investee companies REETE 5 - - 368,563 368,563 368,563
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders R & FEE Hxﬁx?m\ - - 333 333 333
Total fam 9870819 5,007,909 14,878,728 14317884
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

In addition to the items as set out in the above liquidity risk
tables, the maximum amount the Group could be required to
settle under (i) financial guarantee provided by the Group in
respect of a banking facility utilised by an investee company
and (ii) indemnity given to a third party in relation to an
investee company is approximately HK$613,830,000 (2019:
(i) financial guarantees provided by the Group in respect of
banking facilities utilised by a joint venture and an investee
company and (i) indemnity given to a third party in relation
to an investee company of HK$703,830,000) in aggregate,
if such amount is claimed by the counterparties to the
guarantee(s) or indemnity at any time within the guaranteed
or indemnity period. Details of the guarantee(s) and indemnity

are set out in Note 45.

Secured bank borrowings with repayment on demand clause
are included in the “On demand or within 1 year” time band
of maturity analysis in the above liquidity risk tables. At the end
of the reporting period, the total undiscounted cash flow of
the borrowings amounted to approximately HK$798,980,000
(2019: HK$627,090,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not believe that it is
probable that the financial institutions will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
Directors believe that such borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates as set out in
the loan agreements, details of which are set out in the tables

below (include both interest and principal cash flows).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Maturity analysis — secured bank borrowings with repayment

on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

Non-derivative financial liability FTESREE
Borrowings 5
Non-derivative financial liability FTESRERE
Borrowing &
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(b)

CRAREEERERBEGE)

B ELmE(E

BRI WT-HI e B K (ER IR A Z B

HIRTTIE B A AT EN

At 31 December 2020
R=2=2F+t=-A=t-H

Total Total

Within Within 2  undiscounted carrying

1 year to5years  cash flows amount

AURRE REE

—£R  WEERF REBHE L]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET TR THET

11,757 781,223 798,980 775,169

At 31 December 2019

RZE-NF+ZA=+—-H

Total Total

Within Within 2 undiscounted carrying

1 year to 5 years cash flows amount

ARRR S REE

—£8  WEELE MERE Fik

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THER TET TET

13,600 613,490 627,090 592,476




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. €T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREREEEZERBXGE)
(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) REBELEEE
The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual TERFINAEBITESHRIARTALY
maturity for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have FEZIER c TRIODERMTETIAZTER
been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash inflows Waaga 2 RARB @ MA KR L 2R
and outflows on the derivatives that require gross settlements. B UBTAINEBFEZRERE -
For cash flows denominated in currency other than HK$, the RRERARERZEXEZReREE
prevailing foreign exchange rate at the end of the reporting BRBTT
period is used to convert the cash flows into HK$.
At 31 December 2020
R=ZB=TF+=HA=+—8H
Total Total
Within  undiscounted carrying
1 year cash flows amount
RUEREE BRTEE
—FR MEAHE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET TERT
Derivative gross settlement T THEZRXUAEE
Cross currency swap BHEiE (111)
Inflow mA 1,241,598 1,241,598
Outflow i (1,241,604) (1,241,604)
At 31 December 2019
—NE+ZA=+—H
Total Total
Within undiscounted carrying
1 year cash flows amount
RERRE IRmEE
—FR mE AR Pk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T FHET
Derivative gross settlement T4 T R X WKAEE
Cross currency swap BHEi= (6,060)
Inflow Mtk 1,239,917 1,239,917
Outflow yio (1,247,970) (1,247,970)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

()

Fair value measurements

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table analysed the financial instruments which

are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period

into the three-level hierarchy.

Fair value
NTE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TAR
Financial assets
SHEE
Listed equity securities presented as 12,814,000 18,578,652
financial assets measured at FVTOCI
2IARAEMEAREI R A TE
B ERERE Y FTRAES
Bonds presented as financial assets 3,086,588 8,975,533
measured at FVTPL
%5‘JE%%@T§£§M&WR¥@H§Z
PRHEELER
Unlisted bond presented as financial assets 201,061 -
measured at FVTPL
2 RBRERNRRATEHEL
SREE I LTES
Listed investments held- fortrading presented 152,687 =
as financial assets measured at FVTPL
RIABRERNRBATENEL
SREEZHEEE LTRE
Structured products presented as 52,426 -

financial assets measured at FVTPL
2IBRERENRB AT ENEL
SREEEENER

RE MR

5. @M I Hw

() 2AFEFE

URFPETEZEMTA

Fair value Valuation techniques
hierarchy and key inputs

17
488

Level 1
R

Level 1
-0

Level 3
E=H

Level 1
-1

Level 3
2=l
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ERIRIEHE

Quoted prices in active markets

AR H(E

Quoted prices in active markets

RRMS B

Discounted cash flow methodology

ERRLREA

Quoted prices in active markets

AW H(E

Equity linked notes using Monte Carlo
simulation model

REABRERT D RERRE

Secured loan repackaged note using
discounted cash flow methodology

FERSRENRERERYR
RERER

TEZ=

TRARBERRURATEHAEZSH
B BN DHT o

Significant unobservable inputs

EXKTBEEE

N/A
TER

N/A
TER

Discounted rate of 12.44% and
estimated cash inflow from the bond (note (i)
BRERNDMERES
EHRETA Q)

N/A
TER

Equity growth rate (weekly) ranging
from -0.005% to 0.001%, volatility (weekly)
ranging from 4.897% to 8.256% and
discount rate ranging from 0.05% to 0.06%
(note (ii))

RERRE(EE)NT-0005EZ0001E -
RIE(EE)NF4897EZ82568
BBEAN 005 2006 (7 (i)

Discounted rate of 11.53% and
estimated cash inflow from
the underlying loan (note (i)

BEERANSIERIEEER
RS MA ()



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

Fair value
AYE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR
Financial assets (Cont'd)
SREER)
Club and corporate debentures presented as 57,774 62,820
financial assets measured at FVTPL
iﬁ‘JZ%ZEiETE?éL\A&H%’RiﬁEEZ
SHEESERARES
Unlisted equity securities presented as 1,593,220 1,603,891
financial assets measured at FVTOC]
2IARAAN 2 ENEN R ATE
STECERER E LTRAZS
17,951,756 29,220,896
Financial liability
tRER
Derivative financial instrument m 6,060
— Cross currency swap
fTESBIA
- B8

5. @M I Hw

() 2AFEFEGE)

Fair value Valuation techniques
hierarchy and key inputs
AVHE

ARE HERWRIEHE

Level 2
EZ/

Market comparison

miE L REE

Discounted cash flow: forecast
distribution, discount rate and
contract terms (i any)

HRRSRE  BHZHK
BRERANER(0E)

Level 3
E=H

Reference to the fair value of the

underlying property
SERBNEILTE

Net asset value (note (iif))

BEFE ()

Level 2
B2

Discounted cash flow methodology
based on spot and forward
exchange rates and yield curves of
the currency

BERSREE RALEZAH
RERER N RMEEM R

—E-BEER

URFEFEZLHBTAGE)

Significant unobservable inputs

EXKTRERE
N/A
NER

Forecast distribution taking into account
management's experience and
the estimated terminal value (note (i)
BHZARDEREEBER R
BREEMEE)

Discount rates ranging from

12.37% to 20.23%

(2019: 11.83% to 18.87%) (note (i))
BRENT1237EE2023E

(ZZ-NF : 183EZ1887E) ()

Fair value of the underlying property
based on valuation model (note (i))

EREERAETRANEL
DA

N/A
TER

N/A
TER

EABEEE

RE VIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

O]

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

Notes:

(i)  The higher the estimated cash flow from the underlying
bond/loan, forecast distribution, estimated terminal value
and fair value of the underlying property, the higher the fair
value. The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.

(i)  The higher the equity growth rate, the higher the fair value.
The higher the equity volatility and discount rate, the lower
the fair value.

(i) The Group has determined that the net asset value
represents the fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels as at the date of the events or changes

in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 and no change in valuation

techniques used in prior years.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of each reporting
period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the

current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

()

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

The movement during the years in the balances of Level 3 fair

value measurement is as follows:

At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NFE—A—H
Net unrealised gain arising from RNTEEBmMEEZ
change in fair value REB W T
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NEF+A
=+—Aa
Purchases during the year REREA
Disposals during the year RERLE

RENBEIBERFE

Net return of capital contribution

during the year
Net gain (loss) arising from N EZ B EE 2 W
change in fair value (B#H) %8
At 31 December 2020 R-BE-E%+ZA
=+-8

Notes:

(i)  The gain (loss) included in profit or loss for the year related
to unlisted bond and structured products held at the end
of the reporting period are reported as investment income
(expenses).

(i)  The gain (loss) included in other comprehensive income for
the relevant years related to unlisted equity securities held
at the end of the reporting periods are reported as changes
of financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve.

5. SMIHw

(0 AFEHE®

URFPEGTEZEMTAE)

E=RATENBEBRACE 22D

o -

Unlisted bond
presented as
financial assets
measured at

Unlisted
Structured equity
products securities

presented as
financial assets
measured at

presented as
financial assets
measured at

FVTPL FVTPL FvTOCI
2 AREE
2IREB 2iREE Hitt 2 m s
BRURBR BiRURMR URRAFE
AVEFEZ AVEFEZ HEZEMEE
tREEZ CREEZ Z¥EWm
FLHES HFBREER A E S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FHT
(note (i) (note (i) (note (i)
(PEQ)) (BEEG)) GEIO)
= = 1,200,307
S S 403,584
- - 1,603,891
195,672 137,438 -
- (83,148) S
- - (9,312)
5,389 (1,864) (1,359)
201,061 52,426 1,593,220
BT
() HMRBEMRFAZFELTERK
HEUEERABGFAFEZKRE
(E51E) 5 ABRF 2 RE KA (F
%) °
(i) HMRBEERFAZIFLETRAFE

2t A BB EL 2 A 2 I
% (F518) 31/ ¥R B £ 12 TS A
RBATEH B2 @ MAE Y bl
288 -

SBRCREEH  EAEEENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. R TR

(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial instruments that are not measured at fair

value approximate to their fair values.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk

and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group's
capital structure to maximise the returns to shareholders of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the capital structure of the Group mainly
consists of debts, which include borrowings from banks and other
financial institutions, lease liabilities, pledged deposits, time deposits,
bank balances and cash, and total equity, comprising issued share
capital, reserves, retained profits and non-controlling interests. The
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital to monitor its capital structure on the basis of
a gearing ratio. The Group has a target gearing ratio not higher than
5009, determined as the proportion of net debt to equity. This ratio is
expressed by as a percentage of net borrowings over the total equity.
Net borrowings are calculated as total borrowings and lease liabilities
(as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less

cash and bank balances and pledged deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd) 6. EXEREE®

The gearing ratios were as follows: EREEELENT :
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Borrowings — current (note (7)) BE - REME () 5,312,436 9,240,299
Borrowings — non-current (note (i)) B8 - 3EREME (HEE(3)) 1,951,396 4,201,960
Lease liabilities — current (note (ii)) HEEE - REME ) 67,300 47,929
Lease liabilities — non-current (note (ii)) MEBRE - EREIEE (M EE() 57,890 84,125
Total debt [EesTEE: 7,389,022 13,574,313
Less: Cash and bank balances and A B RIBITERAR
pledged deposits (note (iii)) HARTF 2B EE i) (1,915,048) (839,542)
Net debt BERERE
(total debt less cash and (EReEREe &
bank balances and pledged deposits) RITAEER A R IHIF R 5,473,974 12,734,771
Securities investments and treasury products BERRERMEER
(note (iv)) (HH5E(v)) 16,306,762 27,554,185
Less: Net debt R BIFE (5,473,974) (12,734,771)
Net cash REFE
(Securities investments and (BHFEER
treasury products less net debt) W& EmREEER) 10,832,788 14,819,414
Total equity (note (v)) AR (V) 28,780,250 33,590,361
Net debt to equity ratio B FRR AR AR s b X
(excluding securities investments and (TMBREBRARRER
treasury products) MEER) 19.0% 37.9%
Net debt to equity ratio ERF R B AR AR R L K Net cash Net cash
(including securities investments and (BREBHFERER position position
treasury products) MEEM) REFEMRR REFRAN
—EoTEFE  gAE¥%EE 213




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd)

Notes:
(i)  Borrowings are detailed in Note 36.
(i) Lease liabilities are detailed in Note 21(b).

(i)  Cash and bank balances and pledged deposits comprise time
deposits, bank balances and cash and pledged deposits at the end
of the reporting period.

(iv)  Securities investments and treasury products are detailed in
Notes 27(i), (i), (i) and 28(j).

(v)  Total equity includes issued share capital, reserves, retained profits
and non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period.

Net debt to equity ratio (excluding securities investments and

treasury products) remained stable.

In relation to brokerage business, Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited,
Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited and Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited, three wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
are required to maintain financial resources in accordance with
the specified amount requirements that apply to them under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance imposed by Securities and Futures
Commission. The requirements are internally reviewed on a daily
basis and reports are required to submit to Securities and Futures

Commission monthly. Full compliance is observed during the year.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts of commission from
brokerage, settlement charges from brokerage, cosmetics goods sold
less returns, building and property management services income,
amounts received and receivable from property rental income,
interest income from bonds and structured products, dividend
income from listed and unlisted equity investments and gain on

sales of investments held-for-trading, are analysed as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE (contd) 7. WA
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(restated)
(F7)
Revenue from contracts with customers: HEFRAEHNZBA -
Recognised at a point in time IR — 5 B 1R
Brokerage and cosmetics income EHD RIS R AL AR R B WA 20,220 16,023
Recognised over time R—REFE AR
Building and property management BFRMEEBRBEA
services income 53,232 55,109
73,452 71,132
Revenue from other sources: HAb SRR Z WA -
Property rental income MERS WA 373,461 522,963
Interest income from F BEUA 596,092 715,857
— bonds (note (i)) - &FH Q) 585,686 713,991
— structured products (note (i)) - @Bt E S CEEEG) 10,406 1,866
Dividend income from A& B M A 1,973,156 -
— listed equity investments (note (ii)) - ERRARE (D) 1,969,757 -
— unlisted equity investment - FE_ETRRAIZE (I EE(iT))
(note (iii)) 3,399 S
Gain on sales of investments HERFEEE 2 IRE RS
held-for-trading 25,303 -
2,968,012 1,238,820
Total revenue Nk 3,041,464 1,309,952
Notes: FI5E -
(i)  The interest income from bonds and structured products were (i) BHREREBUHEGZAERATIREEA

derived from financial assets measured at FVTPL.

(i) The dividend income from listed equity investments with
amount of approximately HK$2,077,000 and approximately
HK$1,967,680,000 were derived from financial assets measured
at FVTPL and financial assets measured at FVTOCI respectively.

(i) The dividend income from unlisted equity investment was derived
from financial assets measured at FVTOCI.

(ii)

(iil)

BRUARBATEAEZEMEE -

FTRAREZRBBRATIRE BRI
HEUARBAFEFEZEREERBBR
EerEEa kB AFEFEZS @
BE @89 5#44/2,077,0008 TR
1,967,680,000/& 7T °

FELTRARE ZBRBWATIREEBE

MEERSEARBRAFEAEZCME
o

SBRCREEH  EAEEENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has six reportable segments — (i) property development
and trading; (ii) property leasing for retail; (iii) property leasing for
non-retail; (iv) listed equity investments at FVTOCI; (v) investments
and treasury products at FVTPL; and (vi) unlisted investments,
investment holding and brokerage, and the remaining businesses
grouped under all other segments. The segmentations are based on
the information about the operation of the Group that management

of the Group uses to make decisions.

Principal activities are as follows:

Property development and

Property development and sales

trading of trading properties
Property leasing
— Retail —  Property leasing from retail
properties
— Non-retail — Property leasing from non-retalil
properties
Listed equity investments — Listed equity securities at FVTOCI
at FVTOCI
Investments and treasury — Securities investments in

products at FVTPL investments held-for-trading,
OTC trading and
structured products
Unlisted investments, — Unlisted securities investments,
investment holding and trading and brokerage
brokerage
All other segments — Cosmetics distribution and
trading, provision of building
and property management

services and others

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations after tax expense and non-controlling interests but not
including the major non-cash items. The major non-cash items are
unrealised fair value changes on investment properties and other
properties together with their, if applicable, respective deferred tax,

and impairment loss of goodwill (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Unallocated corporate assets mainly comprised leasehold land and
building for own use, right-of-use assets, deferred tax assets and tax

recoverable.

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly comprised tax liabilities, bank
borrowings, amounts due to associates, amounts due to investee
companies, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, lease

liabilities, deferred tax liabilities and derivative financial instrument.

During the current year, the chief operating decision-makers
changed the measurement of segment revenue to include building
management fee income and property management services
income, interest income from bonds and structured products and
dividend income from listed and unlisted equity investments as
these revenue items are now included in the Group's consolidated
revenue (see Note 3 for details of this change in accounting policy).
Accordingly, the prior year's segment revenue and relevant items as

the subject matter of the Reclassification have been restated.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
operate different activities. They are managed separately because
each business unit has different markets and requires different

marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed to operate in different
countries separately. Revenue and results are attributed to countries

on the basis of the property or asset location.

There was no (2019: one) major customer who individually
accounted for over 10% of the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 December 2020. Revenue of approximately HK$174,695,000
was derived from a customer in non-retail property leasing segment

in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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B HRBEBELHEETRTES - BEXR
TRMSRE  WREXEREE

AN EBBETTRRTRBERZ AR EEE
B ZREEIERAREE IR ENEERE
HWREE -

REE-_E-_FTF+_A=+—HILFERXN
YE(CE-NE : —(DEBRELZ@EBIKA
EAREBRAZI0%FIA L - REBEEZT—
NEF+ZA=+—HLEFERN —hREHE
IEEMEMEN B EPMEEZ WAL R
174,695,000/ 7T, ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Operating segment information is presented below:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Major cash items excluding in
revenue
- Hong Kong
- Other countries

Revenue
Revenue from external customers
- Hong Kong
- United Kingdom
- Mainland China
- Other countries

Revenue from extemal customers
Attributable property sales from
associate/investee company
- Hong Kong
Attributable rental revenue from
associates/investee company
- Hong Kong
— Mainland China

Result

Segment result
- Hong Kong
- United Kingdom
— Mainland China
- Other countries

WAMSZEERERA

-ER
- AtEIR

A
REINDEP A
-&%
- %8
- PEAE
- A{tEIR

RESNDEFZIA
FEEBERT/ RRRS
PGES -
-&%
- IV S5
REfEKA
-&R
- PEAE

ES
-&%
- %E
- PEAE
- AtEIR

I

S ESEe

BEHEERZFIWT -

RETERBEBREK
BEr—F-_FFft-A=1+—-HILFE
Unlisted
. Listed  Investments investments,
Property Property leasing equity  andtreasury investment All
development NRAR investments products  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail at Fvtocl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BB BBER
EEUE DTS
DR AVEZ  FETRE-

NEBRR DYEZ RER  REEZRR
EE 2E *2E  LTRARE HEER BER% FEAMDE ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
o o) o 2,112 6,844,054 o = 6,846,826
- - - - 1,100,767 - - 1,100,767
- - - 2,112 1,944,821 = - 1,947,593
- 36,923 138,852 1,967,680 437,219 12,299 64,552 2,651,585
- 34,482 162,479 o ) = o 196,961
- - 75 - - - - 5
- - - - 186,193 - - 186,193
- 71,405 302,056 1,967,680 623,472 12,299 64,552 3,041,464
- 71,405 302,056 1,967,680 623,472 12,299 64,552 3,041,464
11,935 - - - - - - 11,935
- 19,995 44,862 - - - - 64,857
- 21,308 8,197 - - - - 29,505
11,935 112,708 355,115 1,967,680 623,472 12,299 64,552 3,141,761
- 33,664 130,195 1,967,653 (23,746) 11,036 39,259 2,158,061
- 26,890 131,076 = - 143 = 158,109
o O 484 o o) 2,463 o 2,947
- - - - 208,631 - - 208,631
o 60,554 261,755 1,967,653 184,885 13,642 39,259 2,527,748
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESH®@
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEZERERRE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—S_ZF+-A=+—HIFE
Unlisted
. Listed  Investments investments,
Property Property leasing equity  andtreasury investment All
development hRER investments products  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FvTocl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BB BBER
2ENE DTS
LR ATEZ  FLTRE-
NERER ATEZ RER  REERR
EE £ 34 ¥BE  LTRARE HEER BLBR  FEEEIE g8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR iR TER TR TER TEr TR
Share of results of investments BB ENRRE
accounted for using the equity E
method
- Attributable property sales, net - EENEHEFE
- Hong Kong -&R 252 - - - - - - 252
- Attributable gross income - B
- Hong Kong -&% - 18,695 44,579 - - - 2,247 65,521
- Mainland China - REIKRE - 21,308 8,197 - - - - 29,505
~ Mttributable operating cost - EEEERE
- Hong Kong -Fh - (821) (8337) - - - - (9,158)
— Mainland China - REIKRE - (13,390) (3,032) - - - - (16,422)
252 86,346 303,162 1,967,653 184,885 13,642 41,506 2,597,446
Other income A - - 249,836 - - - - 249,836
Finance costs B%ER - - - (31,304) (52,522) - - (83,826)
Other gains and losses EthimREE (4,831) - - - - - - (4,831)
Share of results of investments BUEUBRENEREL
accounted for using the equity x5
method
- Income tax and others - FEH kA (92) (32,247) (13,017) - - - (506) (45,862)
(4,671) 54,099 539,981 1,936,349 132,363 13,642 41,000 2,712,763
Unallocated items AHEIER
Unallocated corporate expenses, net kA # 2 AFFIX FHE (276,949)
Unallocated finance costs KA HBER (131,733)
Income tax expense MRS (76,727)
Non-controlling interests FiERER (31)
Operating profit for the year KAREEAES
attributable to owners of REEZRERT
the Company 2,221,323
Major non-cash items TEFREER
- Unrealised fair value changes on - RENF 2 KE R
investment properties NTEZH(BFERN
(including share of results of INERENRIREZ
investments accounted for E )]
using the equity method) (1,611,535)
~ Deferred tax credit - EEHEED 6,445
Profit for the year attributable to 42 F%H AMELS
owners of the Company AEEZER 622,233
Core profit for the year KAREEAES
attributable to REE 2 BDER
owners of the Company 2,221,323
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 December 2020

ESESE®

HAMBRRBE
KR-®—®F+-A=+-H

Unlisted
Listed  Investments  investments,
Property Property leasing equity  andtreasury investment All
development nRER investments products  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FvT0CI at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BBHM BBER
EEkE DR
URBR AVEZ  FLmRE:
NEBER DYEZ RER  REERK
EE 2% F2E LTRARE HEER BEBRY HFEEMSE &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TAR TEARL THT TAR ThARL TER TAR
Assets gE
Segment assets AEEE
- Hong Kong -Ek 948,739 1,355,453 7,043,891 12,814,008 1,951,314 362,249 186,279 24,661,933
- United Kingdom -EE = 1,171,231 6,734,639 - - - - 7,905,870
~ Mainland China - hEAR 266,459 - 27,200 - - 640 - 294,299
- Other countries - EfER - - - - 1,604,648 586,390 - 2,191,038
Investments accounted for INEREARZRE
using the equity method
- Hong Kong -BE 44,011 415,351 1,579,177 - - 1,803 8,473 2,048,875
- Mainland China - PEAE - 119,671 30,964 - - - - 150,635
Advances to associates PRBERT
- Hong Kong -BE 641 - 83 - - 2 1221 1,947
- Mainland China - REKKE - 36,977 9,539 - - - - 46,516
Reportable segment assets 2RHEEE 1,259,910 3,098,683 15,425,493 12,814,008 3,555,962 951,084 195,973 37,301,113
Unallocated comorate assets AR NTEE 168,266
Consolidated total assets GREEER 37,469,379
Liabilities af
Segment liabilties 2BRAR
- Hong Kong -B% 62,295 15,541 80,855 768,423 192,424 26,354 5,581 1,151,473
- United Kingdom - #H - 13,302 144,122 - - - - 158,024
~ Mainland China - REKKE 28 - 210 - - 3 - 241
- Other countries - AEE - - - - 129,360 6 - 129,366
Reportable segment liabilies T2RMEEE 62323 28,843 25,787 768,423 321,784 26,363 5,581 1,439,104
Unallocated comorate liabilties o8 PGV 7,250,025
Consolidated total liabiities FRARER 8,689,129
Additions to non-current assets ~ FREBEEFE
(other than financial (SRIAREL
instruments and deferred tax BEEERM
assets) - - 1,063,132* - - 62 5
* included the acquisition of investment properties of Landrich (H.K.) & BIEFBWE—HEMNEBARWEER (S

Limited (“Landrich”) through acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 40)
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Other Material Items

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Interest income

Finance costs

Net income

Depreciation of:
- Property, plant and equipment
- Right-of-use assets

Fair value changes on investment
properties

Write-down of stock of properties

Share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity
method

Income tax expense

Non-controlling interests

MBBA
HBER

WAFE

wE !

-0%  BRREE
- ERREE
REnEr A TEES

MEFEZRE
BEARSEARRE
ZEE

MR
FRBE R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

8. EESTH®
HihEBXRIEE
HE—S_ZF+-A=+—HIFE
Consolidated
Adjustments Adjustments statement of
Reportable  for unallocated for major  comprehensive
segments items  non-cash items income
AOBER IEERS RE2E
CES: vk ok i HE 2R KR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TET TERT
603,417 - - 603,417
(83,826) (131,733) = (215,559)
519,591 (131,733) - 387,858
- (25,624) - (25,624)
S (62,564) = (62,564)
S = (1,549,240) (1,549,240)
(4.831) - - (8,831)
23,836 - (62,295) (38,459)
- (76,727) 6,445 (70,282)
- (31) - (31)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E T -_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (restated)

Major cash items excluding in
revenue
- Hong Kong
- Other countries

Revenue
Revenue from external customers
~ Hong Kong
- United Kingdom
- Mainland China
— Other countries

Revenue from external customers
Attributable property sales from
investee company
- Hong Kong
Attributable rental revenue from
associates/joint venture/
investee company
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Result

Segment result
- Hong Kong
- United Kingdom
— Mainland China
— Other countries

RE MR

Yz N /-\ *
8. EEISH®
FEDERBEBREK
BE_E-NF+-_H=1+—HIFE(ES])
Unlisted
) Listed Investments investments,
Property Propert leasing equty  and treasury investment Al
development hERE investments products holding and other
and trading Retall Non-retai at Fvrod at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BBEM BERR
FEME UARB
PR R¥EZ  FLTRE-
NEERR DTEZ RER  REBRR
EE E34 #2&  LTRERE HEER GERE  AEERSH ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TER TAT TAL Thr TAT TEL Thr
BARSZTEREER
-&% S = o S 2223299 S - 2,223,299
- £{tBIR = 5 = = 138,403 - - 138,403
= = = = 2,361,702 = = 2,361,702
WA
RENPEPZMA
-&% = 42,447 140,641 = 550,829 5,256 65,876 805,049
-EE = 34539 304,661 S S S = 339,200
- hEAR - - 675 - - - - 675
- £{tBIR = - - - 165,028 - - 165,028
S 76,986 445977 S 715,857 5,256 65,876 1,309,952
RENBERZIMA = 76,986 445,977 S 715,857 5,256 65,876 1,309,952
EEEXRERT
NEHE
-&# 10 S S S S S S 10
EBERR/AE
D/ BZREDH
ETON
-&k = 20,864 45,765 S S S = 66,629
-hEKE = 55,043 8,054 S = = = 63,097
10 152,893 499,796 = 715,857 5,256 65,876 1,439,688
ES |
NERE
-E% = 38,031 133,555 ) 1,259,177 (5,106) 4,036 1,467,692
- 5E S 33414 300,555 S = m - 334,080
- PEAE = - 394 - - 209 - 2489
- EpER - - - - 639,995 - = 639,995
= 71,445 434504 (1 1899172 (2,900) 4,036 2,444,256
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESE®W
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEXERBERRE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (restated) BE—E—NEFF+_A=1—HIFEES)
Unlisted
) Listed Investments investments,
Property Propert leasing equity  and treasury investment Al
development hEHE investments products holding and other
and trading Retall Non-retai at Fvrodl at FvTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BBEM BERR
FEME SARBR
AR DTEZ  FLTRE-
NEERR DTEZ RER  REBRR
EE £34 #2E  LTRERE HEER GERE  AEERHA Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TER TEL TERL Thn TEL TERL TEr
Share of results of investments BUENBERENEREZ
accounted for using the equity EL
method
- Attributable gross income - Bl BE
- Hong Kong -BE - 19673 45,480 - - - 2276 67,429
—Mainland China - hEAR - 55,043 8,054 - - - - 63,097
- Attributable operating cost - EIEEERA
- Hong Kong -FE - (1,009) (7,883) - - - - (8,892)
~ Mainland China - pEAE - (24,979) (2,848) - - - - (27,827)
= 120,173 477,307 m 1,899,172 (2,900) 44312 2,538,063
Finance costs BHER = = = (113,197) (100307) = = (213,504)
Other gains and losses HiaRER (1,619) - (10) - - - (34) (1,663)
Share of results of investments BRENERENRREL
accounted for using the equity E
method
~ Income tax and others - AR RER (47) (41,160) (6073) - - - (387) (47,667)
(1,666) 79,013 471,224 (113,198) 1,798,865 (2,900) 43,891 2275229
Unallocated items RAHBIER
Unallocated corporate expenses, net ~ KAEZ ARAIELFE (256,907)
Unallocated finance costs FHEHBER (156,681)
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries ~ HEARIBE 2 BB (10,678)
Income tax expense FEREX (152,107)
Non-controlling interests FiERER (1,485)
Operating profit for the year KAREEAES
attributable to owners of REE2RE R
the Company 1,697,371
Major non-cash items TEFREER
- Unrealised fair value changes on - REME 2 &8
investment properties LTEEY(BERE
(including share of results of DEREARREZ
investments accounted for %8
using the equity method) (579,115)
— Deferred tax expense - BIERERR (5,151)
- Impaiment loss of goodwill -BERERE (322,938)
Profit for the year attributable to 42 5 %5 AMEfS
owners of the Company AEE 2R 790,167
Core profit for the year KAREEAES
attributable to REEZBER

owners of the Company 1,697,371
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 E T -_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESEw®w
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %%Eﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
At 31 December 2019 —E-NF+ZA=1+—H
Unlisted
) Listed Investments investments,
Property Propennky Ie4aismg equty  and treasury investment Al
development il investments products holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail at vTodi at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BiREf BhER
2EKE IARB
JAR B ATEZ  FEDRE-
MEERR ATEZ RER  REABRR
EE g #TE  LTRARE HEER aRRE  MEEMSE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitn Fitn FhL Fitn Fitn FhT Fin Fibn
Assets gE
Segment assets HEEE
- Hong Kong -BE 974,604 1,909,092 5,194,356 18,578,662 7,481,050 388,525 192,445 34,718,734
- United Kingdom -E@ = 1,389,050 6940511 = = - - 8329561
- Mainland China - hEKE 256,026 - 29,007 - - 4350 - 289,383
- Other countries - EtoEIR = = S S 1,607,908 558,780 & 2,166,688
Investments accounted for IERENE 2 RE
using the equity method
- Hong Kong -&E 37,704 435,133 1,776,644 = = 1,990 6,228 2,257,699
~ Mainland China - @ﬂi - 133,409 4220 - - - - 175,629
Advances to associates and BABERE
a joint venture *Fﬁéé
- Hong Kong BB 123 - 158,933 - - 2 1,136 160,194
- Mainland China - hEKE - 35,503 11232 - - - - 46,735
Reportable segment assets PEE:GE 1 1,268,457 3,902,187 14,152,903 18,578,662 9,088,958 953,647 199,809 48,144,623
Unallocated comorate assets P8 PANGI-V:3 167,166
Consolidated total assets RREERE 48,311,789
Liabilities gf
Segment liabilties AREE
- Hong Kong - &% 66,619 20,960 75,047 2,904,077 3,697,718 13,948 6,844 6,785,213
- United Kingdom - &f - 14,980 177,445 - - - - 192,425
- Mainland China - hEKE 23 - 197 - - 2 - 22
— Other countries - EBR - - - - 530,990 6 = 530,996
Reportable segment liabilities NERAEEE 66,642 35,940 252,689 2,904,077 4,228,708 13,956 6,844 7,508,856
Unallocated comporate liabiliies P8 PANGI-L 7212572
Consolidated total liabilities RARGELE 14,721,428
Additions to non-current assets FREEERE
(other than financial (EMIAREE
instruments and deferred tax ~ HEEERN)
assets) - - 17813 - - 64 57
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESE®W
Other Material Items HittEXRIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T NFT_A=1+—HIFE
Consolidated
Adjustments Adjustments statement of
Reportable for unallocated for major comprehensive
segments items non-cash items income
APBIER TEFRE GA2AE
ERHE ZaE B ZAE Wiz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR THER TER
Interest income FIEWA 724924 = = 724,924
Finance costs HHER (213,504) (156,681) - (370,185)
Net income WA T8 511,420 (156,681) - 354,739
Depreciation of: W&
— Property, plant and equipment -0%  BERERE - (7,384) - (7,384)
- Right-of-use assets - FRREEE - (19,680) - (19,680)
Fair value changes on investment REWME ATEED
properties - - (742,659) (742,659)
Write-down of stock of properties MEFEZRE (681) - = (681)
Impairment loss of goodwill HEREER - - (322,938) (322,938)
Share of results of investments BB EARRE
accounted for using the equity ZEE
method 46,140 = 163,544 209,684
Income tax expense FEREX - (152,107) (5,151) (157,258)
Non-controlling interests i - (1,485) - (1,485)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HfzlxA
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
(restated)
27
Included in other income are: HAb WA BIE -
Rental services income HERBHA 3,757 5,071
Leasing administration services and BBITBRES &
property administration services income METB ARG A 5,952 5,665
Advisory and consultancy services income 5 o I R R AR S M A 37 34
Surrender premium and dilapidations BB M W2
settlement received from tenants REWHERFHER
in respect of properties in the United
Kingdom 249,836 2,025
Government subsidy — Employment Support BT aL - [R5
Scheme (note) GEza) 13,741 =
Overprovision of costs in respect of M—EEREAZ
a development project, net BB RR R F R 1,877 6,452
Note: In the current year, the Group successfully applied for funding Miet: RAFE  AEERBFHPEEERE

support from the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-
epidemic Fund, set up by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC. The purpose of the funding is to
provide financial support to enterprises to retain their employees
who would otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the
grant, the Group is required not to make redundancies during the
subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying salaries to
the employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

10. INVESTMENT (EXPENSES) INCOME, NET 10. RE B WA FHE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(restated)
Ex)
Financial assets measured at fair value BiBERARBRAFETEZ
through profit or loss: TRMEE
Unrealised gain arising from change in BAEZAFEEEMELEY
fair value of bonds REBE W R 14,912 978,452
Realised (loss) gain arising from change in BEARZAFEEHMELY
fair value of bonds B#IR (58 k=
— Change in fair value - RN TEEY (404,709) 180,905
— Exchange component of change - ER D EE (32,022) 3311
Net (loss) gain arising from change in BEZAFESHMELEZ
fair value of bonds (E518) Wz 558 (421,819) 1,162,668
Unrealised loss arising from change in RrEUNER ATEZS)
fair value of structured products MEEZ REHEE (1,897) -
Realised gain (loss) arising from change in REMERZ A HEZS
fair value of structured products ﬁﬁF 7 B8R (BE) 33 (693)
Net loss arising from change in EEUEERZ ATEZS
fair value of structured products MEE EEFE (1,864) (693)
Unrealised loss arising from change in FEBEBEZREZ A THEE
fair value of investments held-for-trading MES 2 REBEEBE (12,678) =
Unrealised loss arising from change in fair SHERAREF AT EZS
value of club and corporate debentures i & 2 RE IR E 18 (1,646) (13,090)
Realised loss arising from change in BEEFLATEES
fair value of club debentures MEEZ S EREE (223) (1,071)
Loss arising from change in fair value of ERRARESR A TEEZS
club and corporate debentures MmE4 2 B8 (1,869) (14,161)
Financial liabilities measured at fair value BiBEREARMRATEFEZ
through profit or loss: SREE
Unrealised loss arising from change in B AT EE
fair value of cross currency swap MEE 2 REFEE (111) (6,060)
Realised gain (loss) arising from change in EBER AT EEY
fair value of cross currency swap i 2 & 2 B # IR W (B18) 6,060 (1,921)
Net gain (loss) arising from change in EBER AT EER
fair value of cross currency swaps i 2 4 2 Was (B518) /558 5,949 (7,981)
Other investment (expenses) income, net HAbig & (R WA F5E (2,253) 21,339
Interest income from other financial assets EfemEE2FBUMA 6,705 8,648
(427,829) 1,169,820
“E-TEFHR  EABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

11. FINANCE COSTS

MBEHN

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Interest on: FE -
Bank borrowings |ITEE 117,504 157,969
Other borrowings HiEE 70,690 217,801
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,975 1,086
Other interest At A1 2 1 -
Total interest (Note 42) A2 4azE (i EE42) 191,170 376,856
Exchange loss (gain) on translation of foreign SNEIRITREMEEARERZ
currency bank and other borrowings and e 3 518 (W as) 5 %
loan, net 20,232 (13,789)
Other finance costs HanBr %58 A 6,995 7,118
218,397 370,185
Less: Interest capitalised to investment B BREERREE
properties under construction Bz FE (2,838) =
215,559 370,185

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
capitalised borrowing costs at a rate of 1.87% (2019: nil) per annum
amounted to approximately HK$2,838,000 (2019: nil) on qualifying

REE—
n o R

assets. 2,838,000 L(=F
12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hit s R g8
2020
HK$'000
FTEx
Included in other gains and losses are: HAb Wz REEBLE
Write-down of stock of properties MEFEZRE (4,831)
Loss on deregistration and striking off/ BB X B EE T K
dissolution of subsidiaries SIBR R, B E1E (2)
Allowance for credit losses recognised BBTHE QAR FIARRZ
in respect of advances to associates, net EEEREETE (27)

EF+_A=+—HLEE
ERERE1.87E (=
).:Jr;tﬁéf}‘n BIREEBEMMEZEERERY
—NEF &) o

TN

2019
HK$'000
TAT

(681)

(10,678)

(982)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises: XHBE

EHEINA

FEMEH

Current tax:

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Other than Hong Kong BB AN R
Overprovision in prior years: BT FE R

Hong Kong Profits Tax FEMEH

Other than Hong Kong

Deferred tax: (Note 30)

Current year (credit) charge

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. The PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for the PRC subsidiaries are calculated at the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%). Taxation arising
from other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group is subject to tax rate in the United Kingdom that has been
changed from 20% to 19% as the Group is subject to corporation
tax instead of non-resident landlord income tax effective from 6 April
2020.

BENIMEE

EFERR - (FIRE30)
AEEBE) <

13. REHAX

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
44,271 106,654
42,039 42,475
86,310 149,129
(544) (297)
141 201
(403) (96)
(15,625) 8,225
70,282 157,258

REMNESHMMAL  AEKREEEEY
2,000,000 7T 2 S 1| # #2558 % 8.2 5% 3R B -
i #2382,000,0007 7T 2 i 7 #$ 1=  %£16.5%
JB e PRAENEGHMARS 2 EEEE 2=
BABEIR G — TR 16 5%:RF - FEMH B QT
ZHBEREMEH IR EREMEHE25%
(ZZ—NF : 250)5HH - Hih el AR EA
ZRMIBEDNIRERRERER 2 RITHEHE - K
EEHALEMBEHAE S -_TFUASBETH
MEBEIFEREEAEHAT - MAMKEED
EBEW  MREBE-—T-ZF+-_A=1+—
HIEFERBED B200% 519% °

—E=BEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contd) 13. T8 HBEX @

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit REEZ 2SR HEEES 2ERERET 2B
before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income BADE MERAT
as follows:
2020 2019
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TERT THT
Profit before tax BRAEATE 7 692,546 948,910
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BRERRIBHTE6.5%
of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (ZZ—NF : 165%)
ATEZHA 114,270 16.5 156,570 165
Tax effect of share of results of BEAEREARRE
investments accounted for using the CEBIHBEE
equity method 6,346 0.9 (34,598) (36)
Tax effect of income not taxable for ?ﬁﬁi‘xﬁﬁ‘;ﬂ@ﬁﬁ
tax purposes WAZBBTE (334,083) (48.2) (175,767) (18.5)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible SHBHE 7FEHIJ ]
for tax purposes (e PRih 5% 263,608 38.1 207,663 219
Tax effect on accelerated accounting BEBREEGCRER) 2
depreciation over tax depreciation MEEHMERR
previously over provided RBHEHBT &
(not provided) 212 - (996) 0.1
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BREANRERZ
recognised HBEE (2,050) (0.3) (8,449) (0.9)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZHBEER
BB E 18,920 2.7 3,184 03
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (403) (0.1) (96) =
Effect on deferred tax resulting from MELGHERETRIE L
change in tax rate e (1,348) 0.2) - -
Effect of different tax rates of EHEMBERREE
subsidiaries operating in MEBLEEA 2 TR
other jurisdictions BErea 4,810 0.7 9,747 1.0
Tax charge for the year REFHIARZ M 70,282 10.1 157,258 166
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after

(charging) crediting:

Total staff costs:

Staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments

Retirement benefit scheme contributions,
net of forfeited contributions of
approximately HK$28,000
(2019: HK$331,000)

Auditors’ remuneration:
Auditors of the Company
— Current year
Other auditors
— Current year

— Underprovision in prior years

Depreciation of:

— Property, plant and equipment

— Right-of-use assets

Exchange loss, net
Rental expenses from short-term leases

Cost of cosmetics products recognised

Share of tax of associates

Share of tax of a joint venture

Share of tax of investments accounted for
using the equity method (included in
share of results of investments accounted

for using the equity method)

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

14. RFERF

AERREND F0R)FA

BEMRABER -
EEXRET(BIEEEWE)

RIKEFIFHEMERR - Bk
B8 UK 31 4928,00078 7T
(ZZ—hF : 331,000 7T)

ZHETE 2 -

AR BERZELED
-AFE

H b A2 BEm
-AFE
- BEFERETR

e
-ME - BEEEE
- EREEE

PE S B 1R R
SEUREN PR kA
e % am B A HERR

BhEE QRITHIA

BE—RAERAMREA

BEAREARRE 2HE
(BEFABIERAEDEARIRE
ZEKE)

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fax FHL
(139,310) (133,041)
(8,716) (8,077)
(148,026) (141,118)
(2,065) (2,015)
(519) (546)
(10 O
(25,624) (7,384)
(62,564) (19,680)
(88,188) (27,064)
(902) (709)
(15,654) (37,602)
(5.535) (4,457)
(8,647) (8,135)
313 =
(8,.334) (8,135)
—ECEEER  EAE%EE 231



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (contd) 14. AFEimA

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after RFEEHEME HBR)FTA - ()
(charging) crediting: (Cont'd)
Gross proceeds on sales of investments HERFEEEZIRE ZMEHIEA
held-for-trading Rk 365,211 -
Carrying amount of investments HEREERE 2 IREZEmE
held-for-trading disposed of (339,198) -
Transaction costs on sales of investments HERIEEBREZREZZHKA
held-for-trading (710) -
Gain on sales of investments held-for-trading FABARZ HEREEE
included in revenue wE W= 25,303 -
Gross rental income from investment KEMFEHSWALE
properties 373,461 522,963
Less: Direct operating expenses from B AFREEHESWAZ
investment properties that generated REMFEEELERX
rental income during the year (11,914) (13,341)
Direct operating expenses from REEURELERSWAZ
investment properties that REVEEELERX
did not generate rental income
during the year (39,238) (3,673)
322,309 505,949
(Allowance for credit losses recognised) MEWE FHRIA
reversal of allowance for credit losses (BRZEEEERB)
in respect of trade receivables, net BEZEEEIERETE (2,823) 43
Allowance for credit losses recognised TBABE QA RRERR Y
in respect of advances to associates, net EEEBERETE (27) (982)
Write-off of trade receivables BIEWE 5 BRIE 2 3K = (16)
Write-off of other receivable L E A FE U BRTE 2 H 3 = (18)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine

(2019: nine) Directors were as follows:

15. EEM <€

ENXENTAR(CE-NAF  AREFER
Bzl REMMEMT

2020 2019
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefit Salaries benefit
and other scheme and other scheme
Fee emoluments contributions Total Fee  emoluments  contributions Total
HeR RIKER 58k RIRER
Be Hit# e HE [ ag we e HEE ik

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER T

HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TERL TEL TETL TR

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai eyt 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan BBt
(note (i)) (Fi3E() - 1,900 144 2,044 - 1,960 144 2,104
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan BTt
(note (ii)) (P (i) - 100 5 105 - 100 5 105
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan ReBut - 936 76 1,012 - 854 7 926
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai WHEEE - 3,033 234 3,267 - 2,824 27 3,051
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai ArEat 240 - - 240 240 - - 240
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai REREE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping EERLL 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun SRELE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
1,440 5,969 459 7,868 1,440 5738 448 7626
Notes: BMI5E

(i)  Ms. Chan, Sze-wan resigned as executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from 17 February
2021.

(i)  Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan was appointed as chief executive officer of the
Company with effect from 17 February 2021.

No Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

Details of material interests of the Directors in transactions,
arrangements or contracts entered into by subsidiaries of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed "Directors’ Report” of

this annual report.

() BREFBER+TE-_T-_—F_A+tHEH
THITEERARAZITREE 2B -

(i) MIBZTBE-_TE-—F_A+tHRE
RERARRRZITIREEL

EENERNEE T TFR_T-AF+
A=Z+—ALFEARZERBEMNHE -

EARBZMBARRILR S - REREBRZ

EEMNEAN B HABREAFRZ[EETER

SEI-HAKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

16. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 16. EEENE
(@) Five highest paid individuals (@ EZEBREFMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2019: two) was (were) Director(s), details
of his (their) emoluments were included in Note 15. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2019: three) individuals

were as follows:

AEEREAREHEALH  —R(CE
—hF MBB/EF  KRFIZME
ABEEENMEIS c AR (ZF—
NE ZR)BERALZHENT ¢

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Salaries and other benefits e REHMAER 9,948 7,650
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFIFTEI R 805 616
10,753 8,266

The emoluments of the four (2019: three) individuals were

within the following bands:

ZHE(ZE-NF ZR)ENALZ
MEemEEmT

Number of employees

EBEA™
2020 2019
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017T — 2,500,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 — 3,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017&7T — 3,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,00137T — 4,000,000/ 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, or Director(s), as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December

2020 BEZZ-_TF+-A=1+—HLFE

16. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (contd) 16. EEM € w)
(b) Emoluments of senior management (b) SHREEEZHE

Other than the two (2019: two) senior management whose
profiles are included in the section headed “Profiles of Senior
Executives” of this annual report and their emoluments
have been disclosed in the five highest paid individuals
(Note 16(a)), the emolument of the remaining one
(2019: one) senior management was within the band of
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$1,500,001 to

REINRAEE=EHMMAL(FIEE16())
ZRBE(ZE-—NF  MB)=aRERE
B (HERAFRIERITHRAEEN]—
Rz & - Feh—CL(ZF—Hh
F:—()afhBEEZWEBEAR
1,500,001 7L &2,000,0008 70 (ZF —
N :1,500,001% 7LE2,000,000%

HK$2,000,000). I
17. DIVIDENDS 17. RE
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
(@  Final dividend for 2019 paid @ RZEZTFXA+—H
on 11 June 2020 of HK1 cent Btz ZE—NF
(2018: HK10 cents) per share RHR S EAR VL
(ZZ—NF:
A 1074L) 19,076 190,762
(b) Interim dividend for 2020 paid by R-ZE-_ZTFHIALH
on 7 September 2020 of BRMz T _TF
HK1 cent (2019: HK1 cent) AR ERRR B AR 1AL
per share (ZZ—N%F:
FRED) 19,076 19,076
Total dividends paid BIRTAR B 4858 38,152 209,838
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 of HK1 cent EEERRAERBE T _TF+_A=+—
(2019: HK1 cent) per share has been proposed by the board of AIEFEZREREFRIBILCT—NF
Directors and is subject to shareholders' approval at the forthcoming BR1EN) - BFERRRARE 2 EERRE
annual general meeting of the Company. FRE LA -

—B-BEER  EABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RATHEAANEL 2 BREARRETRT TR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following B TEIRAHE
data:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Earnings: By
Earnings for the purposes of basic and HEERERREERTR 2
diluted eamnings per share 27
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RAREBABEERFEZ
the Company i ) 622,233 790,167
Number of shares
RHEE
2020 2019
Number of shares: BRINEE -
Weighted average number of ordinary AEERERREERN
shares for the purposes of basic and LB AR T 88
diluted earnings per share 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079
Diluted eamings per share for the years ended 31 December 2020 BHE_Z-_ZFR-_ZF-NF+A=+—H
and 2019 were the same as the basic eamings per share as there IHFE - BRI EEEEE - W EAMEFE
were no diluting events during both years. Z RS BN B R R R B AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Fair value ’L\\SWE
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—HA—H
Additions =
Exchange adjustments BE i, g Ex
Decrease in fair value recognised Rira 2 E RS
in the consolidated statement of WP HER
comprehensive income NEHERD
— unrealised - REW
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+=ZA=+—H

Acquisition of assets through acquisition of 3% & W 38 —FEI HI /B A 7]

a subsidiary (Note 40) Weis & 2= (Fi 5 40)
Construction costs incurred BEEZBRERR
Exchange adjustments I 5 S B
Decrease in fair value recognised RirE 2E R

in the consolidated statement of WP R

comprehensive income NHERD

— unrealised - RER
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BHF

+=ZB=+—8~

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

Property valuations as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were
carried out by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.I. Appraisals”), independent
qualified professional valuer, in respect of the Group's investment
properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China. For the investment
properties in the United Kingdom, the property valuations as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 were carried out by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”), another independent
qualified professional valuer. The valuers have recent relevant
experience in the valuations of similar properties in the relevant

locations.

19. BREWMHE

Properties
Completed under
properties construction Total
RIS RE S HERYE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THETT THETT
15,280,848 = 15,280,848
861 = 861
220,457 = 220,457
(742,659) = (742,659)
14,759,507 = 14,759,507
- 900,562 900,562
- 14,926 14,926
247,528 - 247,528
(1,544,752) (4,488) (1,549,240)
13,462,283 911,000 14,373,283

REBEMBRBLERHURRES R ERE
BEzYERaDRABAFEERGE YO8
RIEREMEAR

7?
W
[
’H
-H?

—hEFE+=ZA=+—8"

REEN EC%S/%&QJIKK*Z&QW%EE?’%_L
EERBEXMAEMROBERFEAR2F (R
BRG] ETYERE - ERURERZ
REME  mE—BIAERIEXLEMRE
AEERAR(CREFEDETR T _ZF
R-_ZF-NF+ZA=+—RZYEMHE- A
BT BT A AR B R L 35 2 465

N

—ECREFR FEABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. REYHE»

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the Group
discussed with the independent qualified professional valuers about
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for Level 3 fair

value measurements.

The valuation reports for the investment properties as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 were signed by the respective
directors of B.l. Appraisals and Peak Vision Appraisals, who are
members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The valuations were performed
in accordance with “The HKIS Valuation Standards 2020 Edition”
published by The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or “The RICS
Valuation — Global Standards issued November 2019 (Effective from
31 January 2020)" published by The Royal Institution of Chartered

Surveyors.

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined
at the end of each reporting period based on its market value and
by adopting investment method, direct comparison method and/or
residual method, as appropriate. The investment method relying on
the capitalisation of rental income is based upon estimates of future
results and a set of assumptions specific to each property to reflect
its tenancy status. The fair value of each investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current term leases, term
yield rate, assumptions about rental income from future reversion
leases in light of current market conditions, the assumed occupancy
rate and reversionary yield rate. Judgment by the valuers is required
to determine the principal valuation factors, including term vyield
rate and reversionary yield rate. Such yield rates were adopted after
considering the investment sentiments and market expectations of
properties of similar nature. Direct comparison method assumes
each of these properties is capable of being sold in its existing state
with the benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to
comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant markets.
For investment properties under construction at fair value, their
fair values are determined by residual method by deducting the
estimated total outstanding redevelopment costs and an allowance
for developer’s risk and profit from the gross development value of

the proposed redevelopment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. REMZE ®
The following tables analysed the investment properties which TRARBRERRUATFEAZZREMESZ
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period ZERSBH(ERRBEBYHMELRFE 135
into the three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value [R T ER 2R EIEE — L) DT o

Measurement” which is further elaborated in Note 3.

Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
DA E— BZR g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET FHET FHETT
Recurring fair value REHEQIFE
measurements: FTE
Completed properties SRR 13,462,283 - 842,278 12,620,005
Properties under construction FErh 911,000 - - 911,000
At 31 December 2020 R-ZBZZF
+=A=+—H 14,373,283 - 842,278 13,531,005
Completed properties BRI
At 31 December 2019 R-F—NF
+=A=+—8 14759507 - 1295824 13,463,683
Certain investment properties located in Hong Kong and Mainland DERE_RAVEFEZETUREERT
China categorised as Level 2 fair value measurement are determined BIRREZREMENBELEEET - 2E7]
using direct comparison method with reference to the recent selling HUEBMEZHFLGTFIREE  MEEBRLZ
prices of comparable properties on a price per square foot basis FARURMBEEME 2R RAE

which are adjusted to reflect the conditions and locations of the

related properties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. REYHE»

Details of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on RBERRSBERE-RATEAZZIRED
investment properties which are categorised as Level 3 fair value EZHEMERZ MR Z8E 2 FIBN
T

measurement at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Significant
unobservable
Fair value Valuation techniques inputs Range
NYE B EXFUBEEE HE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TATL
Properties held for investment 5,005,820 5412550  Combination of direct (1) Reversionary yield; and 2.50% to 4.75%
in Hong Kong comparison method and ERERRE: R (2019: 2.50% 10 4.750%)
UREB 2 BERENE investment method (2) Market rent per square foot ~ 250EZ4.75E
ERUBERREL AR sYIRzmEEE (Z2-NF : 250EZ4T5E)
Properties under construction 911,000 - Residual method Estimated redevelopment costs ~ N/A
in Hong Kong NuERE it ERAA il
UREEz BERY %
Properties held for investment 7,614,185 8,051,133 Combination of direct (1) Reversionary yield; and 3.50% to 5.75%
in the United Kingdom comparison method and ERERE; & (2019: 3.13% to 5.00%)
URREZBERENE investment method (2) Market rent per square foot ~ 3.50BZ5.758
ERNBERREER A BERRzMHAS (ZZ-NE :313BZ5008)
Total 13,531,005 13,463,683
&g
Reversionary yield is the rate taking into account the capitalisation of BERBHET G REEHSWABERE - WE
potential rental income, nature of the property and prevailing market MERERTRGEHZLEE - GFFRZMIS
conditions. Market rent per square foot is the market rent taking into HEe I REEME TSI HEEREERR S
account the direct comparable market transactions to the related JHzmIBHES - At ZERK AR RTXD
properties. Estimated redevelopment costs are the costs to be EREIHE IR -
expended to complete the properties.
The fair value measurements are negatively correlated to the NP EFERERDHRE R 2 ERKAK
reversionary yield and the estimated redevelopment costs, while Rt - MEGFEFRzTHES UKL -

positively correlated to the market rent per square foot.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. REMZE ®
Movements of investment properties which are categorised as PRERE-RATEAEZREMERFANZ
Level 3 fair value measurement during the year are as follows: BT
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1 January Hm—A—A 13,463,683 13,984,232
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of FRE—ERE L
a subsidiary (Note 40) U iE & & (fi 51 40) 900,562 -
Construction costs incurred EEZEENR 14,926 -
Additions NE - 861
Exchange adjustments PE 5 A 245,863 221,112
Decrease in fair value recognised Rire 2 E R
in the consolidated statement of WMERPERZ
comprehensive income ~NHERD
— unrealised - REBR (1,094,029) (742,522)
Carrying amounts fREE
At 31 December Rt=—H=+-—-H 13,531,005 13,463,683
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurement REBEE_Z-_TFER_FT-NF+_HA=+—
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 and no HIEFER  B=HAFEFEZREMEY
change in valuation techniques used as compared with those in prior MmEANEL  MATAZHERINTEBTFE
years. In estimating the fair value of the properties, their current use FRAMREEE - RAEFMEZIATE WX
equates to the highest and best use of the properties. ZENRRSERERS REEAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. ¥ - BMENRE
Furniture, Yachts and
Leasehold Leasehold fixtures and motor
land  Buildings improvement equipment vehicles Total
HE B -
HELH BF WEEE EERRHE EEREHR k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THER THER THER THER
Cost BA
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF—-A—H 26,540 4,625 12,753 27,661 82,229 153,808
Additions NE - - 14,226 2,847 - 17,073
Disposals/written off HE /HisH - - (1,608) (2,120) - (3,728)
Exchange adjustments i A% (594) (103) - (12) - (709)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AF+=-A=+—H 25,946 4,522 25,371 28,376 82,229 166,444
Additions RE = = 45,278 11,368 91,065 147,711
Disposals/written off HE /HisH - - (11,144) (1,947) (33,813) (46,904)
Exchange adjustments X AR 1,712 298 - 35 - 2,045
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF+-A=+-H 27,658 4,820 59,505 37,832 139,481 269,296
Depreciation E
At 1 January 2019 RZZ2-NF—A—H 2,225 493 12,738 21,503 80,195 117,154
Charge for the year KEFHE 475 104 2,679 2,583 1,543 7384
Elimination upon disposals/  H& /Hifi ks
written off i - - (1,605) (1,930) - (3,535)
Exchange adjustments B 5% (59) (13) - an - (83)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=t+-H 2,641 584 13,812 22,145 81,738 120,920
Charge for the year KEEHE 468 102 19,261 3,457 2,336 25,624
Elimination upon disposals/ & /i $58%
written off By - - (11,144) (1,832) (33,813) (46,789)
Exchange adjustments RS 203 45 - 31 - 279
At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZF+-A=1-H 3,312 731 21,929 23,801 50,261 100,034
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-EF+=-A=+-H 24,346 4,089 37,576 14,031 89,220 169,262
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+=A=1+—H 23,305 3,938 11,559 6,231 491 45,524
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

The Group leases assets including properties and equipment. Most

of the leases of properties are negotiated for term ranging from

one to three years while lease of equipment is negotiated for five

years. Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is

presented below:

(a) Right-of-use assets

Cost
At 1 January 2019
Additions

At 31 December 2019
Additions
Written off on expiry of lease

At 31 December 2020
Depreciation
At 1 January 2019

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2019
Charge for the year
Elimination upon written off

on expiry of lease

At 31 December 2020

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

R-_ZE—NF—HA—H

S
i

R-F-NF+=-A=+—~H
NE
FE 40 5) H RS 3 3

R=2=%F+=A=+—H
K

R-_F-NF—A—H
AFEITE
R-_F-h&F+=-A=+—8H
AEEITE

HRLAO B ER A K B

H3H

R-B-®F+-A=+—8

SREE
R-ZE-ZEF+ZA=1T—H

RZE—-NF+=-—A=+—H

2. FAREEREESE

AEEAR 2 BERBRYMERRZME - KB
EZHEOBRCENA—Z2=F  MRE2ZHE
HNERZEBRESF - BREAKEEREABEA
ZHEEEMZHMT

(a) FEREEE
Properties Equipment Total
LIES BB HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAET
6,593 1,232 7,825
148,754 = 148,754
155,347 1,232 156,579
51,880 = 51,880
(365) - (365)
206,862 1,232 208,094
19,218 462 19,680
19,218 462 19,680
62,102 462 62,564
(365) = (365)
80,955 924 81,879
125,907 308 126,215
136,129 770 136,899
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (contd)

ISR R MY EE

2. FHAREEREEEE:®

(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEME

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT

Lease liabilities payable within a period of: AR T HEENEEAE
Less than one year —FLT 67,300 47,929
More than one year but within two years —F LA L ETBEMmF 50,297 50,539
More than two years but within five years LI MRS RS 7,593 33,586
125,190 132,054
Less: Amounts due within one year W —FREHZ 8 (67,300) (47,929)
Amounts due after one year —FRIEZ KA 57,890 84,125

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are
disclosed in Notes 11 and 14.

BT ERAMAE L SERAMEIR14
R -

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended RBEZ-_ZFT_ZZF+=ZA=+—H
31 December 2020 was approximately HK$74,050,000 (2019: EFEE -HE Z iﬁ emMEBEHAR
HK$54,559,000). 74,050,000 L (ZF—1F : 54,559,000/
JT) °
22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2. BLEE
Trading and
exchange
rights Trademark Total
EERESE [af B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT
Cost R
At 1 January 2019, 756 Z-NF—H—HB
31 December 2019 and —NF+ZA=+—RHkK
31 December 2020 :$f$¢+fﬂ_+ H 2,705 14,300 17,005
Amortisation and impairment #8 & R &
At 1 January 2019, R=ZZT—-NF—AHA—A8"
31 December 2019 and —NF+ZA=+—AHK
31 December 2020 —E-EFF+ZA=+—H 2,705 14,300 17,005
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2020 R-B-Z2F+=-A=+—H = o =
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—8H - - -
The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such intangible FEEEAEBREERFY - WUBERE

assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

23. GOODWILL 23. &
HK$'000
FAT
Cost A
At 1 January 2019, R—ZZE—NEF—HA—H"
31 December 2019 and —E-AFE+ZA=F+—8K
31 December 2020 —EBTFE+-_R=+—H 370,686
Impairment WE
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—H—H 47,748
Impairment loss for the year AFERERE 322,938
At 31 December 2019 and RZFE-NF+ZA=+—HBRK
31 December 2020 —EEF+-A=+—H 370,686
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-Z2F+=-A=+—H -
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NF+-A=+—H -
Impairment testing of goodwill BERERNR
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired through RETRENS  RETERAHELZBE
certain business combinations has been allocated to the Group's ENREAEECREELSEN  BRELEE
CGUs, which in all cases were determined to be investment BNBRARMBEE CIREMSE - FTEREHE
properties owned by subsidiaries. All goodwill was fully impaired and BERAELDNBEFERER °

was recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

23. GOODWILL (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'd)

The recoverable amount for the CGU operated in the United
Kingdom had been determined based on value-in-use calculation
using five-year cash flow projections approved by the Directors.
The pre-tax discount rate adopted as at 31 December 2019
was approximately 5.20% per annum for the United Kingdom
property business which was applied to the cash flow projection
when assessing the recoverability of the CGU containing goodwill.
Cashflows beyond that five-year period had been extrapolated
at nil growth rate in the calculation of the terminal value. As at
31 December 2019, the management noted that the anchor tenant
of the investment property of the Group located in the United
Kingdom would surrender the lease in the first quarter of 2020
and thereafter asset enhancement work to the investment property
was expected to carry out by the Group. Based on this assumption,
an independent qualified professional valuer had carried out a
value-in-use calculation of the CGU operated in the United Kingdom,
with the recoverable amount for the United Kingdom CGU of
approximately HK$3,269,118,000 as at 31 December 2019. The
Group recognised a full impairment loss of goodwill of approximately
HK$322,938,000 attributable to the United Kingdom CGU as at
31 December 2019.

In the preparation of the value-in-use calculation, there were a
number of assumptions and estimates involved for the preparation
of the cash flow projections. Key assumptions included gross
income, discount rates and time period required for the asset
enhancement work which were determined by the Directors based
on past performance and their expectation for market development.
The values assigned to key assumptions were based on historical
experience, current market conditions, approved forecasts and
consistent with external information sources. Gross income was
budgeted gross income. The discount rates used were determined
with reference to weighted average cost of capital of similar
companies in the industry reflected specific risks relating to the
industry. Time period required for the asset enhancement work was
determined based on time required for similar work of comparable
investment property. The estimated future cash inflow and cash
outflow derived from asset enhancement was excluded in the value-

in-use calculation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 24, LERZEARZKRE
THE EQUITY METHOD

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(@) Interests in associates: @ WtEATIERE
Cost of investments in associates REREE N AR
— unlisted -kt 1,204,736 1,204,736
Share of post-acquisition profits/losses HAERERERN, BB R
and other comprehensive income/ Hih 2 AR S
expenses net of dividends received MR E WA B 994,774 1,020,234
2,199,510 2,224,970
(b) Interest in a joint venture: (note) b) —HEEARER: ()
Cost of investment in a joint venture HE—HEERRKAE
— unlisted -3ELET - 150
Share of post-acquisition profits BEW B R T - 208,208
- 208,358
2,199,510 2,433,328
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group further e RBE_ZT—-—AF+_A=+T—HLF
subscribed 1% equity interest in Landrich so that the Group F - AEEE-FRBEELRZ10RAKE
held 519 equity interest in Landrich as at 31 December 2019. &w MARERZZE-NEF+A=+—
Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreements, it requires unanimous AREEB 2510 AER - BRERR
consent from all shareholders of Landrich for decisions about # o HEEEBRREEMERR —HF
the relevant activities. The Group did not have control over E-RZZE-—NE+ZRA=+—8 &%
Landrich under the shareholders’ agreements notwithstanding E 5B EMEBS00RAERE - BRE
the Group held more than 50% equity interest in Landrich as at RERBZEIN EEIEHE - WERE S EAR
31 December 2019 and Landrich was therefore classified as a AEBZAERTA -
joint venture of the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group acquired REBEZE-_ZT_TF+_A=+—HILF
the remaining 49% of the entire issued share capital of Landrich B AEBWEERRT49%2EE ET
and Landrich has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the R - MEMEKARARZ —HE2EHE
Company thereafter. Details of the acquisition are set out in EWEAR - ZWEEEZFBE2EHINRN
Note 40. M EE40/A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 24, LERZEARZKRE®

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 December
2020 are set out in Note 50.

The Company provided corporate guarantees to secure bank
borrowings granted to its associates and joint venture in prior years.
The fair value of the financial guarantee contract at initial recognition
was determined by an independent qualified professional valuer,
and was recognised as investments accounted for using the equity
method and financial guarantee liabilities in the Group's consolidated

statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2020, the investment properties held by the
Group's principal associates (2019: associates and joint venture)
were revalued by B.I. Appraisals. B.I. Appraisals continues to adopt
investment method and/or direct comparison method as the
valuation methodologies. As at 31 December 2019, for investment
properties under construction at fair value, their fair value were
determined by residual method. The valuation methods and
significant assumptions applied in determining the fair values of

investment properties are detailed in Note 19

All of the associates (2019: associates and joint venture) are
accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated

financial statements.

The information below reflects the amounts presented in the
unaudited financial statements of associates (2019: associates and
joint venture) which were prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
adjusted for the differences arising from accounting policies and
different financial year-end dates between the Group and the

associates and joint venture, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 24, LERZEARZKRE®
THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(a) Interests in associates () HEATER
The summarised financial information in respect of the REBMEBZHE NG -BEHEERARA
Group's material associate, Finedale Industries Limited, is set Al B ERBESIN AT
out below:
Finedale Industries Limited EHEEERQF
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current assets EmBEE 3,684,000 3,709,000
Current assets MEEE 651,890 578,704
Current liabilities mEBE (71,963) (86,905)
Net assets BERE 4,263,927 4,200,799
Revenue A 114,383 110,173
Profit (loss) for the year REEa A (ER) 63,128 (47,729)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) REE2ENE (ZH) 858
for the year 63,128 (47,729)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial Bhea N A s 2 ARTE(E B
information presented to the carrying amount IS E R Z SR -
of its interest in the associate:
Net assets at 1 January R—A—BZEESFE 4,200,799 4,248,528
Total comprehensive income (expenses) REErEE L) @58
for the year 63,128 (47,729)
Net assets at 31 December ®n+-—A=+—82
BEFE 4,263,927 4,200,799
Interest held by the Group REEFE 2 B 33.33% 33.330%
Group's interest in the associate and REBERZBE N2
the carrying amount W NMREE 1,421,309 1,400,266
Dividend received from the associate RAFEDHREE QT ZRE

during the year - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E T -_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING ~ 24. UERZEARZRE®
THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(a) Interests in associates (Cont'd) () HEQATERE)
Aggregate financial information of associates that are not ERIZFEE 2B E N RV IEE R 4AE

individually material:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Group's share of results for the year REBBOANFEES (56,670) 20,862
Group's share of other comprehensive REEBOERFE
income (expenses) for the year Hip 2 mias (GE ) 10,132 (4,382)
Group's share of total comprehensive REEBORFE
(expenses) income for the year 2HE () WE=4R5E (46,538) 16,480
Group's aggregate interests in these REERZEHRENTZ
associates and the carrying amounts B N REE 778,201 824,704
Dividends received from associates RAFEDHEENE 2
during the year ARE - 48212
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(b) Interest in a joint venture

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group's joint venture, Landrich, is set out below:

Landrich (H.K.) Limited

Non-current asset

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets

Current liabilities
Current financial liabilities
(excluding trade and other payables
and provisions)

Other current liabilities

Non-current liability

Non-current financial liabilities

Net assets

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

24. LEZZEARZERE®

(b) —EBEELTER

HANT -

EWREBERLT

FRBEE

mBEE
RekReFEER
Hitn#EE

nEBaE
REBETHAR
(TERENESRER
HoAth A BRI LA e B )
Hitn# A&

FRBAME
FRBHEmEE

BEFME

—E-BEER

AEBAERR-RHcMBENME

2019
HK$'000
TAT

900,000

6,571

2,018

8,589

(180,000)

(2,576)

(182,576)

(317,467)

408,546
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E T -_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 24. LR EARZERE®

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)
(b) Interest in a joint venture (Cont'd) (b)

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group's joint venture, Landrich, is set out below: (Cont'd)
Landrich (H.K.) Limited (Cont'd)
The results of Landrich for the period from 1 January 2020

to the date of completion of acquisition and the year ended

31 December 2019 are as follows:

—HEEQRER(E)

AEBMAERR-RHcMBENME
o T - ()

BHR(EB)ARAIRGE)

R-ZE-TF-A-HEWBZTKA

YR EHE —E-NF+_A=1—
BIESFE  BH2EENT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Revenue A - 4,200

Interest expense FEFSE - 5,364

Income tax credit Frig s g 614 -

(Loss) profit for the period/year HAA,F A (B8 i (5,553) 401,292
Total comprehensive (expenses) income HN/ FR2E G E) K

for the period/year M (5,553) 401,292
Dividend received from the joint venture REIR, FABKREE QT

during the period/year ZIRE = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(b)

Interest in a joint venture (Cont'd)

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group's joint venture, Landrich, is set out below: (Cont'd)

Landrich (H.K.) Limited (Cont'd)

b) —RIBEA TR

24. R EARZKRE®

AEBMAERR-RHcMBENME

#owT - ()

BR(EB)ARARGE)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial BERNRERREER

information presented to the carrying amount AR E 4R -

of its interest in the joint venture:

Net assets at 1 January R—A—BZEESFE
Increase in share capital (note) A& A8 o0 (P E)

Total comprehensive income for the year REEE2HZRHE

Net assets at 31 December R+—A=+—RZzEBEFE
Interest held by the Group REBERFH 2 S

Group's interest in the joint venture and REBERZEERAIZER K

the carrying amount RmEE

Note: Upon completion of the subscription during the year ended
31 December 2019, the excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment of approximately HK$4,089,000
was included in the determination of the Group's share of
the joint venture's profit or loss in the period in which the
investment was acquired.

2019
HK$'000
TAT

7,253
1
401,292

408,546

51%

208,358

Mz : RBEZT—NF+_A=+—HL#F
EATKRER  AEEBEAHRE
ERBBEZAFEFEBAREXNELY
74,089,000/ LI B RN IIEZ IR E 2 B
AABREECAEBEGLHAENRZ

S
B e

—E-BEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

25.

26.

ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES

Interest-bearing advance(s) to associate(s) BAEEAR 25 ERIE
Interest-free advances to associates BABMERRZRE ?”
The advances to associates are unsecured. The Group will not

demand for repayment within one year from the end of the reporting
period and the amounts are therefore shown as non-current. The
interest-bearing advance(s) to associate(s) bear(s) interest at the

prevailing market rate(s).

ADVANCE TO A JOINT VENTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the advance to a joint
venture was reclassified to amount due from a subsidiary following
the completion of the acquisition of the joint venture, details are set
out in Note 40.

As at 31 December 2019, the advance to a joint venture was
unsecured and interest-free. The Group would not demand for
repayment within one year from the end of the reporting period and

the amount was therefore shown as non-current.
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25.

26.

TR

B A ARA

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx TAT

46,516 47,846

1,947 265

48,463 48,111
BNBERRFANEER -  ARETERK

?

>:-
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HIVESERBIEE - BB ERR 2 EHE
AE R Z TISEENEGE -
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—HARERRRECR EREBAE ARG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Bonds (note (i)
Structured products (note (ii))
Investments held-for-trading (note (iii))

B (M)

Club and corporate debentures (note (iv))

Analysed for reporting purpose as: TEREREZ O -
Non-current FEREME
Current mEME

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate carrying amount of
bonds and investments held-for-trading was approximately
HK$3,440,336,000 (2019: bonds of HK$8,975,533,000), including
bonds and investments held-for-trading with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$1,378,931,000 (2019: bonds of
HK$1,650,320,000) were available to be loaned to financial
institutions for earning lending fee income and the same or
substantially the same securities would be returned to the Group,
pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the securities
pooled lending agreements, neither bonds nor investments
held-for-trading (2019: bonds of HK$90,709,000) were on loan at
the end of the reporting period.

Notes:

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, three indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, as the sellers, and Ms. Chan,
Hoi-wan, an executive Director and the Trustee of Substantial
Shareholders, as the purchaser (“Purchaser”), entered into a
disposal agreement in relation to the sale and purchase of certain
debt securities (“Disposal”).

Pursuant to the disposal agreement, the Disposal may be
completed in tranches and the completion of the last tranche of
the Disposal shall take place not later than 31 December 2020.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, all the conditions
had been fulfilled and the disposal of the last tranche of the debt
securities had been completed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the disposal agreement.

AERE A A (B REGE))
FHEE B 21 & (ML)
B M2 RES G EEY)

27. BBBERURMAFETEZ

THEE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FET
3,287,649 8,975,533
52,426 -
152,687 -
57,774 62,820
3,550,536 9,038,353
1,629,070 1,670,271
1,921,466 7,368,082
3,550,536 9,038,353

R-ZE-_TE+-_A=+—8 BHFLFE
BEECHREZREBERTELR3,440,336,000
BIL(ZE—NF : £%58,975,533,000%7T)
EPRAEMARELNA1,378,931,0008 L2
BEHERBIEEEZRE(ZE—NEF  BF
1,650,320,000%7T) - IRIBEERFEFEE B
BAIERZGERRGNG  THEE TS REE
BEEEERA  MEZEFHFAABER
ZEAKEREETAEE - RWMEHR - I
EEHFRFEEEZRE(CZE—NF : BF
90,709,000/ ) EAE H °

P& -

) REE-ZFZ-_ZTF+=-A=+—HLHF
B ARARZZRME2EBREWB R
(EBE R HEEIBLLEFITEERAR
RAIZEBREZETAERERTERD)
RN EHE  RAEHEBEETE
BEH(HESBAE]D -

REBZHEHZE  HEFHAIMER
M&E—HHEFAATER -_FT-_FF
ToA=T—HEK -REBEE-_T_FF
TZA=+—RLLFE  FEKTHEE
EX MEE—RHEBES ZHECRER
H & R 2 R R M 2K o

SBRCREEH  EAEEENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)
(i)  (Contd)

Details of the Disposal were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 29 January 2020, 23 March 2020 and
18 December 2020 and the circular of the Company dated
28 February 2020.

The bonds denominated in US$ carry at fixed rate range from
7.000% to 13.000% per annum of which notional amount of
US$188,200,000 are callable, all bonds denominated in GBP
with notional amount of GBP23,500,000 carry at fixed rate range
from 5.875% to 7.250% per annum are callable and bond
denominated in EUR with notional amount of EUR2,000,000
carries at fixed rate of 6.125% per annum is callable.

The listed bonds are traded in active market and stated at fair
values at the end of the reporting period. Their fair values are
determined by reference to market bid prices quoted by financial
institutions and brokers. For unlisted bond measured at fair value,
details of the fair value measurement are disclosed in Note 5(c).

Major terms of the bonds denominated in US$, GBP and EUR are

as follows:

Notional amount Maturity
US$120,000,000 2021
US$60,000,000 2022
US$63,200,000 2023
US$117,000,000 2024
US$1,000,000 2025
US$33,000,000 Perpetual
GBP23,500,000 Perpetual
EUR2,000,000 Perpetual

(i) The structured products comprised equity linked notes and
secured loan repackaged note with fixed interest rates which are
issued by the financial institutions and stated at fair values at the
end of the reporting period. Details of the fair value measurements
are disclosed in Note 5(c).

(i) The investments held-for-trading comprised equity securities listed
in Hong Kong or elsewhere which are traded in active market and
stated at fair values at the end of the reporting period. Their fair
values are determined based on the quoted market bid prices
available on the respective stock exchanges in Hong Kong and
elsewhere.

(iv)  Club and corporate debentures are stated at fair values at the end
of the reporting period. Details of the fair value measurements are
disclosed in Note 5(c).

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets
measured at FVTPL of approximately HK$1,629,070,000 (2019:
HK$1,670,271,000). They were included in non-current assets

according to their intended holding periods.
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27. BBRBERURMAFETEZ
EREE®

e
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(i)

(iil)
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(®)
(B

HEFEY HEORIINAATNABMA
T-TF—A-tNB —F-TF=A
Z+=ZAERZZEEFTATNABZA
BAR—ZE-BE-A-—+/\BZEH
A o

AETTEHEZ EHEEFHEA7.000EE
13.000F + HFR#%& ©%45188,200,0003%
T2 EEARERLD @ 2 ARSEHEZE
4 (%E S E /23,500,000 £) [E £ F 7
R A5875EE7.250F 0 RAAEE - LA
BITFHEZ EFH (&S5 A2,000,000E
o) EEEFERAE6125E - R ARED -

EHEFRRRERBZTISEE  RBRE
HIRUARFEIER - BH2AFEDRE
TREBLRER2THEAREEE 5l
NRFEFEZELTESME - 2 FE
FEZFHBC RS (QREKE -

NET  BERBTHEZESRZTIER
VYN

ZESH A
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1,000,0003 7T AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

28. BB H M WS R R AT

EHFfEZERMEE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Listed investments: ETRE -
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong - REB EMRAE
(note (i) (GEI0) 12,814,000 18,578,652
Unlisted equity securities: EEMRARES -
— Incorporated in Hong Kong (note (ii)) — RE BT (FHEEGD)) 1,007,337 1,045,621
— Incorporated elsewhere — R E A & T A L
(note (iii)) (Bf 2 Giii)) 585,883 558,270
14,407,220 20,182,543
Notes: M EE
(i)  As at 31 December 2020, the Group held certain Evergrande i) RZZTEZTF+=-A=+—H $’§ £l

HEETEREND REBEE_T-_ZF
TZA=T-BLFE" $E?F75Nﬂ%m
BZBEARBMEEERNRND A FESE

Shares. The unrealised loss on fair value change of the Evergrande
Shares of HK$5,762,000,000 (2019: HK$1,591,000,000),
which was determined based on quoted market bid price in

active market, was recorded in financial assets measured at B2 R E1ES5,762,000,0008 L (= F
FVTOCI reserve during the year ended 31 December 2020. The — L& 1 1,591,000,000/ 7T) B 7 iR 18 H
carrying amount of the Evergrande Shares held by the Group thEEREARRATFEFEZEHBE

as at 31 December 2020 was HK$12,814,000,000 (2019: EZHEAAR R-ZZTE-_FTF+=-A

(i)

HK$18,576,000,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of listed equity
securities was HK$12,814,000,000 (2019: HK$18,578,652,000),

Z+—B AEEFEEARDZER
£/412,814,000,000/8 L (B — L4 :
18,576,000,000/8 7T) °

R-ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H " FHKRAKX
B 7 BRHEEA12,814,000,0008 T (==

including listed equity securities with carrying amount of — L% 1 18,578,652,000/70) * HHEE
HK$759,900,000 (2019: nil) were available to be loaned to {B4759,900,0008 T(ZF—h4F : )z
financial institutions for eaming lending fee income and the same TTRAZES  REESISFEBEEHEMN

or substantially the same securities would be returned to the
Group, pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the
securities pooled lending agreements, none (2019: nil) of the
listed equity securities were on loan at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount mainly comprised
investment in a property development project in Hong Kong (10%
interest) of HK$859,286,000 (2019: HK$882,763,000).

(i)

B2 R Rt ATEER T 2R E N
RMEEBEA  MZEEFRXABER
ZEFHERRTAEE - RREHR
VE(CT-NF : EEHZ EmRAE

R-E-_ZF+_-_A=+—H FEEX
EARERN—BUNRBBZYHEERIEAR
(15 10%#£ 25) 859,286,000/ T (ZFE— 1
£ 1 882,763,000/ 7T) °

ZFEFR

_7_
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E T -_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

28.

29.

FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(iil)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount mainly comprised
investment in an exempted limited partnership formed under
the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands (“Cayman Islands Partnership”) of approximately
HK$488,583,000 (2019: HK$467,915,000).

The Cayman Islands Partnership has a term of ten years from the
date of initial closing. Purposes of the Cayman Islands Partnership
are to achieve exceptional returns by acquiring, holding and
disposing of equity, equity-related securities, high-yield structured
financial products, independently or with others, in companies
with various operations or such other activities.

The quoted price in active market of equity securities listed in Hong
Kong represents quoted market bid price available on the Stock

Exchange.

For unlisted equity securities measured at fair value, details of the fair

value measurements are disclosed in Note 5(c).

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets
measured at FVTOCI of approximately HK$14,407,220,000 (2019:
HK$20,182,543,000). They were included in non-current assets
according to their intended holding periods.

ADVANCE(S) TO INVESTEE COMPANY (IES)

The advance(s) to investee company(ies) is (were) unsecured and
interest-free. The Group will not demand for repayment within one
year from the end of the reporting period and the amount(s) is (were)

therefore shown as non-current.
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28. i@

29.

ISR R MY EE

1B H b 2 U 5 UL R A F
BifECzEmEE®w

MisE © (48)

RZZEZZTF+=-—A=+—H8 EEEF
DEARER—MIRHAESHSEARRERE
BOELIEEDRIZERCERAE
TrE(HEHESEZ %)) 4488,583,000
BEIT(ZZE— N4 : 467,915,000/87T) ©

(iil)

REREARCEMVSHIEBRERE+
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FHEHEMATBE HERHESERD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. IEIERIE
The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets AT A 7K 52 B R 7R 3 25 HA F) R 38 1F ¥ 45 B
recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the FERTEREGB BB (BEZHER) AL
current and prior reporting periods: B
Accelerated
Investment tax Tax
properties depreciation losses Total
hoEEBLIE
REWHE wE nEEE HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—H—H 25,057 27,995 (2,059) 50,993
Exchange adjustments M H A 39 746 (46) 739
Charged to the consolidated W& 2 FE W RE P
statement of ek (MHEE13)
comprehensive income
(Note 13) 6,328 3,900 (2,003) 8,225
At 31 December 2019 RZE—-—NF+ZA=+—A1 31,424 32,641 (4,108) 59,957
Exchange adjustments M H FA 66 1,148 (424) 790
Credited to the consolidated ~ H4RE 2 E S HRE +
statement of e (M 13)
comprehensive income
(Note 13) (5,268) 4,218 (14,575) (15,625)
At 31 December 2020 R=-B=-ZEF+=-A=+—H 26,222 38,007 (19,107) 45,122
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION (contd)

For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEE &
Deferred tax assets EETIBE =

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following major
unrecognised deferred tax assets due to the unpredictability of the

future profit streams.

IEBIAESTE
MISE1R

Accelerated tax depreciation

Tax losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's unused tax
losses not recognised of approximately HK$44,574,000 (2019:
HK$33,473,000) will be expired in one to five years. Other
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely and

subject to the confirmation from the respective tax authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

30. EERIE )

REEMBMRBRRZEY)  ETEEHER
BEREECIEHE - RYBRE BB 2ETEH

HESBTWT -
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
56,394 61,549
(11,272) (1,592)
45,122 59,957

REEHR - REB B P B ATRRARIOR T M
AEBATZETBREEHRBEE

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT
(137) (279)
(292,115) (266,849)
(292,252) (267,128)

RBERR  AEBMR—E2RFAEEm AR
W iR 2 AR A E 1840 /44,574,000% 7T
(ZZ—N%F : 33,473,00087T) ° HERKER
ZRISBEAERBLE  WASHARER
R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a)

(b)

()

Pledged deposits

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks and other
financial institutions to secure credit facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to approximately HK$178,532,000
(2019: HK$174,221,000) have been pledged to secure
short-term borrowings and are therefore classified as current
assets. The remaining deposits amounting to approximately
HK$81,974,000 (2019: HK$100,002,000) have been
pledged to secure long-term borrowings and are therefore

classified as non-current assets.

The pledged deposits carry interest at prevailing market
deposit rates. The pledged deposits will be released upon the

repayment of relevant borrowings.

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Securities trading receivables and deposits are mainly amounts

due from clearing house, brokers and clients.

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

The time deposits and certain bank balances carry interest at
prevailing market deposit rates. As at 31 December 2020, time
deposits with maturity greater than three months amounted
to approximately HK$35,634,000 (2019: HK$152,129,000)
and the remaining deposits were with maturity not greater
than three months. The Group does not hold collateral over
the deposit balances. As at 31 December 2020, balances
of cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$1,618,908,000 (2019: HK$413,190,000).

HiteMEE

(@)

(b)

(9

EHRER

ZEFEEERTRITREMS K
B EAEAEBEEREEEZIER
#178,532,0008 (=T — L& :
174,221,000 7T) 2 FREEREH
EEZER BESBEARBEE -
#T4981,974,0008 (=T — L& ¢
100,002,000 70) 2 FREERREE
B2ER M BERFERBEE -

WA B R IR B B T IS5 2 7 5N R F
B REERERHNEREERESR
By R B o

EREERZRARER

ERFHFZHEBRGEREZ AR
R BHRERLREPHIEA -

EHER  RITEBRRES
FHEFERRETRITERIZERTISZ
FRAEHE RZT_FF+RA=
+—B  FRESR=_EAZEHER
S EEH 535,634,000 T (ZE— NL4F -
152,129,000/ 7T) + 88 NF R 2 73 E#
BIREZR=@A - XEBMLERTRE
BEEER R-_TE-_TF+-A=+
—HB BeRkBELSEBEBEABSE
#171,618,908,000/8 (=T — N4 -
413,190,000/ 7T) °

SEFEHR  FEABXEE

_7_
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

32. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables

Less: Allowance for credit losses

Deposits and prepayments
Interest receivables from bonds and
structured products

Other receivables

Analysed for reporting purpose as:
Non-current

Current

Included in debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables of approximately HK$21,817,000 (2019:
HK$22,442,000 (restated)), which comprised rental and building
management fee receivables billed in advance and settlements from
tenants which are expected upon receipts of billings and receivables

from property management services and cosmetics business.

32. EWERE - € - H

il P& U AR

=
HRFENRIE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHT
(restated)
(&%)
FEWE 5 8R18 24,756 22,496
B EEBBEE (2,939) (54)
21,817 22,442
e MIERFRIEAE 94,497 66,406

EFREBEERZ
FELIF B 61,455 113,180
H b fE BRI 122,763 114,541
300,532 316,569

ERERBRZ DM

EmBE 50,380 15,388
mENEE 250,152 301,181
300,532 316,569

E5 2 RUARIA -
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FEEWE S ERIEA21,817,0008 L (=T — N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

32. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables (net of allowance for

credit losses) of the Group's major businesses are as follows:

32. EWERIE - #2#€ - HMEUWER

HRASRE®

AEEXFEXBREEZRAEGREEER
BB < REEWT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

(restated)

(&%)

Rental receivables from property leasing WEBRS 7 EKIES® 12,628 9,215
Building and property management services BFEIMEERERBEZ

fee receivables FEURERTE 7,940 10,311

Receivables from cosmetics business bz ¥R 2 BUKERIE 1,249 2916

21,817 22,442

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to
minimise any credit risk associated with these trade receivables.
Rental and building management fee in respect of leased properties
are payable in advance by the tenants. Other trade debtors settle
their accounts according to the payment terms as stated in the

respective contracts.

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for credit losses), presented based on the respective

revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period:

AEBEOHTREZEERER  UTEERS
TRIEEEER - AEETEREZER - 5
REBREZSEVESRBRBEZEER
e MEME2HEMEFTERBAMMFE
XAt o BB BEBARBMER & #RT A
ZIRIEFBRBEREA °

BEBRFBERA 2 BRBHAZ5| 2 BIKE 5HRE
(MR EEBRBBNREHRZRER DTN
T

0-30 days TE=1H
31-60 days =+—HZEXTH
61-90 days At—HEATAH
Over 90 days h+BRE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(restated)

(&%)

13,941 14,155
4,116 4,301
498 755
3,262 3,231
21,817 22,442
“ECEEER EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

32. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER 32. BWERIR - #< - HMEWER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd) EHEENRE@®
The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables which are past B BERBRE 2 B E 5 RRIE 2 BRI DT
due but not impaired: LU
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(restated)
27
0-30 days TE=+H 15,638 11,645
31-60 days =+—HZEXTH 2,190 2,204
61-90 days At+—HEATH 60 361
Over 90 days h+BRE 2,987 2,740
20,875 16,950
Movement in the allowance for credit losses: EEEERE 2 E2Y
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January ®—HA—8 54 432
Reversal of allowance for credit losses BB E 5 ARIER B 2
in respect of trade receivables ZEEEERE (29) (43)
Allowance for credit losses recognised BB E 5 RIERR 2
in respect of trade receivables EEEIERE 2,852 -
Exchange adjustments M 5, 3R # 68 -
Amount written off as uncollectible B BT Y [B] T i 88 2 I8 (6) (335)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 2,939 54
For those past due but not impaired receivables, although the Group MEBEBERWREEBKRIENS @ BAKR
does not hold any collateral as security, the Group has assessed the SEVESBEMNERRIERRF  AEEEH
creditworthiness, past payment history and substantial settlement HiEE  BABFEHEARSHAREGZEE

after the end of the reporting period, and considers that the amounts ERELAE - URRZEHANAIKE - &
are still recoverable and no further credit provision is required in BIEE— P (ERNEEBRER 2EERE -

excess of allowance for credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

32. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

Trade receivables over 90 days comprising rental and building
management fee receivables of approximately HK$1,594,000
(2019: HK$1,700,000) which are sufficiently covered by rental and/
or building management fee deposits received from the respective
tenants, and no allowance is required for these receivables under the

Group's allowance policy.

Trade receivables which are neither overdue nor impaired are in

good quality.

As refer to Note 3 for the change in presentation and classification of
certain revenue items, the amounts of the adjustments to the items
comprising debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments

affected by the Reclassification are as follows:

As at 31 December 2019:

32. RWERTE - % - HttEWR

HRASRE®

BBNTAZERESFEERERKAS X
BFEEELN,594,0008 T (ZT—hE -
1,700,000 L) (R R AR EEHEFE 2
e R/REFERBITCHMRE)  BEASE
B BEBR  BARZERYIRIEELR
1# -

BRI R IR BEEY BRR
4 -

A I B RE TWAHE 225 ko
Be28 BERERE  Re  HoBEER
BRENREBEZEESKEN S BEEMTE
MY AREBZ RN

WZ_E-NF+=-A=+—8":

As previously

reported Reclassification As restated
AR KEHHEFE gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables, net W E 5 BRIE FRE 12,131 10,311 22,442
Interest receivables from bonds and &5 R &BIEERZ
structured products JEWR B, - 113,180 113,180
Other receivables Hh e Y BRIE 238,032 (123,491) 114,541
As at 31 December 2020: RZEZZEF+-A=+—0H:
Amounts
without Effects of
Reclassification Reclassification As reported
T EEREH REFDE
PEBEZEHE BEHZY Sl ¥R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables, net B E 5 BRIE FRE 13,877 7,940 21,817
Interest receivables from bonds and &% R &BIEERZ
structured products JRE L 2, - 61,455 61,455
Other receivables H fth fE U AR 18 192,158 (69,395) 122,763
—EoTEFH EAB¥EE 265



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES 33.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the stock of properties
were completed properties and the Directors reviewed the carrying
amounts of the completed properties with reference to prevailing
market conditions and the estimated selling prices provided by B.I.

Appraisals.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a write-down of
completed properties of approximately HK$4,831,000 (2019:
HK$681,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as a result that net realisable value of a

completed property was lower than its carrying amount.

34. INVENTORIES 34.
Finished goods BURK
Raw materials EH ¥

All inventories were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

35. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS 35.

Included in creditors and accruals are trade payables of approximately
HK$4,142,000 (2019: HK$1,079,000).

The following is the aged analysis of trade payables, presented based

on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period:

0 — 90 days TENTH
Over 90 days h+BRE
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NEFE

R_B_BER-_F-NF+-A=+—8 "
BMERFENRERYE  BES2EER
Rk R ABERFERE 2 EEE - &
B 2 AREE

REBEE-_ZT-_TF+_A=-+—HILFER

—Iﬁféiﬂz%%ZTmfii‘%ﬁFE,ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BRI 2 FE#14,831,000/8 7T (=
JLE £ 681,000 7T0) W ARG 2 H Hﬂzaﬁ&%ﬂﬂ
TR o

A
5E

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

it Fit it

4,075 1,414

889 914

4,964 2,328

PEFEEKARAIBIFEREPRIEES
BE o

&1 iR 1A I FE ST IR

ENEBREAREREEMNESEERY
4,142,000/ 70(ZF— L4 : 1,079,000/ 7T) °

RIEFZHZRMZ7| 2 BNESHRAERREHR
ZIRE DT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERx THET
1,737 313
2,405 766
4,142 1,079
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36. BORROWINGS 36. B E
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Secured bank borrowings repayable within BN T P HARE R 2 B
a period of (note): RITIEE () -
Less than one year —FEUT 3,463,138 1,519,458
More than one year but within two years —F LA BB E 928,959 2,216,145
More than two years but within five years A HERBEAF 1,022,437 1,985,815
5,414,534 5,721,418
Secured bank borrowings that contain MR Z SR E R IR 2
repayment on demand clause (shown EHEMRITEEGIERE
as current liabilities) but repayable within afE) - AN T EHE
a period of (note): BEME) -
More than one year but within two years —F A LB RS 595,169 -
More than two years but within five years MEA LERNBRAF 180,000 592,476
775,169 592,476
Total secured bank borrowings BEMIRITEERRE 6,189,703 6,313,894
Other secured borrowings repayable AR—FAREEZ AMAER
within one year =3 1,074,129 7,128,365
7,263,832 13,442,259
Less: Amounts due within one year B —FRNEIH 2 R (5,.312,436) (9,240,299)
Amounts due after one year —F1& 5| 2 k78 1,951,396 4,201,960
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as set Mzt ZEINHzLBRERBETRIN A
out in the loan agreement(s). EEBHAH-
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36. BORROWINGS (contd) 36. fBEE @

The bank borrowings denominated in HK$ are variable-rate
borrowings which carry interest ranging from HIBOR plus 0.68% to
1.20% or at cost of funds of a bank plus 0.90% (2019: HIBOR plus
0.68% or cost of funds of a bank plus 0.90%) per annum.

The borrowings denominated in US$ and GBP from banks and a
financial institution are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at
cost of funds of a bank plus 0.90% (2019: cost of funds of a bank
plus 0.90%) or ranging from LIBOR plus 1.08% to 1.62% (2019:
LIBOR plus 1.08% to 1.62%) per annum.

Other borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest
ranging from costs of funds of individual financial institutions plus
0.25% to 0.35% or HIBOR plus 1.10% to 1.18% (2019: costs of
funds of individual financial institutions plus 0.25% to 0.55% or
HIBOR plus 1.10% to 1.95%) per annum.

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other

than HK$ are set out below:

Us$ e
GBP T
EUR BT
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WBTEAHEZ RITEE AT BIEE - ERIER
BB 1TFEH 8 MO68EE 1208 5 — MR
TESRAMO0B (=T —AE | EBRIT
LS 17,8 710,688 5 — R 87 A A A 110.90
B -

AET R EETEZRITR RS BEEE
BERFEMEE  FHNRER—MRTESHKAR
MO90E(ZT—NF : —AEETES KM
0.90) k@B RITREFEMI.08EZE1.62
E(ZZ—NF : RIFBITREREM.08F
E162B)5tE -

HiBEAZEEE  FAXIZERN S RIEE
BEKADN0.25E £0.35F sk BB RITRIEN
BMNTI0EENI8E(CZE—NEF : A&
HHEE SR ANO0.25E E0.55F X B A RITR
EFREMII0EZRE195E):HE -

REBLEBTAINEBHEZEEHINDT ¢

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAT
1,238,383 2,602,251
3,948,554 4,078,918
29,919 -
5,216,856 6,681,169
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37. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 37.97EEemIT A

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Cross currency swap Btk A 111 6,060
The table below is prepared based on the maturity date of TERIIBEBEAHIHARE - RZZTEZZTFR
the contract. The major terms of the cross currency swap as at ZE-NE+ZA=+—H E¥iEHIEE

31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: IEFRENT
Notional amount Fair value
£EHEH AFE
Liability =N US$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
US$/HK$ cross currency swap En/ BrENES FET FAT FHEIT

At 31 December 2020 R-B-EF
+=A=+-8

- Within 1 year -—FR 159,738 1,238,000 111
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—h%F

+=-A=+—H”

— Within 1 year - —FR 158,120 1,238,000 6,060
The Group used the cross currency swap to exchange US$ AEBNEYSEHEBEELTRITIEEYD
bank borrowing of approximately US$159,738,000 (2019: 159,738,000 T (= Z — L4 : 158,120,000
US$158,120,000) in HK$ bank borrowing of HK$1,238,000,000 EIT) R BB ITTIRITE E1,238,000,000% 7T
(2019: HK$1,238,000,000). (ZZE—N%F : 1,238,000,0007% L) °
The cross currency swap is stated at fair value at the end of the R E AR EE IR AU A FAESE - AFER
reporting period. Details of the fair value measurement are disclosed EZHBERMES(QNEE -
in Note 5(c).
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38. SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year

were as follows:

Number of shares

RE MR

38. A

ARABZBARAFEZESHIT

Share capital

B EE (AT
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 BRREEO0.10E T
each -3 il
Authorised: EERA
At 1 January and R—RA—Bk
31 December +=A=+—H 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BT RARKRAE
At 1 January and R—R—B kK
31 December +=A=+—H 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 190,762 190,762

39. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES,
INVESTEE COMPANIES AND
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to associates, investee companies and
non-controlling shareholders are unsecured and interest-free. The
associates, investee companies and non-controlling shareholders
will not demand for repayment within one year from the end of
the reporting period and the amounts are therefore shown as

non-current.
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R IR IR IR SRR IE
REWEAT  EEREDTRIFEBBRR

EHREERRRE - REBE QR BRK
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MEREERIR - BB ZEFRIIEIERE 1
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40. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 10 January 2020, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the purchaser, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with another shareholder of Landrich, as the seller, in
relation to the acquisition of the remaining 49% of the entire issued
share capital of Landrich (a joint venture of the Group at the time of
entering into the sale and purchase agreement, holding a property
located at Nos. 14—18 Ma Kok Street in Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong) and the sale loan (“Acquisition”). The Group owned
51% interest in Landrich prior to the Acquisition and Landrich has
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company following the
completion of the Acquisition. The Group acquired a property and its
related assets and liabilities by way of acquisition of the remaining
49% of the entire issued share capital of Landrich. The Acquisition
was completed on 28 February 2020 at a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$355,839,000. Details of the Acquisition were set

out in the announcement of the Company dated 10 January 2020.

Under HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”, the Acquisition
was accounted for as an acquisition of assets and liabilities as
Landrich being acquired by the Group does not constitute an
acquisition of business. The Group identified and recognised the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The
cost of the Acquisition was allocated to the individual identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values as at the

date of acquisition. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill.

40. FEBWE—EHE 2T WE

'E

RZZEZZTF—A+H  AARZ—REEE:2
BHmBMNBARIWERE R BEM S —KRE
ERERIILU—HEERE  NAEHUKE
BRI L ZEERARALAEE &5
DR BAEMRESHAEESAH 14518
RZME)RT 4002 HEBRITRARBEER
FOWEEE]) - AEERKESENEARE
W51 - EESTHWEEIE - BHEX
AARRZ—E2ERBNBLAR - AEEB
BUREFR N BR T 49002 B0 B B 1T AR A e i —
EMEARHBEEEREE - WESERZ
EZZF_AZFT)\HEK - BRENREHNE
355,839,000 7T » W EIE 2 EE#HIIRN
AARBAE-Z_ZF—A+RAZAWAN -

RBEBMBREENEIREEEEBE
Bl ARAKRERBREQL TEK —BAXK
Wis BB ERENEBEERBBARK - K
S BB N FERR B B AT 2 Bl 2 WP B E B R R
BE - WBEEZRADEZ[ER R #BHEE
RBE REARNKBARZEBRATFELRSE
B PARZHWBELHE -

—ECEEER
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40. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 40. FBWE— BB QR WE
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (contd) BEw®
2020
HK$'000
FTET
The net assets of Landrich as at the date of acquisition R R RN EEFENT .
were as follows:
Investment properties (Note 19) wEMEMEE19) 900,562
Deposits, other receivables and prepayments Ze - HaEUERIE RFEKIA 2,018
Time deposit and bank balance TE B R R RITAE R 3,677
Creditors and accruals FEA BRIE K FE AT FUE (4,571)
Tax liabilities HEARE (1.227)
Shareholders' loans BRERER (317,467)
Borrowing BE (180,000)
Net assets acquired WEEERE 402,992
Assignment of a shareholder's loan EERFRER 158,649
561,641
Satisfied by: ATEIAAZAT
Cash consideration RENRE 355,839
Expenses incurred for acquisition WEEATE 4+ 2 Rx 276
Fair value of the existing shareholding RAEREZ ANFE 205,526
561,641
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition: WK E & 2 & FE
Cash consideration paid BENBREERE 355,839
Expenses incurred for acquisition WHEFEE 2 MX 276
Time deposit and bank balance acquired Bz TR RIRITE R (3,677)
352,438
During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no acquisition REE-T-NF+_A=+—BILFE I
of assets through acquisition of a subsidiary. EHEBWE-EINERARREEE -
41. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 41. TEHRERS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial BRARE M BRREMBO AREEIN - A&
statements, the Group did not have major non-cash transactions. EWEFTZIFRERIS o
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42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 42 MEXKFELAEZHE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TREI AN EEREEBMEL ABRE R
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. B BERERIFRCEY - MEEXBMESL
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash ZEBEDEHReREgHAKRRERESS
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified as cash flows from RAEBZERERERERANDEAREED
financing activities in the Group's consolidated statement of cash EErzReREZAE -
flows.
Amounts
due to non-
Loanfrom  controlling Lease Dividend Interest
Borrowings adirector  shareholders liabilities payable payable Total
REFER
&g EES ¢ BRZE HEAR EfRE RIS ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFAL TAL TAL FAL FAL TAL FAL
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF
—A-H 13,747,675 = 24177 7825 = 15,568 13,795,245
Financing cash flows RERLHE (398521) - (73924)  (11600)  (209838)  (374926)  (1,068809)
Exchange adjustments [EH R 93,105 - - - - (163) 92,942
Dividends declared ERRE = = 50,080 S 209,838 - 259,918
Increase in lease liabilities WAEET
from entering into new AR
leases during the year REAR - - - 134,743 - - 134,743
Total interest (Note 11) MEBE ) - - = 1,086 = 375,770 376,856
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+-A=+-H 13,442,259 - 333 132,054 - 16,249 13,590,895
Financing cash flows BERENE (6,:489,109) 229 - (56,106) (38,152) (196,651)  (6,779,789)
Exchange adjustments B 5 R 130,682 (229) - - - (33) 130,420
Dividends declared ERRE - - - - 38,152 - 38,152
Increase in lease liabilities WAEFET
from entering into new MBHTEMZ
leases during the year HEaR - - - 46,267 - - 46,267
Acquisition of assets ERNE—FNE
through acquisition of NAREEE
a subsidiary (Note 40) (fir3£40) 180,000 - - - - - 180,000
Other changes A% - - (58) - - - (58)
Total interest (Note 11) MEBE ) - - - 2,975 - 188,195 191,170
At 31 December 2020 gt S 3:3
+ZA=+-H 7,263,832 - 275 125,190 - 1,760 1,397,057
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43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43 EEER
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the REBRR - NEBRANEBER 2 —MRIRIT
assets pledged by the Group to secure general banking and other REMERBMEINRESRZ S MERZ EER
loan facilities granted to the Group and to secure the securities EEIFTWT

transactions, are analysed as follows:

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Investment properties ?ﬁﬁ%% 12,387,045 12,248,623
Financial assets measured at fair value BERNRBRATETEZ
through profit or loss ERMEE 3,199,195 8,975,533
Financial assets measured at fair value miBE M2 E S AR A TE
through other comprehensive income ArECemMEE 9,678,146 18,578,652
Non-current pledged deposits FEMEEIREF L 81,974 100,002
Current pledged deposits MEEHRFR 178,532 174,221
25,524,892 40,077,031
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, interests in certain subsidiaries RZZBZFFR_ZF-NF+=_A=+—H"
of the Company have been pledged as part of the security to secure AARETFTHBERARIZEREEREREREHE
certain bank borrowings granted to the Group. As at 31 December BERETHROEBEZHHERRD - RZZ—N
2019, the Group had subordinated and assigned its advance to a F+HA=+—HB  rEEER-—HEERQA
joint venture of approximately HK$158,818,000 to a bank to secure BERZBITEEESEBNZEERRFIELY
a banking facility granted to the joint venture. During the year ended 158,818, OOOi%T_E B MORGE T —ERT - 0
31 December 2020, the Group acquired the remaining 49% of the HE_Z-ZF+_A=1+—HILFE  £&
entire issued share capital of the joint venture and the joint venture IHQE%EZ BB RAIERT49%2 EEE BT -
has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. MZEEAREKARARZ —HE2EREBN

NG
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44, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, EREE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Authorised and contracted for: EHERBEERL
Capital investment in limited partnership BEREBEEZERKE
(note) (B 3E) 69,348 77,912
Redevelopment expenditure of properties MEERFX 20,917 =
Purchases of equipment and leasehold BERBNMNEHEMERE
improvement 6,864 54,033
Refurbishment of properties iR ES 1,272 -
98,401 131,945
Note: The Group had committed to make a capital contribution of Mz XEENHEREABLEAEEL
US$100,000,000 (equivalent to HK$775,260,000) in the 100,000,000% 7¢ (18 % 1 775,260,000
Cayman Islands Partnership. Up to the end of the reporting period, BLIZERITIE - BEREHRIL
approximately US$91,055,000 (equivalent to approximately AEBEDEEX91,055,000% T (HEE
HK$706,224,000) (2019: US$89,993,000 (equivalent to R #]706,224,0008 70) (Z T — L4 -
approximately HK$697,973,000)) among the contribution 89,993,000% 7t (HHE 1 4£7697,973,000
has been paid by the Group. The outstanding amount was B EAREREESRE - RKITEZSEN
approximately US$8,945,000 (equivalent to approximately 48,945,000 7T (1A & 7R 469,348,000
HK$69,348,000, after exchange adjustment) (2019: BT (KELAER))(ZT—NF
US$10,007,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$77,912,000, 10,007,000 7T (FH & 7R #177,912,000/%
after exchange adjustment)). TU(SHE R B R)))
As at 31 December 2019, other than the capital commitments as RZB-NEF+ZA=+—H0 BRULEEZ
disclosed above, an interest-free funding undertaking in proportion BRI - REEMERRMEIEZS 10512
of 51% had been provided by the Group to Landrich, in the event R EHEAGE  BMEMRRHEERERITRS
that the funds raised from banks or financial institutions by Landrich BEERScEeREMEHEEES T RK
were not sufficient for satisfying any working capital requirements mEH - RZE—NF+-A=+—H  E#®
at any time. As at 31 December 2019, Landrich was in net asset ZRAREBEEFEUNREERRERDHERR
position and the Directors considered that Landrich had sufficient EiBA®  HWRZABARNERRERES - R
working capital and therefore no funding to Landrich was required as BE-Z-TF+-_A=1T—HLFE K&
of that date. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group E U HEFE A ER T 40002 HE BT - MEH
acquired the remaining 49% of the entire issued share capital of BERARARZ —BE2EREWNB AT -

Landrich and Landrich has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company.
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45,

46.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantee given to a bank in respect of
banking facilities in lieu of the cash public
utility deposit jointly utilised by

subsidiaries

Guarantee given to a bank in respect of
a banking facility utilised by an investee
company/indemnity given to a third party

in relation to an investee company

Guarantee given to a bank in respect of
a banking facility utilised by

a joint venture Rz R

No provision for financial guarantee contracts and/or deed of
indemnity have been made as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 as

the Directors considered the default risk is low.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately
HK$373,461,000 (2019: HK$522,963,000) less outgoings of
approximately HK$51,152,000 (2019: HK$17,014,000).

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
amounted to approximately HK$250,000 (2019: HK$263,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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RMBARERARZ
RITEEREUDRERS
NAEBERME—H
RITIRH 2 ER

RHRERABAZ
RITEE R M —MRTT

46.

45. FARBE

REERERRBHA ZRTT
EERMm A —FRITRE
BRE—ERRERT
BRME=TRT2RERE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TAT
15,000 15,000
613,830 613,830
- 90,000
628,830 718,830

HREERRENRARE  BR_F_FTFK
TE-NEFT A=+ —HUAERREERS
Wk SHRERERBEL RS -

EEMEY
AEBAER A A

RAEERDzZ2WEHRHSKRADNDR
373,461,000/ 70 (ZF — L4 : 522,963,000
Bor) - HBRFAX4/451,152,0008 0 (=ZF—
FLEF 1 17,014,000 7T) °

BE_Z-_TF+-A=+—HILFEIIERN
SRS FIR 2 AT M & 54 A250,000
BIL(ZZE—NF : 263,00087T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING LEASES (contd) 46.
The Group as lessor (Cont'd)

Most of the investment properties of the Group held in Hong Kong

have committed tenants ranged from two to three years and in the

United Kingdom have committed tenants over five years.

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments,

showing the undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases to be received after the reporting date.

Within one year E—FRN

More than one year but within two years —FALETBRRE
More than two years but within three years ME EBTBE=F
More than three years but within four years =F FERNBRME
More than four years but within five years PU4F LA _E{B i 7 F
More than five years e
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 47.

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in
Hong Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO
Scheme”) and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”). Contributions to the ORSO Scheme made by the Group
are based on a percentage of employees’ salaries ranging from 5%
to 10%, depending upon the length of service of the employees.
From 1 December 2000, newly joined employees are compulsorily
required to join the MPF Scheme. The employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates

specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$8,744,000 (2019:
HK$8,408,000) represented contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group for the year.

EEHY @
AEEERLBAAG)

REBARBAUNBRREME 2 BPAEMR
RESHAME=F RMUNREREYNEZEP
EEHAEHBBNE -

ATHIRDBEENRZEIHA DT - BRRR
SRHRRETARE EXHETHE K
ZARMBRHEENRK -

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET TAT
287,039 337,655
232,350 234,618
161,339 166,829
102,251 101,110
60,401 55,559
301,346 329,870
1,144,726 1,225,641

RIKBRIFE

REBLHEBFBRNATHIGT BB ABE
RREHEI (B RIRET B R sl N E 25T
El([RESETE]) - REBRBERIKGTBIE
B BFH M 2 5%Z= 1000 R (R T8 B R F
B) H-_EERTFE+_A-—RENAKREE
ZHEEHERNSMEESTE - BEERE
B9/ E S8R RIAZIRR 2 b R B H 4

o
/N

RGFEE2ERERERINBRCERBENAR
744,000 0 (ZF— L4 : 8,408,000/
) AIAEBRAFEEMZSEEN 2 H#

oo

o

@A
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48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 48. EXBAEALRF

TRANSACTIONS

Transactions:

In February 2019, the Group entered into a three-year lease (“First
Lease") and a framework agreement (“Framework Agreement”) in
respect of leases of certain leasehold properties held by a company
controlled by a Director and the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders
(“Related Company”) as new headquarter of the Group. In October
2019, the Group entered into a three-year lease (“Second Lease”)
in respect of leases of the leasehold properties under the Framework
Agreement. In June 2020, the Group further entered into a three-
year lease (“Third Lease”) in respect of lease of certain leasehold
properties held by the Related Company for the purpose of other
part of the new headquarter of the Group.

Under the First Lease, the Second Lease and the Third Lease, the
respective amounts of rent payable per month are HK$1,025,000,
HK$3,184,000 and approximately HK$1,410,000; the respective
amounts of building management fee payable per month are
approximately HK$110,000, approximately HK$334,000 and
approximately HK$178,000; and the respective amounts of
security deposit paid as at 31 December 2020 were approximately
HK$3,559,000, approximately HK$11,031,000 and approximately
HK$4,973,000. At the commencement date of the First Lease, the
Second Lease and the Third Lease, the Group recognised the present
value of the lease payments over the lease term as lease liability and
the aggregate amount of lease liability and estimated costs to be
incurred by the Group for restoration of the property as right-of-use
asset. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the lease
liability of the First Lease, the Second Lease and the Third Lease
were approximately HK$14,202,000, approximately HK$68,503,000
and approximately HK$40,795,000 (2019: the First Lease and
the Second Lease were HK$26,125,000 and HK$101,340,000)
respectively and the carrying amounts of the right-of-use asset
of the First Lease, the Second Lease and the Third Lease were
approximately HK$14,209,000, approximately HK$68,577,000
and approximately HK$41,779,000 (2019: the First Lease and
the Second Lease were HK$26,388,000 and HK$105,983,000)
respectively. Rent and building management fee of the First
Lease, the Second Lease and the Third Lease for the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$63,507,000
(2019: the First Lease and the Second Lease of HK$9,967,000) in
aggregate. The transactions of the First Lease, the Second Lease and
the Third Lease constituted connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 48. EXRFAEA LR Z @)
TRANSACTIONS (contd)
Transactions: (Cont'd) x5 (&)
Details of the First Lease/Second Lease and the Third Lease were E—HE E_MHERE=-MHEZHBES IR
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 28 February RARARBBHR-_ZE-—NF_AZ+NBR=ZZE
2019 and 12 June 2020 respectively and the paragraph headed ZEFERNRATZBZRATMUAERRAFRIES
“Connected Transactions” in the section headed “Directors’ Report” HEE|-HFPHEEISH ]| —BAEE -
of this annual report.
Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these consolidated B X RARERE BB R iE,HJ DRTBEE
financial statements, the Group had the following material O REBRARFEHEBEA ﬁ%T%K
transactions with related parties during the year: R
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Income received from associates: [EAL NG el N
Interest income FLEYA 2,141 2,118
Accountancy fee EE 120 120
Management fee ERE 48 48
Income received from Directors and/or BRESR REZRRZ(EF
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders, A BHEER  KFTBREZ
close family members of Directors and/or EEABEREY) 2 REERK B LA
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders and RESER KEEREZ
companies controlled by Directors and/or BEFREAZESIZ RE WA -
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders:
Rental services HER® 3,756 5,038
Property management services, MEEER
leasing administration services and HEFBITEARTS K
property administration services YEITRTS 30,872 32,119
Advisory and consultancy services 5 N EE R AR 7S 37 34
Other ordinary services H b — MRS 3,053 1,592
Licence fee paid to a company controlled EN—UEERFERRZ
by a Director and the Trustee of ERAESZARZHAE
Substantial Shareholders 7 7
Rent and building management fee paid to Eﬁ BERNRz e MEF
associates [=BLE= 4,281 4,304
Considerations in respect of the disposals of EALEERESF T NEEK
debt securities to a Director and FTERRZEFAAZRE
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders 6,718,586 -

—ECREFR FEABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 48. EXBEALTRZ @

TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Interest income was charged at the prevailing market rates based
on outstanding balances during the year. Accountancy fee was
charged based on an appropriate allocation of costs incurred by
central administrative departments of the Group. Management fee,
licence fee, rent, building management fee and security deposit
paid were determined based on terms similar to those applicable to

transactions with unrelated parties.

Income from services fees of rental services, property management
services, leasing administration services, property administration
services, advisory and consultancy services and other ordinary
services (the contract for services with effect from 1 November 2020
(details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
14 August 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 7 October
2020) and the former contract for services (details were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 31 October 2017)) were
charged at the terms agreed by both parties. These related party
transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these
continuing connected transactions are disclosed in the paragraph
headed “Connected Transactions” in the section headed “Directors’

Report” of this annual report.

Considerations in respect of the disposals of debt securities were
determined as the aggregate of (i) an amount representing 100%
of the principal amount or the market bid price for debt securities
disposed of, whichever was higher; and (ii) the total amount
of notional interest on the principal amount for debt securities
disposed of. The disposals of debt securities constituted connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the transaction are disclosed in Note 27(i) and the
paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in the section headed

“Directors’ Report” of this annual report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into
a facility agreement with a Director. At the request of the Group, the
Director has agreed to make available to the Group a revolving loan
facility of up to HK$2,000,000,000. Subsequently, the Group further
entered into another facility agreement with the Director with the
same revolving loan facility amount, which will supersede the existing
facility agreement and with termination date falling beyond one year
from 31 December 2020. During the year ended 31 December
2020, an aggregate amount equivalent to approximately
HK$589,778,000 (2019: nil) was drawn and the loan has been fully
repaid. As at 31 December 2020, there was no outstanding balance
of loan from the Director (2019: nil). The facility is unsecured and
interest-free. The transaction was fully exempted from reporting,
announcement, independent shareholders' approval and annual

review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Balances:

Save as disclosed above, at the end of the reporting period, the
Group had balances with Directors and/or the Trustee of Substantial
Shareholders, a close family member of Directors and/or the Trustee
of Substantial Shareholders and companies controlled by Directors
and/or the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders of approximately
HK$14,373,000 (2019: HK$21,249,000) in aggregate which was

included in debtors and other receivables.

Details of the balances with other related parties at the end of the

reporting period are set out in Notes 25, 26 and 39.
Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Notes
15 and 16. The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the approval
of the board of Directors having regard to the performance of
individuals, their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group

and the prevailing market condition as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars
of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and therefore the
following list contains only the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020

which principally affected the results or assets of the Group.

Place of Class of share/

incorporation/ registered

Name of subsidiary operation capital held
FiRe,/

WEARERE HMRL BERE HME LR
Alpha Team Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary
EREARES LRk

Cardin Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
RABERAH BE el
Chase Master Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
REBRLA BB EER
Chinese Estates, Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
EAEXBRAR R el
Chinese Estates (Harcourt House) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary
Limited BB LBk
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49. T EM B AR

EERRINEEAMBARZHIBTREAR
Tk e Ut TRARFIN_-_ZF_ZFF+_H
- AHAKECRELEEAERREL
MERRZFHE -

Issued and Proportion of

fully paid paid-up share capital/

share capital/ registered capital
registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities

BRARAR KATFMBHRRE

RE /&L ZMERZED TEEH
Directly Indirectly
BE B
Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
[E REZR
HK$2 - 100% Property Trading
2T NEEE
HK$2 - 100%  Securities investment
28T BHRE
HK$1,000 100% - Investment holding
1,000 7T and provision of
management
services
REERR
REER R
HK$200 = 100% Property investment
200/7C NERE



49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Name of subsidiary

WELREE

Country Homes Limited

Estate Rose Limited

Ever Ideal Limited

Evergo China Holdings Limited

Evergo Holdings (China)
Company Limited
EXERE(PE)BRAR

Place of
incorporation/

operation

EMAL B R

Hong Kong
A

British Virgin Islands
ERARRES

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

LB4ARES/
Bk

Bermuda/
Hong Kong

agE/
)

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

REABREE/
&R

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

Class of share/
registered
capital held
it/

S EREH

Ordinary
Non-voting
deferred ordinary
ERTR
Non-voting
deferred founder
ERTR
BRI AR

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
EER

49. T EM B L TFE®

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRARE
Bx/ERER

HK$200
2008 7T
HK$ 164,400
164,40057C

HK$1,000
1,00087C

US$1
E

US$1
E

HK$100,775,869.10
100,775,869.10/ 7

US$2,509,454
2,509,454% T

Proportion of
paid-up share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
RARFBHERE/
EMERZEDL
Directly Indirectly
B# e

S 100%

S 100%

= 100%

S 100%

= 100%
—ECEEER

Principal activities

TEER

Property investment

ES &

Securities investment

Securities investment

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49. T EH B A TFEE®

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ fully paid paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation capital held  registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
e,/ BRTRARE RARMEAERE
WEARERE HRAY e SERER BA/ERER aMERZADL TEXR
Directly  Indirectly
B# EfES
Express Right Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 100% Property investment
REERAF United Kingdom L@k E NERE
RB&BRES/
5E
Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100% Securities margin
RESBBRAT B LER 10,000,000 7T financier
BHRECHE
Fair Eagle Futures Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000,000 - 100% Broking and dealing
Limited & LiEk 5,000,000/ 7C in futures contracts
REFEERAT MHEANKLEREE
Fair Eagle Securities Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$228,000,000 - 100%  Provision of brokerage
Limited B L@k 22800000087 RS I RTS
REEFBRAT
Flying Ease Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
M BRATF REEARES ERR [E BERE
Grade World Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 = 100%  Securities investment
MEREFRAR BE gl 25T BFHRE
Hillsborough Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 100% Property investment
Hong Kong el %7 NERE
LBSBERER/
&R
Knightlights Property Intemational ~ Luxembourg/ Ordinary GBP33,000 = 100% Property investment
SA United Kingdom gl 33,0005 8 NERE
ERE/
-3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

Place of Class of share/
incorporation/ registered
Name of subsidiary operation capital held
it/
WEAR AR HfAL S EREREH
Landrich (H.K.) Limited* Hong Kong Ordinary
BHEBBRLA BE Epalie
Lucky Way Company Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary
(Business name: Hong Kong LEk
Lucky Path Limited) RBS&RRES/
(B4 BB
Lucky Path Limited)
Oriental Master Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary
Paul Y. (New Tunnel) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
REFRE)ERAF BE el
Paul Y. Holdings Company Cayman Islands/ Ordinary
Limited Hong Kong TEk
GEL Ve
BE
Perfect World Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
BENEERERAR BE LER
River Court Properties Limited Isle of Man/ Ordinary
United Kingdom el
588/
5
& The Group owned 519% interest in Landrich prior to the

Acquisition and Landrich has become a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company following the completion of the Acquisition on
28 February 2020.

49. T EM B L TFE®

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRARE
Bx/ERER

HK$1,000
1,000 7

Us$1
17T

US$1
[E

HK$2
2B

HK$70,715,005.70
70,715,005.707% T

HK$10,000
10,000/ 7T

GBP2
QM EE

Proportion of
paid-up share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company ~ Principal activities
ARAMRARRE,/

EMERZEDL TEEY
Directly Indirectly
HE GE:3

- 100% Property investment

NERE

- 100%  Securities investment

BHRA

100% - Investment holding

REZR

- 100% Investment holding

REER

100% - Investment holding

RERR

S 100% Estate management

NEEE

- 100% Property investment

nERA

AEBRYEBEENERRERS1%ER

BERA—E-_TF A -+ N\BmkE
£H BHREXREARRZ—BEEHE
[IESENCIID

SBRCREEH  EAEEENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49. T EMBAAFRE @
SUBSIDIARIES (contd)
Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ fully paid paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation capital held  registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
e,/ BRAIRAR RARFBHRRE/
WEAREHE SRR EE I AMEEEH REx/ZHEL AMEEZEDH TEER
Directly  Indirectly
B EfEd
Smart Ocean Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
KRARRES ERR [E REER
Speed Win Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property trading
ABBERAF Bk ERR 28T NEEE
State Smart Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 100% Property investment
RERRAA United Kingdom Lk E0 NERE
RE&RRES/
B
The House of Kwong Sang Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100%  Cosmetics distribution
Hong Limited BE ERER 500,000/ and trading
EXEERRT thmAHRES
Tycoon Fame Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
FRERAA ERARRES ERR (B REER
Wing Lee Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100%  Securities investment
XAARBRAT o ERR 2B BERE
EXRULR)CEERBERAFS  PRC Registered US$500,000 - 100% Property investment
(Evergo (Beijing) Corporate HE BRIV 500,000% 7T NERE
Management Co,, Ltd)*
EERER)REABHBRARY PRC Registered US$20,000,000 - 100% Property trading
(Evergo Investment Counsel i HMER 20,000,000 7T NEEE
(Beijing) Co, Ltd.)*
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at MG ARIAERRS AR - LEMEAR
the end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting BITEMERES ©
period.
4 Wholly foreign-owned enterprise s SNEBERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES 50. X EB & N RIS

EERR/INE2ABENRZFBTRERR
Tk - 8t TRRHEINRKR -_Z-_FF+
=t REAKEZEEREERERRE

B N RZFHIS o

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars
of all associates would be of excessive length and therefore the
following list contains only the associates as at 31 December 2020

which principally affected the results or assets of the Group.

Associates /N
Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ fully paid  equity attributable
incorporation/ registered share capital/ indirectly to
Name of associate operation capital held registered capital the Company Principal activities
Fis it/ BRTRAR EREEERES
BELRER HMAL EE aERER BE/EfER RAZEAL TEXK
Best Profit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 250 Property investment
FHERAA 0 el 187 and trading
NEREREE
Direct Win Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$900 33.3300 Property trading
BRERERAA & LAk 9007 E S
Finedale Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,999 33.33% Property investment
EREEXARAA £ EER 9,999 NERE
Power Jade Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$20 50% Investment holding
(Business name: Hong Kong il 20ET REER
Power Jade Capital Limited) KEgARES/
(EBARE 0
Power Jade Capital Limited)
The Kwong Sang Hong Bermuda Ordinary HK$100,000 50% Investment holding
International Limited AEE LRR 100,000 7 REER
BHBMABEBERDA! PRC Registered US$24,920,000 50% Property investment
Oriental Arts Building Co,, Ltd.! F HMER 24,920,000% 7T and hotel operation
NERERBERH
u Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise u FINEEREE

_7_

ZFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ T —ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 51. A A BB &R RBR B 16

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FH&xT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B AERE 5,135,893 5,135,893
Loans to subsidiaries B ARIER 2,611,299 2,654,119
7,747,192 7,790,012
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries BIENEIVEE e 11,314,570 11,372,202
Other current assets HREEE 321 286
Bank balances RITHE R 40,701 52,697
11,355,592 11,425,185
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries RE M B A RIFIR 53,226 74,503
Other current liabilities HEtbhmeats 945 2,136
54,171 76,639
Net current assets RBEEFE 11,301,421 11,348,546
Total assets less current liabilites ZEEZBERABER 19,048,613 19,138,558
Equity attributable to owners of the 2 THEE A
Company PEAE IR A< RE 2
Share capital fig A 38 190,762 190,762
Capital redemption reserve N e 138,062 138,062
Other reserve H G 9 9
Retained profits R & A 16,382,780 16,422,725
Total equity PR RS 40 %E 16,711,613 16,751,558
Non-current liability FREBEE
Loans from subsidiaries B AREE 2,337,000 2,387,000
19,048,613 19,138,558
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on BEEEEER T —F=AN\BHERKRE

8 March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

B YHTIEERREFERE

Chan, Hoi-wan Lam, Kwong-wai MK BT
Director Director =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #RE& B iR KR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 51. XA BB BRABR R FE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (contd) ()
Reserve movement of the Company ARBZRERE

Capital

redemption Other Retained
reserve reserve profits
EAREE #E Hith R REER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 R-ZT—hF—A—H 138,062 9 16,631,884
Profit for the year RER @ - - 679
Interim dividend for 2019 paid BENZZ—-NFHEHRKRE - - (19,076)
Final dividend for 2018 paid BN N\FREARE - - (190,762)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NF+-A=+—H 138,062 9 16,422,725
Loss for the year REFEE - - (1,793)
Interim dividend for 2020 paid ENZEZSFHERE - - (19,076)
Final dividend for 2019 paid ENZE-NFREARE - - (19,076)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF+-A=+—H 138,062 9 16,382,780
52. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE 52. RETBRGEEVHER

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised EFEEERE—F=AN\BHEREEE
for issue by the board of Directors on 8 March 2021. iR A M BHmE -

BB EAEBEsE 289



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFUBHE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is as follows:

Results

Revenue (note (i)

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (HK$)
Basic and diluted (note (ii))

Total comprehensive (expenses)

income for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Final and interim dividends
per share (HK cents)

Special interim dividends per share
(HK cents)

FAEBBRBERFZEE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLFE

BEAABEHBLT

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET FAT FAT FHT
LN iEEI0) 3,041,464 1,309,952 2,686910 2,672,967 5,028,700
(restated)  (restated)  (restated)  (restated)
(&%) (E5) (&=270)) (E7)
B 754 A A 692,546 948910 1,186,854 4,125,682 7,258,155
FTiSfim (70,282) (157,258) (127,041) (327,049) (564,966)
NEE 622,264 791,652 1,059,813 3,798,633 6,693,189
JEAEAFE R
ZAN/NSIETZE N 622,233 790,167 1,015,290 3,708,886 6,360,312
FEPERR R 31 1,485 44,523 89,747 332,877
622,264 791,652 1,059,813 3,798,633 6,693,189
FRAEF (L)
AR R g E (M EEGN)) 0.33 0.41 0.53 1.94 3.33
EIEAFERE
(Z i)z sg -
RARER A (4,978,617) (283,605) (2,116,980) 16,348,710 3,418,670
FEPERR R = 31 1,485 44,523 89,747 332,877
(4,978,586) (282,120) (2,072,457) 16,438,457 3,751,547
SRR R PR E
(BN 2 2 11 30 2
TR HAR B
GZ:3)) - - - 355 869
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EFEBHME

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

ARBEBEAFZXE BERAGEHENT :

years is as follows: (Cont'd) (&)
At 31 December
Rt=A=+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT T FHET FET
Assets and liabilities EERAR
Total assets BEGE 37,469,379 48311,789 48,690,703 56,063,355 45,775,735
Total liabilities BEEE (8.689,129)  (14,721,428)  (14547,134)  (19,570,353)  (15,875,880)
Total equity BARG B 28,780,250 33,590,361 34,143,569 36,493,002 29,899,855
Attributable to: e
Owners of the Company AREHEAA 28,758,783 33,568,925 34,062,368 36,385,916 29,804,216
Non-controlling interests R ER 21,467 21,436 81,201 107,086 95,639
28,780,250 33,590,361 34,143,569 36,493,002 29,899,855
Net asset value per share attrbutable 772 &) % 5 A JE{l
to owners of the Company (HK$) ~ SREEFE(E L) 15.08 17.60 17.86 19.07 15.62
Number of shares issued ERTRHHE 1,907,619,079  1,907,619079  1,907,619079  1,907,619079  1,907,619,079
Notes: Mzt -
()  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has changed its () REZE-Z-_TEHE+-_A=+—BULEE K%

accounting policy for the presentation and classification in its consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of building management fee
income and property management services income (previously
presented in and classified as “Other Income”) and interest income
from bonds and other forms of debt securities and dividend income
from listed and unlisted equity investments (previously presented in and
classified as “Investment Income, Net"). Details of this change are set out
in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
The amounts of revenue as previously reported are HK$538,986,000,
HK$843,618,000, HK$1,516,655,000 and HK$3,745,148,000 for the
years ended 31 December 2019, 2018, 2017 and 2016 respectively.

(i)  The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the years and on the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the relevant years.
Diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic eamnings per share
as there were no diluting events during the relevant years.

(i)

ERr e 2 ARSREPEFEEBRARYE
EERBUACBEZIESBEAIEMBKAL -
EHFEREMPE A EBESFZFSBRALR LT
MIEETRAKREZREWRACBAEZI RS
7%Hxé?uﬂz)\a‘aﬁm)ZEEIJ&"*EEE&ﬁQHﬂBZ

o B E%WJEA$¢¥B%ZTAE7W$&2%M1&3
mo@ —ZT—hE - —N\F - —+tF
F_T—XRF+-A= -1— BIEFEE LEZ?I#EZ
g A& %8 Bl 538,986,000/ 7T + 843,618,000
#IT ~ 1,516,655,0008 7T }2.3,745,148,00078
e

BREARBERFREE FERATEEA
R P R 7 BB B BT IR 5 2 AR T st
Yo mNTEBEEE  HAWEE L SREY
ENRSRERRFIEA -

—ECEFEFR  EABE£E 291



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
EEYERMR

The following table sets forth the Group's major properties as at 31 December 2020:
TR AEENR T _BF+_A=T—HZEEM*:

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG BERUWE
Properties held for investment BEREME
Location Lot number Usage
1t B b BR 4 5% Rz
1. Harcourt House Certain parts or shares of and Commercial
(excluding 7th, 8th, 9th, 22nd, in Inland Lot No. 8573 EES
23rd, 25th, 26th and 27th floors, N 857355 2
rooms 1004 and 1805) BT RE

39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(including 113 car parking spaces)

ERKE
BB
ETITE399

(7-8~9+22+2%3-25"
26271 « 1004 % 1805Z= K51

(B 13{@ERT)

2. Causeway Place* Certain parts or shares of and Residential/
Various shops on ground floor, in Inland Lot No. 7742 Commercial
mezzanine floor, st and 2nd floors and ~ AHEER 774258 > FE /%

their respective portions of exterior walls, & T 285 k{758
together with flats C, I, J, K, L, N, O, P, Q
(each including a flat roof) and H on 3rd floor
Hong Kong Mansion

nos. 1-7 Paterson Street and

nos. 2—10 Great George Street

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

7§ 0 3

BHE L

BIEFE1-TH KL

AR 2-105%

EERE

W B 1EREBETEER
HEE 5z oM &
3EC1-JKL*N-OP-Q
(BHERELZTA)RHEM

& Certain shops have been sold

ETEACEn
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Category of
the lease
term

HABEA

Long
=M

Long
=M

Group's
interest
S

P it 3

100%

100%



PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties held for investment (Cont'd)

Location

bk

3.

Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street

Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
EBMALE

SAH14E 185

Various Portions of

No. 1 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(comprising 391 workshop units and
77 car parking spaces)
EENREERE

HREBIRETEN
(BHE39VETHEM R 77EER)

Olympian City 3

1 Hoi Wang Road

South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)

BigH =1

HETORE LR

AL 1 5%

(BEETFRRERMC

REEHEHN)

Coronation Circle

1 Yau Cheung Road

South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)

hEE

AT NE

BB

(BEETFRRERMA

REEBHEN)

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥HM &R

ERBYME®w

BEREWEGE)
Category of
the lease
Lot number Usage term
h B 4R 5% A& FEEE R
Tsuen Wan Town Industrial Medium
Lot No. 128 I 7 A
ZETHER 1285
Certain parts or shares of and Industrial Medium
in Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 415 T B
BIEANMER41558 2
BTHHHMNEE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial Medium
in Kowloon Inland Lot Nos. [EES A Hf
11167 and 11168
NEEAHEL
11167% 11168582
BT EE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial Medium
in Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11073 [EES H A
NBEAMER 11073582
BT O
“ECEFEER

Group’s
interest
&£H
Frib s

100%

33.33%

25%

15%

FABEEE
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥Mi &k

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA

Properties held for investment

Location

i 26

1. Hilton Beijing
1 Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
R AEEEE
ERTHGRE
R=RIE - ROTE1%

2.  Oriental Place
9 East Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
REBEBKE
IERTHGE
REIRILEE - W REKOHR
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H B (A 3 ) 3
BEREMHE

Category of
the lease
Usage term
A HEE R
Hotel Short
BT SRt
Office Short
BFE 52 HR

Group’s
interest
-3
ARz

50%

50%



PROPERTIES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

Properties held for investment

Location

b:uk

1. River Court
116—129 Fleet Street
London, EC4, United Kingdom
River Court
EEfRBECS
Fleet Street 116-1295%

2. 14 St George Street
14 St George Street
London, W1, United Kingdom
St George Street 1435
EERBWI
St George Street 1455

3. 61-67 Oxford Street and
11-14 Soho Street
61-67 (odd) Oxford Street and
11-14 Soho Street
London, W1, United Kingdom
Oxford Street 61-6755 &
Soho Street 11-145%
HEI R EWI
Oxford Street 61-675F% (885%) &
Soho Street 11-145%

4. 11 and 12 St James’s Square and
14 to 17 Ormond Yard
11 and 12 St James's Square and
14 to 17 Ormond Yard
London, SW1Y 4LB, United Kingdom
St James's Square 11 R 1255 &
Ormond Yard 142175
HEMISWIY 4LB
St James's Square 11 1257 &
Ormond Yard 14Z= 1755

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

RE Y=
FEREME
Category of
the lease
Usage term
A& HEER
Commercial Freehold
[BES KAERE
Commercial Freehold
GES KA ERE
Residential/ Freehold
Commercial KA FERE
FE
Residential/ Freehold
Commercial KA ERE
FE
“ECEFEER

EEMEME

Group'’s
interest
Frit Rz

100%

100%

100%

100%
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
YIRE BRI R

PROPERTY IN HONG KONG BERYE
Property held for development FIERRYE
Estimated
gross
Approximate floor area
Estimated site area (square feet)
Stage of completion (square feet) fhat
Name of project Lot number completion date BEEROH AREER Usage
BREH WERER THER fhat TR AH (¥R (FER) R
1. Grand Central New Kowloon Superstructure works Second quarter 234,160 1,853,561 Residential/
33 Hip Wo Street Inland Lot No. 6514 completed of 2021 Commercial
Kwun Tong, Kowloon ¥ /12 FERETR -3--% e/ mE
Hong Kong 65145 B F-F
HE
EE
hEEEE
e33R
Notes:
B 5T
1. The property development rights were granted pursuant to development agreement with the Urban Renewal Authority
MEZREDRBETEERRIT L2 ERBERH
2. Certain residential units were contracted for sale as at 31 December 2020

MRIZBZZBF+-R=+—H HETEZTELEINLEE
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Group's
interest
Fris s

10%
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